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Globally
Recognized

Brand

I

We are the global market
leader in travel luggage,
with a brand heritage
dating back more than
100 years.




Corporate Profile

Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated
subsidiaries, the “Company”) is the world’s largest travel luggage
company, with a heritage dating back more than 100 years.

The Company is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags,
outdoor and casual bags, and travel accessories throughout the
world, primarily under the Samsonite® and American Tourister®
brand names as well as other owned and licensed brand names.
The Company’s core brand, Samsonite, is one of the most well-
known travel luggage brands in the world.

Positioned for
Growth

Tailored and
Innovative

Products
I

We continuously

bring light, strong and
innovative products

to market that are
tailored to the tastes
and requirements of
local consumers in each
region.

Global
Economies

of Scale

]

Global economies of
scale enable substantial
investment in product
R&D, marketing, efficient
sourcing and an extensive
distribution network.

Regional
Focus

I
We are well positioned to
benefit from continued
growth in the global travel
market, especially in
emerging markets in Asia.

I
Our decentralized
product development,
sourcing, marketing and
sales functions allow us
to customize products
to local consumers’
preferences and enable
fast decision making.
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— Samsonite International S.A.
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Net Sales
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+34.4%
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rt 2011
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Financial Highlights

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

@ For the year'ended December 31, 2011,
the Company’s :

e Net sales increased by 34.4% compared to the
previous year.

e Adjusted Net Income' increased by 56.6%
compared to the previous year.

e Adjusted EBITDA? increased by 47.2% compared
to the previous year.

e Adjusted EBITDA margin® increased to 15.8% for
the year ended December 31, 2011 from 14.4%
for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Adjusted Net Income
EARFUA
|

+56.6%

The above figures exclude the effect of the
termination of the Lacoste” and Timberland®
licensing agreements, which were no longer active
from December 2010, and have been adjusted to
eliminate the effect of certain non-recurring costs
and charges and certain other non-cash charges.

HZE2011F12A31BILEE - XD -

o SHEFHEREAFIER344% °

o FERERA'REFILRS6.6% °

o AR EBITDA B AFIBRA7.2% ©

o KA EBITDARIEE HEE 20105124
3THLIEEEMNL4% EFAEZEZ201145
12A31ALEFEM15.8% ©

Adjusted EBITDA

#EFAREEBITDA
|

+47.2%

ZEHF MG E2010F 128 & W
Lacoste* & Timberland> ¥R #E I S & > I
ERABLUEBRE THETEREARERAUE
ETHMIEBSER -




@ If we do not adjust for Lacoste and Timberland,
the Company’s net sales increased to a record
level of US$1,565.1 million for the year ended

December 31, 2011, reflecting a 28.8% increase fiti & 19 1 B Lacoste # Timberland fE H 3
compared to the previous year. Excluding foreign B ORARBE2011F12A31BLEFERN
currency effects, net sales increased by 24.3%. SHEFHERHLH  BEI1565.1BEE
Adjusted Net Income increased by 29.6% to L BRAFIER288% ° MBRERFE
US$136.8 million. Adjusted EBITDA increased by EFHEER243% KABFRAER
29.3% to US$248.3 million for the year ended 29.6% Z£136.8BB X ° BiZ2011F 128
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year, B1ALEFE S KAEBIDAREFIER
and Adjusted EBITDA margin was 15.9% for the year 293% E2483E B E T KRB E2011F12
ended December 31, 2011 compared to 15.8% for H318 It F E - £ 7 ZEBITDAF H =
the previous year. #15.9% M AFH%15.8% °
BEN2ANELFE

DEEERSH  SREBHR vear ended December 31, BHEL

Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per share data 2010  Percentage change

Net sales HEFE 1,2453 28.8%

Profit for the year FRER 366.8 (71.8)%

Adjusted Net Income’ FEREES A N 105.6 29.6%

Adjusted EBITDA? #EAREEBITDA? 191.9 29.3%

Adjusted EBITDA margin? {EFHEEEBITDAKI =3 15.8%

Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERRBERF 0.27 (77.8)%

(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (AZRETL5!)

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share® ERBRSREARBERFC 0.08 25.0%

(Expressed in US Dollars per share) ABRETEY)

Note Fffz

T Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges
that impact the Company’s reported profit for the year. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted Net Income” for a reconciliation from
the Company’s profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income.

KRABEFRARFEFRSHBTETE  EMBRFEFALDARREFNE THREEERAREAURSE TAMIRSERNTE - EEADQ AFREFRLHEFK
AW - B2 [EEERED T — SHEFRA -

2 Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges. The
Company believes Adjusted EBITDA is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying trends
of its business. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted EBITDA" for a reconciliation from the Company’s profit for the year to Adjusted
EBITDA.

KRR EBITDARFEIFRSEIS ST B T A - HMERE THEBEMRARBEAURE TEMFREEANTE - AAFBEEEHEBTOABFINERH T BEAKEXERTE
HEBWHARIBE - BEAQRFRIGEFIERLAEBITDANEER - F2H [ERENRED I — LHEEBITDA]
3 Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.
BEEBITDAFIEERIFIFRSH ST R T A » LUSHEHZEEBITDARR MASHE BT ©
4 lacoste is a registered trademark of Lacoste Alligator S.A.
Lacoste#Lacoste Alligator S.A.EEEEZ o
5 Timberland is a registered trademark of The Timberland Company.
Timberland#The Timberland Company Bz E1Z o

6 Adjusted earnings per share is calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

KREZRBF T SRR A R R B ATIE SN O AT 2 IR Bt ELPTAS o

HEBEBRERAR ——
—O——%%F#H 5



Financial Highlights g2

@ All four regions achieved strong double digit
net sales growth driven by:

the strength of the Company’s brands;

innovative product offerings tailored
to local markets;

extensive global distribution and
points of sale expansion;

_ _ A B E RS MRS
strong and targeted investment in WE . R TEERSE
advertising and promotion; and o KATRIEESD ;

. BEHTSESEHNAFES
TN RAHRINRHES
RERREEIEE N R A NRE R
A R AR P R O 5 4 T o

the continued expansion of business
and casual products.

Net sales for the Asian region increased by 48.1%
for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to

the previous year, making it the Company’s largest, N EREZE2011F 12831 HIEFERN
fastest growing and most profitable region. Net HEFHEREAFERLISN%  FEZERBE
sales in North America, Europe and Latin America RABRA - BREEGSREINZSHNE
increased by 29.7%, 27.6% and 23.5%, respectively o bEM - BUNRA T EMNMHEFED
as compared with the previous year. These figures B EEHLR29.7% ~ 27.6% }23.5% ° %
exclude the effect of the termination of the Lacoste 2 87 MBR &R LE Lacoste 2 Timberland 1% #&
and Timberland licensing agreements. HENEE o

Net Sales Growth by Region’

Rt EE D HETFHEER 8 2010 %% 2011
US_$(m)
Net Sales Net Sales ZR(EH)
Asia Europe 700 =
TN EFERE BUMNSEE 558
e 600 — $577.3

+48.1% +27.6%

500 $476.5
400 $373.5
Net Sales Net Sales
North Latin 300
America America
dEENEE B I T £ 8454 2ol
[ —
+29.7% +23.5%
0
Asia Europe North America Latin America
T B e BTEN

' Excluding the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing
agreements which were no longer active from December 2010.
MERE20105F 12 B 4 L WLacoste R Timberland RER BN & o

o)

— Samsonite International S.A.
6 Annual Report 2011




@ Net sales in the travel product category

increased by 33.9% to US$1,186.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared
to the previous year.

Net sales in the business product category
increased by 71.8% to US$189.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the
previous year.

Net sales in the casual product category
increased by 32.4% to US$77.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous
year, excluding the effect of the termination of the
Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements.

FREERERNEZE2011F12 831 B L FENHEFER
EEMR339% E1,186.7HBET ©

BRERERNREZE2011F12 431 AL FENHEES FHER
EFHRTI8% E189.6BEET °

BZE2011F12A31BLLFE » KAERERINHEEFEER
EFER3I24% ZETI2HEET » ZEHFTMERA L Lacoste &
Timberland IR R R R 2 -

@ The Company’s marketing expenses increased
by 19.9% to US$122.8 million (approximately
8% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2011 compared to the previous year, reflecting the
Company’s commitment to utilize advertising and
promotion to drive sales growth worldwide.

@ The Company’s shares were listed on the

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on June 16, 2011. The Company
received gross proceeds of US$225.3 million which,
along with cash on hand, were used to repay in full
the Company’s loan notes and former senior credit
facility and former term loan facility.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had
cash and cash equivalents of US$141.3 million and
financial debt of US$15.1 million (excluding deferred
financing costs of US$3.3 million), providing the
Company with a net cash position of US$126.2
million as of December 31, 2011.

The Board has recommended that a cash
distribution in the amount of approximately US$30.0
million, or US$0.02132 per share, be made to the
Company’s shareholders.

Net Sales Growth by Product Category'

REREREPHETHEER" 2010 2011
US$(m)
En(E8)
1400 — 433.9% 471.8% $32.4% +41.0% ¥36.0%
oo — 511867
1000 —
$885.9
800 —
600 —
400 —
o 5;89.6I
$110.3 / $77.2 70.8
/ $58.3 " $50.2§ u $566 $36.2 |

Business Casual’ Accessories Other

g 53 NGk #fi A Hth

! Excluding the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing
agreements which were no longer active from December 2010.
MERE2010% 12 A 4 1EKLacoste & Timberland R AR E M & o

HZE2011F128315ILEE » KATMNE
BB A FEEMI09% E1228BEET
(WIEHEFEES%) » RIALQREBF A
EERERTEEES S REEEER -

AATHRBR2011E6H 168 RE BB
ERBMERATER LT o 28N F]URELFT
BRIBHAFE2253EEET MEFER
& BEAREERATNERZER LA
BEAGERERAAEHERRME -
MR2011F12A8318 > AAAHNEER
REEB/YBI1413BEBET eBEEA
151 BEBET (MKREEHEKN3IIEE
E7t)  MARARR2011FE12A31B 2%
HEH1262BBET °
EEEEEOAQARRELLN30.0H
BETHSR0.02132ETHNEEDIR

HEBEBRERIR —
—O——%FH 7



Chairman’s Statement =%+

This is the first set of full-year results since Samsonite’s

listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in June 2011, and | am delighted
to report a strong performance across all of our markets,
and excellent year-on-year growth in sales in both the
Samsonite and American Tourister brands.

HERAFFEB0IFANRE AR ARG ERLAAEMLETENENEEX£ERE
BARARERBZMENETSIIEEES » RRFTEE R American Tourister RV SEEE1TE S

BANZFHER -

The listing of Samsonite on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange was a turning
point for the Company: it signaled a new chapter for our products and our
people, and helped take us another step forward in our ambition to increase
the global visibility of our brand.

Despite the emergence of the Eurozone crisis in the middle of last year, global
travel numbers continued their advance across all regions, which clearly had a
positive impact on the sales of our travel products in particular. The Company’s
total net sales increased by 28.8% to a record US$1,565.1 million in 2011, and
net sales of travel products increased by 33.9%. If we exclude the net sales
attributable to the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements, which were
terminated at the end of 2010, then net sales increased by US$399.1 million,
or 34.4%, an even stronger performance. Net sales of Lacoste and Timberland
products accounted for only 0.3% of total sales in 2011, versus 4.4% in 2010,
and will no longer have a material impact on 2012 performance.

The Company’s profit attributable to equity holders in 2011 was US$86.7
million, substantially ahead of the forecast of US$64.2 million included in the
prospectus prepared in connection with the Company’s listing in June.

If we look at the Company’s reported profit attributable to equity holders for the
year, on a like-for-like basis, it is useful for comparison purposes to adjust for the
impact of some non-recurring costs and non-cash items. Of these adjustments,
the most significant item is the reversal required by accounting standards of
US$379.8 million in 2010 of certain impairments originally recorded in 2008.
The other material item requiring adjustment was US$24.8 million in expenses
related to our IPO. If one does not adjust for these non-recurring costs and
non-cash items, our reported net income result does not reflect an accurate
picture of the strength of the underlying business and the excellent results that
have been achieved. After making the necessary adjustments, our net income
increased by 29.6% to US$136.8 million in 2011. If we also exclude the effect
of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements, the
percentage increase in this adjusted net income was substantially higher at
almost 56.6%.

— Samsonite International S.A.
8 Annual Report 2011

HEBREBBMIT LT AR RANER
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1,565 1 BEEBENHS  MkEE®RVEHE
EFEER EF33.9% o i FKMIHMER A 2010
£ R 1E 1Y Lacoste B Timberland 13 4 17 3%
L E R SHEFEA EA399.1 8
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K Timberland & @ MV 85 & F B8 E (520115
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201FEMFWA EF296%E 136888
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Earnings per share on an adjusted basis increased from US$0.08 per share in
2010 to US$0.10 per share in 2011. In light of our strong results and in line
with our intention of maintaining a progressive dividend policy as expressed
in the listing prospectus, the Board recommended that a cash distribution
in the amount of approximately
US$30.0 million, or US$0.02132
per share, be made to the
Company'’s shareholders.

The Company'’s total net sales

US$1,565.1 million in 2011.

The Company’s outstanding
results for the full year 2011 are due

to equity holders in 2011 was
to a number of factors including, Us$86.7 million, substantially
as previously mentioned, the
continuing growth in global
travel. In fact, international tourist
arrivals grew over 4% in 2011

to 980 million and are expected

R201MEF - AR B 2 #HEF
to grow at 3%-4% to reach 1
billion in 2012, according to the
latest UNWTO World Tourism
Barometer. Internally, we have
also worked hard on bringing new

products to market that are much

BEXTZHEM -

better targeted at meeting the differing consumer preferences in each region.
Over the past two years, we have revolutionzed the Company’s product lines
to ensure that they reflect local consumer tastes as well as include a range of
offerings at key price points relevant to our two main brands, Samsonite and
American Tourister. In addition, we have continued to develop innovative designs
that meet our customers’ continuously evolving requirements for lighter, stronger
and more maneuverable luggage. We have supported these R&D initiatives with
an increased investment in marketing worldwide to strengthen brand visibility in an
otherwise fragmented global luggage market. As a result of these strategies, we
have not only benefited from growth in global travel, but we have also increased
our market share in many key regions.

increased by 28.8% to a record

The Company'’s profit attributable

ahead of the forecast of US$64.2
million included in the prospectus.

AL
F288% : Al1,565. 1 BEEETMHS °
200MF - AR AEZHFEAELRZRA
S6.7TEEER EEBREEMEB264.2

Sams$nite

REABRBEEFENEREFIH2010FM
HR0.08ET LA ZE2011EMER0.105E
T ERIRMNEMEERBELTE
BRARMRESFREREBERNER -
EESEZLUBRSHALQT
REKBAN30.0FEEARE
BR0.02132%E 7T ©
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BB EE T RREADR
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Chairman’s Statement *=&z#4

Samsonite, our core brand, continues to underpin the Company’s performance
worldwide, with net sales increasing by 33.3% to US$1,223.4 million in 2011.
Our entry-level brand, American Tourister, captured strong momentum in Asia,
where most of the brand’s sales growth of 55.1% to US$249.9 million was
achieved in 2011.

During the full year 2011, the Company recorded solid sales growth across
all four of our regions of Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.
A key factor contributing to this result is our decentralized marketing, sales,
product development and sourcing functions which allow us not only to ensure
that we closely consider customer preferences when designing products for
each region but also enable decisions to be made more quickly and closer to
where the impact will be felt. A decentralized structure is particularly important
as consumer tastes and distribution channels for luggage products vary
significantly across regions and even from country to country within a region.

In 2011, Samsonite’s business in Asia benefited from the growth of the emerging
middle class, increasing levels of disposable income and the continuing growth
in travel, making the region our largest, fastest growing and most profitable.
Net sales in Asia increased by a positive 48.1% (excluding the impact of Lacoste
and Timberland), driven by China

Samsonite, our core brand,

continues to underpin the

and India where the American
Tourister brand plays a central role
in our strategy of recruiting new
adopters of international brands . . i
at an affordable price. Net sales with net sales Increasing by
in China and India increased by
57.4% and 41.1%, respectively,
while the more mature markets
of Japan and South Korea also
saw encouraging sales growth of
42.3% and 50.3%, respectively,
in 2011. It is worth pointing out
that the Company had its best
year in Australia, and although
the base is presently small, we
have great expectations for the
Indonesian market in coming

American Tourister, captured

was achieved in 2011.

years. In Asia, our sales strategy
is @ more retail-oriented model,
with a high proportion of sales
being made through our own
stores, through concessions we
operate in department stores, or through preferred dealers who operate
Samsonite-branded retail stores. In this context, it is noteworthy that we added
over 400 points of sale in this region during 2011, bringing the total points of
sale to over 5,600 outlets. Over the coming years we expect Asia to remain our
most important geography fueled by rising incomes and an increasing desire
for people in this region to travel.

— Samsonite International S.A.
10 Annual Report 2011

Company’s performance worldwide,

33.3% to US$1,223.4 million
in 2011. Our entry-level brand,

strong momentum in Asia, where
most of the brand’s sales growth
of 55.1% to US$249.9 million

KPR O mETSERBEZIFTAR AT R
RIB M2ONMNFHEFELEA3B3I%E
1,223.ABE =T o HMBYAFY MR American
Tourister ASE MRV B4 R EATESRS) - MR AEEHERE
20115 ES5.1% E249.9FBET ©

BN RLORETEEREIERAT
FIRERE > R0 FEHEFELA333%
BI2BABEEZET - BB AMRE
American Tourister /A T8 M By 2% |R 22 T 38
Y RIEHEEFEN201MEERSS1%E
2499EBBETT °
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In the more mature regions of North America (which includes the United
States and Canada) and Europe, we fared very well in 2011, a testament to
the resilience of our brands. Net sales in North America increased by 29.7%
(excluding Lacoste and Timberland) despite the highly competitive nature of
this market. Our success in North America has been due in large part to the
significant changes we have made to the overall design of our products and
the depth of our product range to accommodate evolving consumer needs. In
addition, we worked closely with our key retail customers in this market over
the course of 2011 to ensure that they have appropriately tailored products
to meet margin and price-point requirements. Our Company-owned retail
stores in outlet centers across North America have also enjoyed a very strong
year with like-for-like growth of 25.4% in 2011 (on a constant currency basis).

Our European business posted an excellent year-on-year increase in sales of
27.6% (excluding Lacoste and Timberland) despite the Eurozone crisis. It is
important to note that our business in most of the European markets has been
relatively insulated from the impact of the crisis, particularly in markets such
as Greece and Portugal where the Company currently has a small amount of
turnover. Our sales growth in the region was led by Germany and France, which
clocked an increase of 30.9% and 26.6%, respectively, followed by Italy and
Spain. Italy and Spain, which together account for just under a quarter of the
Company’s European sales, posted solid sales growth of 17.8% (excluding
Lacoste and Timberland which had a bigger impact on Italy) and 14.8%,
respectively. Much of the success of our European business has been due to
three very strong product ranges: Cosmolite and Cubelite, which use Curv
material, and B-Lite, a range of super-light soft luggage.

The Company’s net sales in Latin America increased 23.5% (excluding Lacoste
and Timberland), driven by Chile and Mexico (which together account for just
under three-quarters of our business in the region) where sales were up by
25.0% and 19.3%, respectively. In Argentina, sales were largely unchanged
at US$14.2 million from the previous year due to government restrictions on
imports imposed in 2011.

Travel products are the Company'’s traditional strength and largest product
category by far, currently accounting for 75.8% of the Company’s net sales
at US$1,186.7 million in 2011, an increase of 33.9% compared to 2010. We
continue to launch innovative products for travel, with the highlights of last
year being the Cubelite addition to the Curv range, the extension of the B-Lite
range (including a successful North American derivative) and the launch of a
new Hybrid concept, offering the best features of both hard-side and soft-
side luggage. Special mention must be made of the Company’s achievement
in reaching 1 million units sold of our Cosmolite hard-sided suitcases at the
end of the year.
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Chairman’s Statement *=&z#4

In 2011 we also continued to make excellent progress with the business
and casual categories, in which the Company has been historically under-
represented. Net sales in the business product category increased by 71.8%
to US$189.6 million in 2011, while net sales in the casual product category
increased by 32.4% in 2011 excluding Lacoste and Timberland. Our performance
has been strong in these categories across all regions, buoyed by an increased
focus on developing innovative products and ranges to suit local customer
preferences. Also worth mentioning is the accessories category where the
Company has taken several licenses back in-house and achieved net sales of
US$70.8 million, a year-on-year increase of 41.0%.

Over the course of 2011, the Company remained consistent with its strategy
of increasing marketing spend broadly in line with sales as we are convinced
that the global recognition of our brands is a major source of competitive
advantage and an important driver of the long run profitability of our business.
Investment in marketing increased over the year by 19.9% to US$122.8 million,
and currently stands at 7.8% of net sales. Over time, we expect to raise the
marketing spend behind our brands significantly in absolute terms and broadly
in line with sales growth.

For the future, we remain optimistic in our ability to preserve current gross
margin levels despite inevitable inflationary pressure on costs resulting from
higher prices of commodity goods and labor which will be felt by all players
in the market. While we are confident that we can continue to factor in a
significant proportion of these cost increases into our product pricing, we
are working closely with our manufacturing partners to improve their cost
effectiveness as well as reviewing new sources for inputs and production. We
have successfully doubled the capacity of our plant in Szekszard, Hungary and
are poised to introduce new lines to our Curv range.

At the half-year, we noted that inventories had risen to support increased
service levels and new product introductions. In 2011, our inventory days were
virtually unchanged from last year at 118 days compared to 117 days in 2010.

Capital expenditure increased from US$29.6 million in 2010 to US$37.2 million
in 2011, mainly due to investment in the plant extension in Hungary. The
Company expects to increase investment in expanding our retail distribution
channel, particularly in Asia, over the next few years, and envisage a sustainable
level of around US$40 million in annual capital expenditure in the future. Next
year's capital expenditure budget is approximately US$43 million.

Following the Company’s listing, we used a portion of our IPO proceeds and
cash-in-hand to repay debt. The strong cash flows generated by the business
have contributed to a healthy balance sheet and a net cash position of US$126.2
million at the end of 2011, providing us with a solid platform for future growth.

— Samsonite International S.A.
12 Annual Report 2011
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Given the excellent results achieved by the Company in 2011, we will continue

to maintain the course of our existing strategy, which is to:

e leverage the strength of the Company’s brands, Samsonite and American
Tourister;

e tailor our products to meet local requirements, while staying true to our core
values of lightness, strength and innovation;

e improve the efficiency and effectiveness of our supply chain and global
distribution network;

e increase our marketing and R&D investment broadly in line with worldwide
sales growth;

e deploy increased levels of resources to improve our market share of business
and casual products and accessories, where the Company is under-represented;
and

e focus on achieving growth organically, while considering acquisition
opportunities with a compelling strategic and financial rationale as they arise.

Following a difficult period in the global economy, there are signs that some
stabilization is beginning to take hold. As mentioned previously, most markets in
Europe have been relatively resilient, with only a few being significantly affected
by sovereign debt problems. Asia and most of Latin America continue to shine,
and the US economy seems to be in a steady recovery. As the global economy
stabilizes, we expect global travel to continue to grow, and with that the global
market for luggage. Indeed, the global luggage market is forecast to grow by
5% CAGR to reach US$31.6 billion in retail sales value by 2015'. We believe
we will be able to capture much of this growth as a result of our continuing
investment in new technology, our brands and distribution network. With our
solid balance sheet, proven strategy and effective execution, the Company is
well placed to implement its growth plans and to further reinforce its position
as the global market leader in travel goods.

Finally, I would like to pay tribute to all of my colleagues in the many countries
we trade in, and in all departments of the Company; without their unstinting
support and hard work, we would not have been able to achieve these results,
and we look forward to maintaining this positive trend in the future.

////’k’\ ////,(J

T Source: Report by Frost & Sullivan commissioned by the Company in connection with the
listing of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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side product Samsonite has ever
produced. Cosmolite won the

2 2A
ﬁé—'ii E ETJ' A Eﬁi ﬁ*ﬁ' prestigious Red Dot Design Award
in 2010 and cumulative sales

reached one million pieces by the
end of 2011.
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Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the
“Company”) is the world’s largest travel luggage company, with a heritage
dating back more than 100 years. The Company is principally engaged in
the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and
computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, and travel accessories throughout the
world, primarily under the Samsonite® and American Tourister® brand names
as well as other owned and licensed brand names. The Company’s core brand,
Samsonite, is one of the most well-known travel luggage brands in the world.

The Company sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution
channels and through its company operated retail stores. Its principal luggage
wholesale distribution customers are department and specialty retail stores,
mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Company sells
its products in Asia, Europe, North America and Latin America. As of December
31,2011, the Company’s products were sold in more than 40,000 points of
sale in over 100 countries.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation adopted in the
current year. None of the changes impacts the Company’s previously reported
consolidated net sales, gross profit, operating profit, income tax expense, profit
for the year, earnings per share, or statement of financial position.

Global Offering and Use of Proceeds
The Company completed an initial public offering of its ordinary shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 16,
2011 (the “Global Offering”), at which time
671.2 million shares were sold at a unit price of
HK$14.50. Out of these 671.2 million shares,
121.1 million shares were newly issued shares
sold by the Company and 550.1 million shares
were previously issued shares sold by existing
shareholders. The Company’s remaining 735.9
million issued and outstanding shares were not
sold in connection with the Global Offering and,
at the time of the Global Offering, continued to
be held by the shareholders who held such shares
immediately prior to the Global Offering.

The Company received gross proceeds of

HK$1,756.0 million corresponding to a capital increase of US$225.3 million at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. In connection with
the transaction, the Company incurred costs amounting to US$33.7 million, of
which US$8.9 million were related to the issue and listing of new shares and
were recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital. The remaining costs
of US$24.8 million were recognized as an expense in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 gt 8247

Prior to the completion of the Global Offering, on June 10, 2011 the Company
became the parent company of the consolidated subsidiaries. The beneficial
owners of the ordinary shares of Delilah Holdings S.a r.I. (“OldCo"), the previous
parent company of the consolidated subsidiaries, contributed their ordinary
shares in OldCo to the Company in consideration for the issue of ordinary
shares in the Company.

1974 The 78.0 million preference shares of OldCo
I that were previously outstanding were
Samsonite revolutionizes  redeemed and canceled on June 10, 2011 in
travel with the first
suitcase on wheels.
FEBELEREWEN
BT ITEAE ©

consideration for the beneficial owners of the
preference shares receiving (i) A loan notes
issued by OldCo with a principal equal to the
nominal value of the A preference shares and
the total share premium reserve attaching
to the A preference shares for an aggregate
principal value of US$77.0 million (the “A Loan Notes”) and
(ii) B loan notes issued by OldCo with a principal equal to the
nominal value of the B preference shares plus the accrued B
preference share reserve for an aggregate principal value of
Ay US$24.0 million (the “B Loan Notes” and, together with the

A Loan Notes, the “Loan Notes”). The Loan Notes received a

commercial rate of interest.

The Company utilized a portion of its proceeds to repay in full the US$101.0
million outstanding balance of its Loan Notes. The Company utilized the
remaining proceeds, along with cash on hand, to repay the outstanding principal
balance of US$221.6 million on its former amended senior credit facility and
the outstanding principal and accrued interest of US$59.2 million on its former
term loan facility. The Company was in a net cash position of US$126.2 million
(excluding deferred financing costs of US$3.3 million) as of December 31, 2011.

On July 8, 2011, the over-allotment option referred to in the Offering
Circular was partially exercised by the Joint Global Coordinators on behalf
of the International Underwriters, thereby requiring the funds
managed by CVC Capital Partners Limited (the “CVC Funds”)
and the Royal Bank of Scotland (“RBS"), members of the selling
shareholder group, to sell 24.7 million additional shares, which
represented approximately 3.7% of the shares initially offered

under the Global Offering before any exercise
of the over-allotment option. These additional
shares were sold by the CVC Funds and RBS at
HK$14.50 per share, being the offer price per
share under the Global Offering. The Company
did not sell any additional shares upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option. Pursuant
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American Tourister captured
strong momentum in Asia,
where net sales grew by
77.1% in 2011.
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to an agreement between the Company and the Joint Global Coordinators,
the Company received proceeds of US$3.5 million on profits recognized by the
Joint Global Coordinators from the exercise of the over-allotment option (the
“Stabilization Proceeds”).

Please refer to note 6 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for further details on the Global Offering.

Net Sales

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total net sales.

Fe AR B H EAE MR SMRAD - IRIEAR DT
BE 2 RRIBFAAR ML 2 - AD B FhEE
BB FATEB RO RERTD BTSN
HISEBER ([BEEKRRE]D) -

EHRRBENE-DFHE - FSHBENER
BEIBMRAOMITEG o

HEFHE

TREHEZ2011F12831HK20105F
NRANNBALEFEREEE D HNHEFEP
4 SUBEHERAG SRR E DL PIER o

BZ12B318LFE
Year ended December 31,
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2011 2010 2011 vs 2010
FEr SHEFRERIL FET SHEFHEAAL B OR4) Bt
Us$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales % increase (decrease)

Net sales by region:
iR E DA ERE

Asia Z2)M 578,316 37.0% 405,143 33.3% 42.7%
Europe BUM 479,089 30.6% 406,696 33.5% 17.8%'
North America 1t 3EM 388,190 24.8% 302,968 24.9% 28.1%
Latin America :7T =M 108,601 6.9% 88,960 7.3% 22.1%
Corporate 13 10,951 0.7% 11,540 1.0% (5.1)%
Net Sales $HE& /548 1,565,147 100.0% 1,215,307 100.0% 28.8%

Note FizF

T Excluding the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements, net sales in the Company’s European region increased

by 27.6% for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

R4 L Lacoste R Timberland iR FEG RN E - BE2011F 12831 B LFEA R TARBMN I BRIHE FEBREFIZMN27.6% ©

Net sales increased by US$399.1 million, or 34.4%, for the year ended December
31, 2011 compared to the previous year, excluding the effect of the termination
of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements, which were no longer
active from December 2010.

Net sales increased across all of the Company’s regions. Including net sales
attributable to the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements, net sales
increased by US$349.8 million, or 28.8%, to US$1,565.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011 from US$1,215.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2011 increased by US$295.7 million, or 24.3%, compared
to the previous year.

The Company'’s Lacoste license expired at the end of 2010. The Company also
elected to exit its Timberland license at the same time to focus its efforts on
strengthening its core Samsonite and American Tourister product offerings and
products in the business and casual categories.
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Brand
Stewardship

“We are convinced that the global
recognition of our brands is a major
source of competitive advantage and

an important driver of the long run
profitability of our business.”

e
EFRERMARREEENAEE  REEANEERFED
WHRMABREBFNNEZEES D °

A 1916 photo of /"=
Samsonite founder '’
Jesse Shwayder, his three brothers
and their father Isaac, captioned
"Strong enough to stand on"
was an early promotional success.
Nearly one hundred years later,
the image is used on
Samsonite's premium lines.
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Brands

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, both in absolute terms

and as a percentage of total net sales.

am h

paN

pal

TREFNEZ2011F12831BKR 20105128
31HIEEERREE

HYSHEFERAAMA - L

BHERGHEFRRETILLIER

Net sales by brand:

RmhEEI D WEHEFE ¢
Samsonite #TF5EE
American Tourister
Lacoste / Timberland’

Other Hth?

Net Sales 5658

Notes Kz

FEx
US$°000

1,223,353

249,873
4,661
87,260

1,565,147

BZ12A310LEFE
Year ended December 31,

2011

SHERERIL
% of net sales

78.2%
16.0%
0.3%
5.5%

100.0%

20114RB2010F LR

2010 2011 vs 2010

FEr SHEFHEAAL B OR2) Bt
Us$'000 % of net sales % increase (decrease)
917,792 15:5% 33.3%
161,117 13.3% 55.1%
53,934 4.4% 91.4)%
82,464 6.8% 5.8%

Y 245307 100.0% 28.8%

T The Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements were no longer active from December 2010. Net sales of the Lacoste and Timberland brands in
2011 relate to the sales of residual product on hand at December 31, 2010.
Lacoste R Timberland#Z % 120105 12 A ##& 1L ° Lacoste R Timberland iR 2011 S M SHEEFEER B 20105 12 A3 A FERBER ©

2 Other includes local brands Saxoline and Xtrem.

Hth B 3E A B Saxoline e Xtrem ©

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$305.6 million, or 33.3%, for
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Net sales of
the American Tourister brand increased by US$88.8 million, or 55.1%, for the
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Asia accounted
for US$79.5 million, or 89.6%, of the US$88.8 million increase in American

Tourister brand sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the
previous year. These increases were attributable to expanded product offerings

and further penetration of existing markets, which were all supported by the

Company’s targeted advertising activities.

We have continued
to develop innovative
designs that meet our

customers’ continuously

evolving requirements

for lighter, stronger and

more maneuverable
luggage. Samsonite’s
2012 new products

include Litesphere (left)

and Firelite (right).
BRIORER R AR
LU EEFHERD
FREREBETER
TENERZHER -
FEB2012FEHER
B4E Litesphere (£) &
Firelite (&) °

BZE2NENRANNBLEEENTERE
HEEFEREFIEMIGCEEET
$333% c B E2011F 128318 L& E
American Tourister fa 2 Y SH & F BB L F
888 E B X LE55.1% ° B E201145F

12A31ALEFEE
American Tourister
mEEEERE
FERSSSEEXE
JT 0 H o3 A
95EBERR
89.6% ° ZEIER
TIHREARRTH
BEAREmE R R
RBEREMS
It hn £ B et ¥R
EEEEEHXE
TRsE ©
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Product Categories

The Company sells products in four principal product categories: travel, business,
casual and accessories. Travel is by far the Company’s largest product category
and has been the Company’s traditional strength. The following table sets forth
a breakdown of net sales by product category for the years ended December
31,2011 and December 31, 2010, both in absolute terms and as a percentage
of total net sales.

EmER
AATHENERTENBEEEERER
R B KEREY - BESHIE - FREE
BRIARAARAERER  BAQTAESR
FeysRIE - TREIIEZE2011F 128310
2010 12 A3 AL EERERERNE D
WISHEFRERM - WBHERGHEFES
EAEHDLEYIER o

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

20116 EE2010F LB}
2011 2010 2011 vs 2010
Fxx HETFEEIL =70 HEFHEIL BN 0RL) B
US$'000 % of net sales Us$'000 % of net sales % increase (decrease)
Net sales by product category:
REMERESNHEFE
Travel jk3# 1,186,683 885,944 72.9% 33.9%
Business &% 189,582 110,321 9.1% 71.8%
Casual (excl. Lacoste & Timberland) 77,188 58,279 4.8% 32.4%
R (B LacosteR Timberland)
Casual (Lacoste & Timberland only)’ 4,661 53,934 4.4% (91.49)%
YR (LacosteR Timberland)'
Accessories Bt 70,786 50,186 41% 41.0%
Other Efh 36,247 56,643 4.7% (36.0)%
Net Sales $HEF 28 1,565,147 1,215,307 100.0% 28.8%
Note FizE

T The Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements were no longer active from December 2010. Net sales of the Lacoste and Timberland brands in

2011 relate to the sales of residual product on hand at December 31, 2010.

Lacoste ] Timberland 2 520105 12 A B4R LE © Lacoste % Timberland & 2011 M SSEEF SR B 2010512 B3 1 B FERBER ©

The US$349.8 million increase in net sales for the year ended December 31,
2011 compared to the previous year was largely driven by an increase in net
sales in the travel product category, which increased by US$300.7 million, or
33.9%. Net sales in the business product category increased by US$79.3 million,
or 71.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous
year, reflecting the Company’s efforts to further penetrate the business bag
market. Excluding the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland
licensing agreements, net sales in the casual product category increased by
US$18.9 million, or 32.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to
the previous year, reflecting the Company’s strategic focus to expand its casual
product offerings. Net sales in the accessories product category increased by
US$20.6 million, or 41.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared
to the previous year, reflecting expanded accessories product offerings. Net sales
in the other product category decreased by US$20.4 million, or 36.0%, for the
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year, reflecting the
Company'’s focus on its core product offerings.

HZE2011F12A3MBILLEE  HEFHEER
EFIEBM308EEER  TERNRIREE
MEREEFHEER07TEEEZ TR
339%° BE2011F12A31BLELEE &
BEREANHEEFEREFERTIIEE
ERXTR71.8%  RREADDMNE—FBE
EEEEMBER - MR kLlacoste &
Timberland R EHZNFE  (KEEMER
REZ201ME12A31AILEENHEEFEE
BREFIEBRI1BIBEENS32.4% » REA
ABRHDERNBERRIINERE - BE
20MEF12A31ALFE  BEHERERN
HEFEREFEMOBEEEZ T
41.0% » REUBEARBHERRS - BE2011
F12A31ALEE  HhERBAINHEE
FHEREFRD204HEETH36.0% 0 K
MAA R HRREZOERRY

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Distribution Channels

The Company sells products in two primary distribution channels: wholesale and
retail. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by distribution
channel for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, both
in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales.

DEHRE
AAFEEMELTESHREHEER  #t
BREE - TRHIBZE2011F12A318
R2010FE12A31BEFESDHRENE
EFEMNPEMA  UBHERLHE FHEE
BoLEHER ©

BZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

20114 E220104F LL 8

2011 2010 2011 vs 2010
FET HEFEEIL F=iT WEFBEEDLL i (D) Bk
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales % increase (decrease)

Net sales by distribution channel:

ROHRBEDHHE T :

Wholesale #tz 1,252,893 971,743 80.0% 28.9%
Retail =& 301,301 230,373 19.0% 30.8%
Other EAth' 10,953 13,191 1.0% (17.00%
Net Sales $HE&F48 1,565,147 1,215,307 100.0% 28.8%

Note HizE
T "Other" primarily consists of licensing income.
[Hfth ] TZBFERERA -

During the year ended [7% —
December 31, 2011, the He

Company expanded its points
of sale by approximately
2,900 to over 40,000 points
of sale worldwide. Over
2,300 points of sale were
added in North America and
over 400 points of sale were
added in Asia during 2011.

The wholesale channel
accounted for US$281.2
million, or 80.4%, of the US$349.8 million increase in net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Net sales in the
retail channel increased by US$70.9 million, or 30.8%, to US$301.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011 from US$230.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. On a same store constant currency basis, net sales in the
retail channel increased by 19.0% compared to the previous year. Net sales in
the “other” channel decreased by US$2.2 million, or 17.0%, for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year, primarily as a result of the
Company’s decision to terminate certain licensing agreements with third parties
and to sell the formerly licensed products directly to its customers.

HZE2011E1283181LEF
E - RATIEFRL2,9001E
SHED  ERREERBB
40,0001 $5 £ Bt - 742011
F o R EMAMEEM D Bl
S 4% 381 2,300 &2 140018 48
g2

BE201M1E128318LEE
ENHEFEREFEER
349.8EEE L HAp#Hb s
REMG22I12BEEERTH
80.4% c TEREHHE
FEMEZE2010F12831BIEEER?2304
BEXRTEMI09BEXRTH30.8% ZHE
201MF 12831 HIEFEMN3013EEET °
ZEREHEEEEEE  SERENHEE
FHREFER19.0% c TERRAQTR
ERIES=FETREERERTIEEZOEE
FPHEXAFTIER  BE2011F12831
BLEFENIHEM] RENHEFERESF
W2 2BBETR17.0% °
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Sams$nite

A

Balanced

Global Business

Samsonite is the world’s largest travel luggage company.
Our net sales increased by 28.8% year-on-year to a record
US$1,565.1 million in 2011. Our products are sold in more
than 40,000 points of sale in over 100 countries.

Our Regions We achieved strong double digit net sales growth in 2011 across
all four regions we operate in: Asia, North America, Europe and Latin America.

Net Sales - Regional Breakdown'

HEFE —HEAD

7%

5% 34%

2010
Asia @ Europe North America
CED) B LM

7%

2011

Latin America

AT EM

! Region total excludes Corporate external licensing revenues, which constitutes about
1% of total net sales
WRATTREFELEIDNRBERA - BBR T FHELTENN1%
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Net sales for the Asian region increased by US$187.4 million,
or 48.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared

to the previous year, excluding the effect of the termination of

the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements.

Including net sales attributable to the Lacoste and Timberland licensing
agreements, net sales for the Company’s Asian region increased by US$173.2

Asia’s net sales
increased by

48.1% year-on-year
(excluding Lacoste
and Timberland) and
continues to be our
largest, fastest and

most profitable region.

SNMEHE FRIRF EH48.1%
(3B Lacoste &2 Timberland FIS/£) >
WHERAKMRER - ERERRER
BReMHE -

million, or 42.7%, to US$578.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011 from US$405.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales for
the Asian region increased by US$149.7 million,
or 37.0%, for the year ended December 31,
2011 compared to the previous year.

Net sales continued to grow across all major
and emerging markets in Asia. The US$173.2
million increase in net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2011 was driven by the
Samsonite and American Tourister brands.
Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased
by US$113.1 million, or 42.1%, and net sales
of the American Tourister brand increased
by US$79.5 million, or 77.1%, compared to
the year ended December 31, 2010. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease of

US$14.2 million in Lacoste and Timberland net sales as a result of the termination

of the licensing agreements in December 2010 and a US$5.2 million decrease

in other brands.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$152.4 million, or
54.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

Net Sales
HEFHE

Us$(m) Xx(E#E)

700 —

600 —

BZ201MF1N2A3BLEE AQAFE
NEWHEEFESEFEMSTIEESR
JC 3048.1% » bt T3 8 M BR 4% 1k Lacoste &
Timberland IR FERH RN L o

AAREMNEREEFEE (5 K Lacoste &
Timberland e R EGSHEF5E) AEZE
2010 12A31HLEFEMI05.1BEET
WIN73.2BBETR42.7% BEHE2011E
12A31BEEEMS/83EBETT ° Mk
EREE EEEJHIEEE@OHEQH%HJL
FEMNHEETFEREFEM407THES
37.0% ©

TN FEEERTETSNEEFETE
BIFEEE - BE2011F 128318 LEE
W173. 2B B E TS FRIZIERRIT
FEEER American Tourister B o 25 @b
WEEFEREE2010F12831HLLEE
WM113.1 88Xt sk42.1% » M American
Tourister iR M SH & FEEEE £ 2010F 12 A
31ALEFEEM7ISBERTHT7.1% ° It
£ 1% K 305 W Lacoste B Timberland HISEE&
FHERBERZER2010F 128K IETRD
M2EBETREMBERIS2BEEET
FAKSH -

REEREANNHEEFEREZ20115F12
A31BLEEREAFERIS2AEEBERR
549%  c AR ERBRNBEEFHERAESR
2010 12A3TAELEFENITEEEIR
EEEMBB—EZZ28£E2011F128318

173.256
42.7 %

Adjusted EBITDA
FWEEBITDA

25.05x
31.2%

Us$(m) Xx(E#E)

120 —

$578.3

~— Samsonite International S.A.
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Net sales in the business product category more than doubled compared to the
previous year to US$100.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from
US$49.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Net sales in the casual
product category increased by US$3.1 million, or 14.6%, for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year, excluding the effect of the
termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements. Net sales in
the other product category decreased by US$23.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year as the Company focuses
on its core product offerings.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$153.5 million, or 44.3%, to
US$500.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from US$346.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010. Net sales in the retail channel increased
by US$21.3 million, or 37.4%, to US$78.3 million for the year ended December
31,2011 compared to the previous year. On a same store constant currency basis,
net sales in the retail channel increased by 17.1% year over year.

These increases were a result of the Company’s continued focus on country
specific product and marketing strategies within Asia to capitalize on the
increasing awareness of and demand for its products. Over 400 points of sale
were added in Asia during 2011, bringing the Company’s total points of sale
in Asia to more than 5,600 as of December 31, 2011. The general economic
growth within the region and the expanding middle class and their increasing
travel related expenditure, particularly in China and India, also contributed to
the strong sales performance.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Asian
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.

IEEEMI00.8FEET - (KEERERIR
HZE2011F12831 B L FEENHEETEE
EEEHAIIEBEETH14.6% » bk T & H
& #& Lk Lacoste ] Timberland 43 4 17 3% 19 £
2o HRAQARBNHAREROVERRS -
HZE20ME12A31BLEFEHMERER
HHEFEREFERD 23 6BEET ©

B RBENHEEFEAEE2010F12 831
BLEFEM3465ABETEMIS3SHE
ERXHA43% BEE2011F12A31HLEF
ER500.0HBET - TEREMNHEFE
BEFER2IZEBERNITA%ZHE
2011512831 BILEEMN783EEXT °
ZEREHEEERERE  FANSERE
HEHE FHEBAI—FEIBR17.1% °

ZEFRERBARQAEEMSESFER
BARNERREHERE  UBEATERA
WIRFAMNMEENER o A201M1F > £
METIBBIBA0OEHESR - SADTRN2011
F12H831 BEEMNE HEHES,6001EHE
2o ERRELSEIERUARTFEASEME
HRTHBHEIER (REEPERD
E) » TLHEREHMKRE -

TRHFHEZ20115F12831H &2010F
12831 B 1L FE T E R it = 2] 2 7Y 8
EFEPMA  UEBHERGHEFEEFE
MEEE DGR o

BZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

2011

20114 E220104F LL 82
2010 2011 vs 2010

FTEn HEHEFHEED L

FTET HEHEEFHEEDIL

B0 (RiD) BoLE

US$'000 % of regional net sales US$'000 % of regional net sales % increase (decrease)

Net sales by geographic location’:
R EE D HIHE TR

China HE 144,594 25.0% 91,844 22.7% 57.4%
India ENEE 109,846 19.0% 77,852 19.2% 41.1%
South Korea F$2 93,969 16.2% 62,531 15.4% 50.3%
Japan B4 51,984 9.0% 36,528 9.0% 42 3%
Hong Kong &8’ 48,392 8.4% 42,481 10.5% 13.9%
Other EAth 129,531 22.4% 93,907 23.2% 37.9%
Net Sales $HE FE8 578,316 100.0% 405,143 100.0% 42.7%
Notes Kfz

1 The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.

ARARHEFENBEIARREEERNER - YT —ERKIHEEEBRTENER
2 Includes Macau.

BIEEP ©
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B
Net sales for the European region increased by
US$103.0 million, or 27.6%, for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous
year, excluding the effect of the termination of the

Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements.

Including net sales attributable to the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements,
net sales for the Company’s European region increased by US$72.4 million, or
17.8%, to US$479.1 million for the year ended

December 31, 2011 from US$406.7 million for

the year ended December 31, 2010. Excluding

foreign currency effects, net sales for the

European region increased by US$46.0 million,

or 11.3%, for the year ended December 31,

2011 compared to the previous year.

The US$72.4 million increase in net sales

for the year ended December 31, 2011 was ~ EUMAVEEE FREIRF EF27.6%
primarily due to a US$95.9 million, or 26.8%,  (fififkLacosteF Timberlandfy

increase in net sales of the Samsonite brand.

Net sales of the American Tourister brand

increased by US$5.6 million, or 61.9%, for the year ended December 31,
2011 compared to the previous year. These increases were partially offset by a
US$30.6 million decrease in Lacoste and Timberland sales for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$73.1 million, or 24.0%,
for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year, reflecting
the success of the Company’s Cosmolite, Cubelite and B-Lite product lines,
strong sell-through of new product introductions in the travel category and
an effective marketing strategy. Net sales in the business product category
increased by US$11.1 million, or 32.8%, for the year ended December 31,
2011 compared to the previous year. Excluding the effect of the termination
of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements, net sales in the casual
product category increased by US$8.2 million. This increase was more than
three times casual product net sales in 2010, reflecting the Company’s focus
on the expansion of its casual product offerings. Net sales attributable to the
Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements decreased by US$30.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

Net sales in the wholesale channel = —
increased by US$51.5 million, or 15.2%, &_——\
for the year ended December 31, 2011 o
compared to the previous year. Net sales l

e

in the retail channel increased by US$20.9

W\

— Samsonite International S.A.
26 Annual Report 2011
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ARA B RN B A EEEFEE (5§ Lacoste &

Timberland RER R FE(L SH & F58) HEBIZ

2010512 A31H L FEM406.7 B EETTIE
M72ABEERH17.8% Z8HE
2011512831 B IEFEER479.1
BEET MBRWERZE M
HEREF201MF128318 1
FEMHEEFEREFIEML6.0
BEETH113%

BZE2011E128318ILEE
HEFHEERNIFEETE
EHRFETERENEETE
&) #MEROSOHBETH268% -

HZ200MFE12A831BIEEE

American Tourister i & ) 84 &
FHEBREAFEMS6AEERTHG9% ° It
£ 12 iE 2R 5 ¥ Lacoste B Timberland A 8 &
20MF12A3BLFENHERREFR
D306 EEETIKS -

HZE201MF12A31BIEFEFENKREERE
BN EFEREFERTZIEEERR
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HEFERLIFERNIBEERLH
32.8% ° W4 1E Lacoste B Timberland ¥S 4
WENFE KEERERNHEEFEER
82EEBET - WIEERSKEEMMN2010F
FEEEFEaH=FULE  RRAQATEE
HREKBEERRSY - BE2011F12831
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million, or 30.9% for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the £t 530.9% - REREFHNE EE ¥ E
previous year. On a same store constant currency basis, net sales in the retail %% FRATEREBENHEEFERFER
channel increased by 14.8% year over year. 14.8% °

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the European T &R & %] # 22011512 A31H %20105F
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 12831 B It FERBMNEEXNBES 5 K
December 31,2010, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional ~ $§&F2EHM » UEHERGHEHEF
net sales. FRAREER DL DIER o

BZE12A310LEE
Year ended December 31, 20114 E220104F LL 8

2011 2010 2011 vs 2010

FTErT HEHEFHEAILL 1250 (R4 Bt
US$'000 % of regional net sales % increase (decrease)

Net sales by geographic location’:
Rt BEISHHETFE

Italy Z A 69,191 17.0% (2.4)%?
Germany 2B 46,671 11.5% 30.9%
France B 48,206 11.9% 26.6%
Belgium LLFIe%> 50,996 12.5% 16.8%
Spain BEHEF 40,929 10.1% 14.8%
Other Hfty // 150,703 37.0% 21.4%
Net Sales $5E&F%8 W W 406,696 100.0% 17.8%

Notes Ktz

T The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the
country in which its end consumers were actually located.

ARRHEFANBEIFRREEERNER - YT —ERKIHEEEBRTENER -

2 Includes US$1.1 million and US$12.8 million of sales related to the Lacoste and Timberland licensed business for the years ended December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Excluding these amounts, net sales increased by US$10.1 million, or 17.8%.
stRBE2011FK2010512A31 B ILFEE » Blacoste ] Timberland A& BN HE S BRI BBX T2 8EEET - MBRZSHE - HEFRERI01BEE
JTR17.8% °©

3 Net sales in Belgium consisted of US$24.4 million and US$17.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, an increase
of US$7.1 million, or 41.0%. Remaining sales were direct shipments to distributors, customers and agents in other countries.
BZE2011FER2010F12A31BLLFE - ZHAIRNHEEFESBEFE44FBEIRI73EEET  BR7IBBETNA1.0% « R THHEREERE FHMEIRN
DE - BEURNAER °

sl US$(m)
2'.%;%';5 72.4:55 g(g]lgted EBITDA 11.050,
i {EAEEBITDA
17.8% 15.1%
US$(m) £(EE) -
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4t 3 M
North
America

Net sales in the North American region
increased by US$88.7 million, or 29.7%, for
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared
to the previous year, excluding the effect of
the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland
licensing agreements.

Including net sales attributable to the Lacoste and Timberland licensing
agreements, net sales for the North American region increased by US$85.2
million, or 28.1%, to US$388.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011
from US$303.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales for the North American region increased by US$83.8
million, or 27.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the
previous year.

The US$85.2 million increase in net sales was primarily due to a 35.8% increase
in net sales of Samsonite brand products to US$335.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011 from US$247.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2010. Net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$4.8 million, or
11.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.
These increases were partially offset by a US$3.5 million decrease in Lacoste and
Timberland sales and a US$4.5 million decrease in other brand sales.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$69.4 million, or 26.7 %,
to US$329.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from US$259.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Net sales in the business product
category increased by US$13.1 million, or 76.2%, for the year ended December
31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Net sales in the accessories product
category within North America increased by US$5.5 million, or 73.4%, for the
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

BE20MENRANBLFELENNE
WEEFEREFEMBTBEEET
:29.7% ¢ Ik T3 & WM BR #& Lk Lacoste &
Timberland IR FERH RN L o

EMNE R HEEFEG Rlacoste K
ﬁmbedandi‘i%frﬁmﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%i%%ﬁ) HEZE
201012 A31 B L FEM303.08 B ETIE
RES2EB X TH28.1% ZEHE2011512
A31HIEFER3882EERTT ° MRER
FE EEMNBEREBZ2011F12831 Ei
L FEENHEFEREFIEMSSHEE
H27.7% °

HEFHEERSS 2 EEELTEANT ZE
RIEERHEFEEILR35.8%  HEZE2010
F12A31ALEFER247 1 BEETENEE
Z2011F12A318 It F E K33558 B =
JT o BE 2011912 A31 8 LL FE/ American
Tourister MV EH E FRER A FILN4SHE
E T H11.6% o It 1 18 E 5 W Lacoste K
Timberland $§ 2R A3 5B B E TR E MR IE
HERDASHEETES

TR EREERI MV EFEREE 20106128
BTELEFERN25998EETIEME 4B E
EXR267%EEE2011FE12A31HIEF
329388 X - BIE20115F 128318
IHFE  OEERERNEEFEREFY
I3 EBETHT76.2% ° BE20115128
31BIEFELEMNANE G ERERNHEE
BRSNS SEEETHT3.4% ©

85.255

Net Sales Adjusted EBITDA
HEFE 28 ] 1 % KFREBITDA
US$(m) (B E) US$(m) Zx(BE)
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Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$63.1 million, or 28.1%, for
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Net sales in
the retail channel increased by US$22.1 million, or 28.3%, for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. On a same store constant
currency basis, net sales in the retail channel increased 25.4% year over year.

These increases were largely due to the Company’s continued focus on marketing
and selling regionally developed products, which has enabled it to bring to market
products designed to appeal to the tastes and preferences of consumers in the
United States. The Company’s
decision to terminate certain
licensing agreements with
third parties, primarily in
the business and accessories
product categories, and to sell
the formerly licensed products
directly to its customers also
contributed to the net sales
growth in North America. In
addition, more than 2,300
points of sale were added in
North America during 2011,
primarily resulting from
relationships formed with
new wholesale customers.

The following table sets forth
a breakdown of net sales for
the North American region
by geographic location for
the years ended December
31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.

North America’s net
sales increased by
29.7% year-on-year
(excluding Lacoste
and Timberland).

=MV E FRRIRFE EF+29.7%
(k% Lacoste }z Timberland FI 2228 ) o

BZE2011F 12831 AIEFE - HEEBRERNH
EREREF R IEEETH281% ©
BZE2011F 12831 ALEFE  TERBMNHE
EREREFRREN IHEETH283% ©
ZEREHNEEEBEEST  ZEREWN
SHEFRIRFIER254% °

ZHREERNADAFES L HRHEE
HEBRENER  FHEEXEEHFTSE
HHEBERRRRENER ° AR BRER
BEAREETIECRBMEFERS
BV IRAERE  WHERRHR S HELATR
AEm  FRIEZMERESFHENER -
beSh - R201MF  TERREHMBRS
B EBE - RMELL EINFTIEE B 2,30018
SHEEE -

TREIEHEZ2011F12H831H &20105F
12A31HLEFERLEEMNBER T EE S
RISHEFEERMA  UBHERGHERETF
BB DI -

BZE12A3ALEE

Year ended December 31, 2011 E2010F LB

2011

2010 2011 vs 2010

TER WEHEFHEEILL

En HEHEEFEAIL B0 (D) Bt

US$'000 % of regional net sales US$’000 % of regional net sales % increase (decrease)

Net sales by geographic location':
R E B S HHE T

United States £E 360,314 281,911 93.0% 27.8%
Canada Mn& X 27,876 21,057 7.0% 32.4%
Net Sales $H%E#%8 388,190 302,968 100.0% 28.1%

Note FizE

T The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
ARRAHEFANBEIARREEERNER YT —ERKHHEEBRTENER o
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Latin
America

Net sales in the Latin American region increased
by US$20.7 million, or 23.5%, for the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the
previous year, excluding the effect of the
termination of the Lacoste and Timberland
licensing agreements.

Including net sales attributable to the Lacoste and Timberland licensing
agreements, net sales for the Latin American region increased by US$19.6
million, or 22.1%, to US$108.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011
from US$89.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales for the Latin American region increased by US$16.7
million, or 18.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the
previous year.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$5.8 million, or 13.4%,
for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Net sales
in the business product category increased by US$4.0 million, or 41.9%, for the
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Excluding the
effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing agreements,
net sales in the casual product category increased by US$7.1 million, or 36.3%,
for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year, reflecting
the Company'’s strategic focus to expand its casual product offerings.

Latin America’s net sales
increased by 23.5%
year-on-year (excluding

Lacoste and Timberland).
NTENNEEFERFELFA23.5%
(#B% Lacoste Kz Timberland BIE£E) o

BZE2011E12A3MAILLFEE T XM
HWENHEEFEREFER207TBEE
JC3023.5% » bt T & M BR 4% Lk Lacoste &
Timberland IR FERH RN L o

T EMNbESEEFEE (FH K Lacoste &
Timberland R 7 E B S &£ 58) AR
2010512 A31 HILFER8I.0B B ETIGM
19.6BEETH22.1% ZEZE2011F 12831
HIEFEMI1086BEET - MINELSE
NTEMNBEREZE2011F12831BIEFE
HWHEEFEREFEM/TBEEERLS
18.8% ©

HZE201MENANNBLEE  REERS
BN EFEREFIER-8EEERR
13.4%  BE2011F 12831 BLLFE - B
ERENNHEFEREIFIERIOEES
TeE41.9% ° HIBRER Lk Lacoste B Timberland
REMBZENEE KBEREIREZE
20MFENA3THLEENHEEFERETF
BRIIEEETR363%  RMEALQTE
FRRAKBEERRS -
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales for the Latin American T &R & 5 8 £20115 12 A31H K2010F
region by geographic location, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 12831 BILEERN T EMNBE R =2
December 31, 2010, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total 2 HISEEFEERA - UWEBHERGHENE
regional net sales. FREATEA D LESIER

HBZE12A31ALLFE
Year ended December 31, 201148220104 L 8%
2011 2010 2011 vs 2010

FEx WEHEFERIL FExx HEHEEFHEEIL 0 (D) Bt
US$000 % of regional net sales US$'000 % of regional net sales % increase (decrease)

Net sales by geographic location:
ZihBEI D HHEFE

Chile &7 50,158 / 40,130 45.1% 25.0%
Mexico =75 32,790 / 27,493 30.9% 19.3%
Argentina FI1R3E 14,218 g 14,189 16.0% 0.2%*
Brazil B ° 8,481 7. 5,089 5.7% 66.7%
Other Ht’ 2,954 ; 2,059 2.3% 43.5%

Notes Kz

T The geographic location of the Company’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the
country in which its end consumers were actually located.
AAEHEEFENBESMARRHEERNER Y F—ERAKREEEERIENER -

2 The net sales figure for Brazil includes net sales attributable to sales made to third party distributors in Brazil.
BANEEFEREEERERYE=1 2 55 EH NS EREEIHEFE -

3 The net sales figure for Other primarily represents sales made through the Company’s distribution center in Uruguay but does not include net sales
attributable to sales made in Brazil to third party distributors.
HitWHEFREE T ERANABBSHEN I HPOHE X FEENEAHE=T 2 HEEHNHERENHERE -

4 Sales in Argentina have been negatively impacted by import restrictions imposed by the local government during the year ended December 31, 2011.
HE2011F12A31HEFE - RARENHEREBBTENEQRIHZZ MR -

19.658 | & _ 4.3, \ )
359% | \
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales increased by US$182.6 million, or 34.7%, to US$708.2 million
(representing 45.2% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2011 from
US$525.6 million (representing 43.3% of net sales) for the year ended December
31, 2010. The increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was primarily
due to increased product costs, which reflect increased production costs from
the Company’s suppliers driven by higher commodity prices and labor costs, as
well as unfavorable currency impacts. The Company also recognized additional
depreciation and amortization expenses associated with the increased carrying
amounts of certain assets in 2011 as a result of reversals of impairments of
intangible assets and fixed assets that were recorded in the second half of
2010. Had the initial impairments not occurred in 2008, the Company would
have incurred an additional US$4.1 million of depreciation and amortization
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Gross profit increased by US$167.3 million, or 24.3%, to US$856.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011 from US$689.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. Gross profit margin decreased from 56.7% for the year
ended December 31, 2010 to 54.8% for the year ended December 31, 2011,
primarily as a result of the reasons described above. Also contributing to lower
margins was a change in the Company’s product mix with increased sales of
lower margin products.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by US$91.3 million, or 28.6%, to US$410.9
million (representing 26.3% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2011 from US$319.6 million (representing 26.3% of net sales) for the year
ended December 31, 2010. This increase, which was reflected in additional
freight to customers, commissions, rent, and increased personnel expenses,
was primarily due to the increase in sales volume in 2011. The Company also
recognized additional depreciation and amortization expenses associated with
the increased carrying amounts of certain assets in 2011 as a result of reversals
of impairments of intangible assets and fixed assets that were recorded in the
second half of 2010. Had the initial impairments not occurred in 2008, the
Company would have incurred an additional US$9.2 million of depreciation
and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Marketing Expenses

Marketing expenses increased by US$20.3 million, or 19.9%, to US$122.8
million (representing 7.8% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2011 from US$102.5 million (representing 8.4% of net sales) for the year
ended December 31, 2010. This increase reflects management’s commitment
to enhance brand and product awareness and drive additional net sales growth
through marketing activities. The Company believes the success of its advertising
campaigns is evident in its net sales growth.

HERKRER
HERNHEZE2010F12831HILEEW
525.6 BB ETT (HHEFEEMN43.3%) BR
182 6EBETHILT%EHE20115F12
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A Consistent
Marketing Strategy

“In 2011, the Company remained consistent with
its strategy of increasing marketing spend broadly in line
with sales growth to drive global brand recognition and
the long-run profitability of the business.”
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by US$16.5 million, or 17.0%,
to US$113.6 million (representing 7.3% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2011 from US$97.1 million (representing 8.0% of net sales)
for the year ended December 31, 2010. Although general and administrative
expenses increased in absolute terms, such expenses decreased as a percentage
of net sales by 0.7%. The increase in absolute terms was primarily due to the
Company'’s efforts to support its sales growth, increased personnel expenses,
additional costs associated with operating as a public company, and increased
depreciation and amortization expenses in 2011. The Company recognized
additional depreciation and amortization expenses associated with the increased
carrying amounts of certain assets in 2011 as a result of reversals of impairments
of intangible assets and fixed assets that were recorded in the second half of
2010. Had the initial impairment not occurred in 2008, the Company would
have incurred an additional US$3.8 million of depreciation and amortization
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Reversal of Impairment of Intangible Assets and Fixed Assets
No impairments or reversals of impairments were recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

In 2008, as a result of the global economic downturn, the Company
analyzed certain intangible assets and certain fixed assets for
impairment, which resulted in the recognition of an impairment of
tradenames, fixed assets at certain retail and non-retail locations,
customer relationships and leasehold rights. In 1986

2010, as required by IFRS, impairment losses
recognized in prior periods were assessed at the
year-end reporting date for any indications that
the loss decreased or ceased to exist. As a result
of this analysis, the Company recognized a

the first polypropylene
suitcase with a 3-point

locking system which
US$379.9 million reversal of previously recorded |l soon become the

impairments. Of this reversal, US$273.8  world’s bestselling
million was attributable to the reversal of the  suitcase.

outstanding tradename impairments, US$66.4 W R S BN E S
million was attributable to the reversal of  goysterBRETZHRY
fixed asset impairments, US$38.0 million A atH FHIE45T
was attributable to the reversal of customer — Z=%5 o

relationship impairments and US$1.8 million

was attributable to the reversal of leasehold rights impairments. There were no

accumulated impairment losses remaining as of December 31, 2010.

Restructuring Charges

For the year ended December 31, 2011, US$0.9 million of restructuring charges
were reversed to reflect a refund from certain local governmental agencies for
upfront employee related payments made in connection with restructuring
initiatives in 2009.

Restructuring charges of US$4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010
were primarily attributable to lease exit costs related to the closure of retail
stores in North America.

The Oyster is launched;
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Other Expenses
The Company recognized other expenses of US$0.6 million and US$2.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Operating Profit

The following table sets forth the Company’s operating profit, and certain
non-recurring costs and charges affecting such operating profit, for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Hhpixx
HZE2011F12A8318K2010F12A8318 1k
FE  AQADFIREACEBERTK2.48
EXTHHEMBEX -

LR A

THREIEHZE2011F12A318 R20105F
12A3MBLEFERATNKE TN AR
BIREBEANNETHREERERERM -

BZE12B31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFET25]

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Operating profit R F
(Plus) Minus: (hm) A

Reversal of impairment of intangible assets
and fixed assets

Reversal of restructuring
charges / (restructuring charges)

Depreciation and amortization
not recognized on impaired assets

B EEREEEEMER R
sHABEARE/ (EEERA)

EREEERERITE R #H

2011 2010
209,930 543,602
379,826
(4,348)

17,144

209,053 150,980

Excluding the impact of the items noted above, operating profit for the year
ended December 31, 2011 increased by US$58.1 million, or 38.5%, compared
to the previous year.

The Company’s operating profit was US$209.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, a decrease of US$333.7 million, or 61.4%, from an
operating profit of US$543.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs increased by US$41.6 million to US$70.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011 from US$29.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2010. This increase was primarily attributable to the recognition of the
remaining unamortized discount of US$28.6 million on the former amended
senior credit facility upon repayment in full of such facility following the
completion of the Global Offering, as well as US$24.8 million of transaction
costs related to the Global Offering. Partially offsetting these effects were
Stabilization Proceeds of US$3.5 million and a decrease in net foreign exchange
losses of US$3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to
the previous year. Net foreign exchange (gain) loss includes a foreign exchange
gain of US$10.3 million and a foreign exchange loss of US$8.7 million on the
former amended senior credit facility, as well as a foreign exchange loss on the
translation of a non-US Dollar denominated intercompany loan of US$8.3 million
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and a foreign exchange gain of US$7.1 million for the years ended December
31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. This intercompany loan was
settled in June 2011 in conjunction with the repayment of the Company’s former
amended senior credit facility and former term loan facility.

Net finance costs of US$11.6 million in the second half of 2011 were primarily
comprised of a change in fair value of put options of US$4.5 million and net
foreign exchange losses of US$6.8 million. Interest expense of US$1.7 million
in the second half of 2011 is reflective of the Company’s strong balance sheet
with limited loans and borrowings following the Global Offering.

Profit before Income Tax

The following table sets forth the Company’s profit before income tax, and
certain non-recurring costs and charges affecting such profit before income tax,
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

BERELNFESBIASIEEELRIIE
BERX - WEERSERERARQ B LAL
B BEGEERER LAEHERRENE
R—HR2011E6 BiEME -

011ETHEN CEBEETNFHEER
FTEORRTEEN AT EEESHISEEET
REREISFEESEBRE c 2011 FTHF
K17 EBETFIERS RMAQNTREER
BRERBERRERER  MEESEBRE -

P8R AnER
TREFIEZ2011F12831HK 201056128
31 BEFEARABFAEHANSM A R EZ
FISBRLARINE THREEMRARER -

UFET25
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

BZE12B31HLEEFE
Year ended December 31,

2011 2010

Profit before income tax FriS B A=A
(Plus) Minus: chn) 3

Reversal of impairment of intangible assets
and fixed assets

Reversal of restructuring charges /
(restructuring charges)

Depreciation and amortization
not recognized on impaired assets

Additional interest expense recognized on
immediate recognition of unamortized
discount on debt

Expenses related to the Global Offering
Global Offering Stabilization Proceeds

BB HERR B AR 8

EHRBERERX
RRBERBEBRIA

B EEKETEEERERD R
EHREREE/ (EHER)

EREEEARERITE R #H

BEIR FTRERR O RRIMNFI S B ST

139,298 514,589

379,826
(4,348)
17,144
(28,639) =

(24,805) =
3,474 =

188,391 121,967

Excluding the impact of the items noted above, profit before income tax for
the year ended December 31, 2011 increased by US$66.4 million, or 54.5%,
compared to the previous year.

Profit before income tax was US$139.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2011, a decrease of US$375.3 million, or 72.9%, from US$514.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by US$112.1 million, or 75.9%, to US$35.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from US$147.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010. In 2010, the increased level of tax expense
was primarily attributable to the tax impact on the reversal of impairments of
intangible assets and fixed assets in the amount of US$102.2 million.

W EMIEE NEE > BE2011F12831
B FENFREHRAEANESEFIEMe6.4H
BXETH54.5% °

8B A EF BB E2010F12A3101EE
EMS146BBETRPISIBEERS
729% ZH E201MF12A31HLEFEMN
1393BEXETT °

FriEBipe 2

PSR mEE2010F 12 A31 BIEEEN
147 8B EBERAP112.1BEETHT5.9%
ZHZE2011F12A31HILFEM37TEESE
TC ° FA20105 » BIIER KT LA EEHME
EEFEEREEEERBEI22BEETA
ERIEBIIS L -
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The Company’s consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 25.6% and
28.7% for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively, and the applicable tax rate (representing a weighted average of
the various tax rates to which the Company is subject) was 27.4% and 30.4%
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.
The effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average income tax rate
from those jurisdictions in which the Company is subject to tax, adjusted for
permanent book/tax differences, tax incentives, changes in tax reserves and
unrecognized deferred tax assets.

The decrease in the Company’s effective tax rate for the year ended December
31, 2011 was primarily the result of changes to the global mix of profitability
between high and low tax jurisdictions. Royalty income, which is taxed in a
low tax jurisdiction, contributed to the decrease in the effective tax rate, and
the costs associated with the Global Offering did not provide a tax benefit to
the Company.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year was US$103.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
a change of US$263.2 million, or 71.8%, from US$366.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010. Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, increased
by US$31.2 million, or 29.6%, to US$136.8 million for the year ended December
31,2011 from US$105.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. See the
reconciliation of profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income below for a detailed
discussion of the Company’s results excluding certain non-recurring costs and
charges and other non-cash charges that impacted reported profit for the year.

Basic and diluted earnings per share decreased to US$0.06 for the year ended
December 31, 2011 from US$0.27 for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share increased to US$0.10 for the
year ended December 31, 2011 from US$0.08 for the year ended December
31, 2010. The weighted average number of shares outstanding for the year
ended December 31, 2011 increased by 66.1 million shares to 1,352.1 million,
compared to 1,286.0 million shares for the year ended December 31, 2010, as
a result of the issuance of new shares by the Company in the Global Offering.

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was US$86.7 million, which exceeded the Company’s
forecast profit by US$22.5 million, or 35.1%. The Company surpassed
the forecast profit primarily due to each operating segment exceeding the
Company’s financial forecast for the year.

HZE2011F12A8318K2010F12A8318 1k
FE » RQAKEZHREERB RS A
25.6%%28.7% » MEABIR (AAADFHE
NS ERENMEFLIBE) 255
27.4%F130.4% o BEBIRRAA T MM
IR R AR Z INFEF 19 RSB R &

WHAKAERR/MEER - RIEER - Bl
REZBRAERELETEEEERE

HE201MENANBLEEE  AQATNE
BHEREK TEARSREALRERK
REAZREZENERREHEID &
B o EERER N LB MM IENER]
WA SEEBERE  REXRBESH
IR AR WA R D ARMEBIERE

FRER
HZE2011ENRANBLEENFERNENS
103.6EBET  REZE2010F12A83181E
FEM3668EBETEE632HEETSR
71.8% o fEFABFWA (—IEIEIFRS B F 5+
BTH)  HEZE2010F12A8318LFEN
105.6 BB EM31.2H8ETH29.6%
EHZE2011F12A3THLFEN1368EE
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BEMRARBAUREMIRSERAYE
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EAXARBERFBEZE20106128318 1k
EER0.08ETLEMBEHZE20115E12A31
BIEFERO0.10ET - ARATREIREE
BITHRG  MEFHRITEMBOEE
M & £2010F12831H 1t £ E #1,286.0
BEREMCIBEERERZ2011F12A8
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Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$79.0 million,
or47.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous
year and our Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 15.8% from 14.4%,
excluding the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland
licensing agreements.

Including the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing
agreements, Adjusted EBITDA increased by US$56.3 million, or 29.3%, to
US$248.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from US$191.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010, and Adjusted EBITDA margin was
15.9% and 15.8% for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December
31, 2010, respectively.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Company’s profit for
the year to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010.

KIAEEBITDA

KA EBITDAB —EFIFRSHKFTE2TH -
B ZEZ20MENANNBLEEE £AR
EBITDAB A FEER79.0HBETRNA7 2%
M 4 8 ZEBITDAR 8 & H144%E R
£158% @ b J3 & M B #& 1klacoste
Timberland R R ENSIE o

#FAEE EBITDA (5T K2 #% Lk Lacoste & Timberland
BRERHZENZE) BB ZE201061283181E
FEMNIBEEBEL BR63EEET
}293% ZH B2011F 12831 LEEN
2483EBERT MBZE201MF12A31BHR
2010%F 12 A31 8 L F E # &£ FAZEBITDARI
RS BIE15.9% K 15.8% ©

TREYE Z2011F128318 K2010%F
1ABLFEARTRFREANELAE
EBITDA HY¥18R ©

BZE12B31HLFE
Year ended December 31,

2011 2010

UFETZE5

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Profit for the year FREF

(Plus) Minus: (hm) 3
Income tax expense FriSBiBA
Finance costs BisE A
Finance income 751 ON
Depreciation e
Amortization s

EBITDA EBITDA

(Plus) Minus: (hm) 3 :

Reversal of restructuring charges /
(restructuring charges)

Reversal of impairment of intangible assets
and fixed assets

Other adjustments HAth Rz

Adjusted EBITDA #EFREEEBITDA

EHAERDE (EHER)

BLEEKETEEERER R

103,618 366,814

(CRNLOM (147,775)
(71,879) (30,660)
1,247 1,647
(30,158) (16,335)
(8,333) (4,409)

248,421 564,346

(4,348)

= 379,826
(709) (3,073)

248,253 191,941
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The following tables present a reconciliation from profit (loss) for the year to
Adjusted EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended December 31, 2011

and December 31, 2010.

TREIINREZ2011F12831HR20105F
NANBLEERNEEEZIINERE

A (BE) BE

TR EBITDA KU BR -

HZE2011F12A318ILEE

Year ended December 31, 2011

UFET25 =M BOM e EM WTEM % e
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe | North America Latin America Corporate Total
Profit (loss) for the year FEREF (E518) 46,051 33,666 38,782 6,603 (21,484) 103,618
(Plus) Minus: (hm)
Income tax expense FifSHif X (13,447) (11,367) (465) (1,497) (8,904) (35,680)
Finance costs &R (2,780) (16,477) (400) (1,798) (50,424) (71,879)
Finance income B UL A 142 184 9 26 886 1,247
Depreciation e (9,017) (11,519) (3,204) (1,892) (4,526) (30,158)
Amortization ey (4,207) (1,922) (274) (1,930) = (8,333)
EBITDA EBITDA 75,360 74,767 43,116 13,694 41,484 248,421
(Plus) Minus: () R
Reversal of EAERAER/
restructuring charges / (EAER)
(restructuring charges) - 884 - - (7) 877
Other adjustments H % (29,784) (10,011) (16,072) (2,758) 57,916 (709)
Adjusted EBITDA #ZTAEEEBITDA 105,144 83,894 59,188 16,452 (16,425) 248,253
BZE2010F 128318 LLEE
Year ended December 31, 2010
NFETES =M BOM JE3M T EM ¥ i
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe North America Latin America Corporate Total
Profit (loss) for the year FEREF (E58) 54,654 173,163 46,899 20,146 11,952 366,814
(Plus) Minus: (hm) A
Income tax FriSHi
(expense) benefit () ER (13,811) (20,140) (684) 250 (113,390)  (147,775)
Finance costs B E A 737 (19,914) (51) (3,301) (8,131) (30,660)
Finance income RN 184 128 7 9 1,319 1,647
Depreciation e (8,043) (1,250) (995) (1,835) (4,212) (16,335)
Amortization b5 (4,254) - (49) (106) - (4,409)
EBITDA EBITDA 79,841 214,339 48,671 25,129 196,366 564,346
(Plus) Minus: (hm) R
Reversal of EHEROR/
restructuring charges / (EHER)
(restructuring charges) - 106 (3,957) - (497) (4,348)
(Impairment) reversal of B EEREE
impairment of intangible EE (RE)/
assets and fixed assets RE R (63) 79,689 13,184 13,188 273,828 379,826
Other adjustments HihFAE (160) 61,682 (390) (166) (64,039) (3,073)
Adjusted EBITDA KFAREEBITDA 80,064 72,862 39,834 12,107 (12,926) 191,941
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Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the ETFLhEHBECEFIEUFTEEE201
presentation adopted for the year ended December 31, 2011. Income  F12A31AILEEFRMNEINEE - &
tax expense of US$7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 was ~ ZE2010F 12831 B L EEMNFAEHAX
reclassified from the North America segment to TOBBERCREHEBTDAYRHAILE
the Corporate segment in the Adjusted EBITDA MNP BEFHEELEDT  SEEBEDT
reconciliation, resulting in a corresponding change FANGAEEEEZS - BIEZERES
in profit for the year for each segment. There was ERHY EBITDASARFHEE EBITDA ©

no resulting impact to EBITDA or Adjusted EBITDA
for either segment. RATEIEFAZBTDAZRRAHBE -
ERREKEXERT (RIBIFRSHAR KR EF

The Company has presented Adjusted EBITDA WORF (B518) ETHER) - KFAEEBITDA
because it believes that, when viewed with its 1997 BiRRUEZER BHRE
results of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS and _ . ATRMBERAKSERRR
with the reconciliation to profit (loss) for the year, Adjusted The introduction of HBHEBNBE - KRR

the four-wheel Spinner

i of , ; transforms the industry;
a more complete understanding of its operational performance an upright suitcase that

and of the trends impacting its business. Adjusted EBITDA is an can easily be pulled or
important metric the Company uses to evaluate its operating  pyshed in any direction.

performance and cash generation. B R R
IF5 EmBEESi

EBITDA 2742 7 AR T4
KERBRRIBE SN —18
BEEEEE

EBITDA provides additional information that is useful in gaining

TELLFrET E R FAE EBITDA
AB—EFEIRSHEFET

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure, and & pms@aitg - B RARAEEM AT FE
as calculated herein may not be comparable to similarly g 747258772 o AEUGENTE T RET
named measures used by other companies and should not Lb8: > BRERA —BEAR

be considered as a measure comparable to profit (loss) for the year in the  ATHRERBERPERER (FE) Ltz
Company’s consolidated income statements. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations ~ sT2TIE o LR EBITDAEE—ELHTA
as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, orasa ~2REBERFIN  BEFERABIRIRE
substitute for, an analysis of the Company’s results of operations as reported  Z<2 F4RIE IFRS T 2IRAVE L EERI DT o

under IFRS.
RARFWA
Adjusted Net Income EREFRUAS—EEIFRSHBAETA R

Adjusted Net Income, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$49.0  #ZE2011F12A31BLLFE - KFREBFHA
million, or 56.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the — BEFIERAIV0BEEEITHN56.6% » LLTIEEH
previous year, excluding the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and  BR#& Lk Lacoste ] Timberland R IS/ & o
Timberland licensing agreements.

HGABEFU N (5 R 48 LE Lacoste & Timberland
Including the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and Timberland licensing ~ RERZNFE) BEZ2010F12A8318 1k
agreements, Adjusted Net Income increased by US$31.2 million, or 29.6%,to  FEM105.6H B XTI M312BEE TR
US$136.8 million for the year ended December 31,2011 from US$105.6 million ~ 29.6% Z & £2011F12A31H L FE K
for the year ended December 31, 2010. 136.8EEET ©

The Company’s Adjusted Net Income includes a loss of US$8.3 millionanda gain =~ A QA BMEAZFRAEEEZE2011512
of US$7.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, B31ALEEEBEIEERLEEZEBRALR
2010, respectively, relating to the translation of a non-US Dollar denominated ERMWBREFHESIFEETREZE 20106
intercompany loan. Excluding these amounts, Adjusted Net Income for the 12 B31BIEFEWR7.1BEXRTT ° MRZ
year ended December 31, 2011 increased by US$46.6 million, or 47.3%, S&E > BE2011F12A31BLEE &
compared to the previous year. This intercompany loan was settled in June HEFWAREEEN466BEETR
2011 in conjunction with the repayment of the Company’s former amended  47.3% ° LtEEE R EFERE AN A 7 L ATE
senior credit facility and former term loan facility. BIIBEEERERCAEHERRENE
R—BHA2011 F6 BEE -
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The following table presents the reconciliation from the Company’s profit for
the year to Adjusted Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and

December 31, 2010.

HRBFRAHR -

TREHEHZE2011F128318 K20105F
12831 B It FEHBE » N2 R F A= E

BZ12A3101LEE
Year ended December 31,

UFET25
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
Profit for the year FREF) 103,618 366,814
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests JEE RIS (R ER 16,870 11,792
Profit attributable to the equity holders ERISE AERER 86,748 355,022
(Plus) Minus: (hm) R -

Reversal of impairment of intangible assets B EERETEEERERER

and fixed assets 379,826
Reversal of restructuring charges / EHEBAER/ (EHER)

(restructuring charges) (4,348)
Change in fair value of put options ROLHEN AT EZE (8,788)
Depreciation not recognized on EREEERERNE'

impaired assets' 13,064
Amortization not recognized on EREEERERHN’

impaired assets” - 4,080
Amortization of intangible assets® B EE#E’ (8,333) (8,489)
Expenses related to debt repaid in conjunction ~ ZHRBEREBEISAREES’

with the Global Offering* (23,240) (22,255)
Expenses related to the Global Offering 2IRFEMEAR X (24,805) -
Global Offering Stabilization Proceeds 2IRBEREERNIE 3,474 =
Tax adjustments BIERE 10,638 (103,634)

Adjusted Net Income”® FERELS= PN 136,781 105,566

Notes Ktz
Depreciation that the Company would have recognized in 2010 but for the impairment of certain fixed assets recorded in 2008. Such impairments

1

LUTFET25
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
Interest expense on debt facility EREEFEMAX (33,557) (13,545)
Unrealized gain (loss) on EREE 2 ARER W (Bi8)
foreign translation of debt 10,317 (8,710)
Total expenses related to debt structure prior 2IRBEA BRI EERER B
to the Global Offering (23,240) (22,255)
5 Represents Adjusted Net Income attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
EARDREREE ARERHETHRA -
HEEBEBRAERAR —

were reversed in the second half of 2010.

AARMGIHEE2008F EBE TETEEREMMN2010F BHEZNINE - ZLRECR2010FTHFER -
Amortization that the Company would have recognized in 2010 but for the impairment of certain intangible assets (other than goodwill) recorded
in 2008. Such impairments were reversed in the second half of 2010.

AATHFE008FHEETREPEE (TEEHE) BREMR20105FEEANEE - ZEHECN2010F T RFHE -

Amortization of intangible assets above represents the sum of (i) amortization that the Company recognized and (ii) amortization that the Company
would have recognized but for the impairment of certain intangible assets (other than goodwill). These charges relate to the amortization of other
intangible assets with finite useful lives that were recognized in conjunction with the acquisition by the CVC Funds in 2007, and that do not relate to
assets invested in on an ongoing basis. The Company believes that this figure enables investors to better understand its amortization charge going
forward as a result of reversals of impairment of intangible assets during 2010.
ERAREFEEBHEENARDCERAZBHERNADDMFRE TELEE (TEEHE) HEMEER ZBHE 2B - ZEMIECVCEEMN2007F KEFHER
NWEREASHHEMEFEENBHERAEH  ARSARENEESR - AR AMEEZBELREEHERFEN010FRESBF EERBERNBHER -

The following table sets forth a breakdown of expenses related to the former amended senior credit facility and former term loan facility that was
repaid in conjunction with the Global Offering:

RERBEMEENENSETELFERER LA EPNENREEEMNWBARTINT

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,
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The Company has presented Adjusted Net Income because it believes this
measure helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties
a better understanding of the Company’s underlying financial performance.
By presenting Adjusted Net Income, the Company eliminates the effect of a
number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges
that impact its reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-IFRS financial measure, and as calculated herein
may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies
and should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the period
in the Company’s consolidated income statements. Adjusted Net Income has
limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from,
or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Company’s results of operations as
reported under IFRS.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management policies is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for
shareholders, and to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses,
working capital needs, and the payment of obligations. The Company’s primary
sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities, invested cash,
and available lines of credit. The Company believes that its existing cash and
estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to
meet the operating and capital requirements of the Company for at least the
next twelve months.

The Company’s net cash generated from operating activities was US$64.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to US$34.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010. This US$30.1 million increase in cash
generated from operating activities was primarily due to the US$31.2 million
increase in Adjusted Net Income year over year. The cash outflow related to
operating assets and liabilities decreased by US$41.1 million to US$37.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to US$78.2 million for the
previous year.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, net cash used in investing activities was
US$35.8 million, an increase of US$6.3 million compared to the previous year.
This increase was primarily due to a US$7.6 million increase in the purchase
of property, plant and equipment, which was largely attributable to new store
openings and the expansion of the Company’s manufacturing plant in Hungary,
in the Asian and European regions, respectively. Capital expenditures for the
year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to US$37.2 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was US$170.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, an increase of US$144.3 million compared to the previous
year, primarily resulting from transactions associated with the Global Offering.
The Company received gross proceeds of US$225.3 million from the Global

RO 2IERBEFEA - ARRHEMBFE
BETEARBRFOINE - REERAMAE
FE@BANTNAENBERER - 2FIKHE
W R - RN BMERZIRFEBEERE
RERARETHAZEERRERNGFIEIE
ReEA -

TEUFH B R EREF WA S —IEIE IFRS B35
FFETER - sURTAEAM D RFEA RS
BB TAETE - BRERS—I1RH
ARAFREWERPFREFN TRz E
TH KREFWAER-BINTARA
BHRHY - BETERABIRIRNBEERR
AIRYE IFRS FT 2 EIVE L KB DT

RBEEREFER
FAAREFAEEBRRNEIEERR/RIEH
SHEEERD IRREHRE®K - BEF
X —REEMIREBEATERH
BEEURZNER - ARRARBESHE
ERFRHEERD RERE RITAE
EEEEENRERE - ARAAMEE - K
MWRERERMEFRENRE - WERE
BEES BRUENEAQARRZD
ToEANEEREATR -

HBZE201ME12A31 B EFELLTHHME
HIREeFEAASEEEL  MBZE2010
F1N2ABLFERARMAIABEET - &
EEBENRSFEER30I1BEERE
EHREABRFRARFEMIN2EES
JLo BE201MF12A31BILFEE » K
EEEREENESREA37T 1 EAEET
BEAFMN7S2EBETRV4IIBEET

HZE201ME12A31BLEFE  REZHA
AR FEAHEET BEFER
63EBERT  MIBREFEREAAAET
NREN b EIGMEEYE - MEREEN
TEHBER  EVPEIEHRFIEHERE
ARMEFRGFRBE TR - BE20115F12
B31BLFEERMREI7T2EEBET ©

HZE2011F12831BLEFE  mETEF
AR FEARI17038EET  BREFEM
1443BEBEx  TERZRBEMEBEHX
ZEHY - ANATBRRBEWEAERIBEL
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Offering, of which US$101.0 million were used to settle its Loan Notes. The
Company utilized the remainder of the proceeds, along with the existing cash
on hand, to pay off the outstanding principal balance of US$221.6 million on
its former amended credit facility and the outstanding principal and accrued
interest of US$59.2 million on its former term loan facility. Please refer to note
6 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further details on
the Global Offering.

Indebtedness
The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Company’s loans and
borrowings as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

FA2253FEET HRI101.08EETR
AREEEERZER - KAABZEMER
HHEE S > ERIFERERE - AREE
ERAIRBIEERENREERS AR
221 6BEBER ) REAETHERBENR
EBEASREHFE02HEET - B2
WRBENE—DHE  BSHEMNGESH
TEERRMIFLE ©

=L
TREHARATN2011E12831B %2010
F12A31 ANWERRERMIREE -

BZ1N2ABLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETL5]

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Senior subordinated notes BRERERE
Amended senior credit facility' BB ECERE
Term loan facility EHERRE
Finance lease obligations REREEE

Other lines of credit Hifz 858

BRRAERBEE
IR FIE B & B AN

Total loans and borrowings
Less deferred financing costs

Total loans and borrowings less deferred
financing costs

ERRAERBERELE S & A

2010

260

189,158

57,451

137

15,008 117735
15,086 258,741
(3,319) =
11,767 258,741

Note Fffzt

1 Represents the amortized cost carrying value of the Company’s former amended senior credit facility. The notional value was US$221.6 million as

of December 31, 2010.

EARDREAZETEAFERENCBHEMAREE - R2010F128318 » EREER221 688X

The Company had US$141.3 million in cash and cash equivalents at December
31,2011, compared to US$285.8 million at December 31, 2010.

In conjunction with the Global Offering, the Company repaid in full the
outstanding principal balance of US$221.6 million on the former amended
senior credit facility and the outstanding principal and accrued interest of
US$59.2 million on the former term loan facility, and such facilities were
terminated. During the year ended December 31, 2011 the Company recognized
the remaining unamortized discount of US$32.4 million as of December 31,
2010 on the former amended senior credit facility as interest expense due to
the settlement of the borrowing prior to maturity.

On May 27, 2011 the Company entered into a credit agreement for a US$100.0
million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”). The Revolving Facility
became effective upon completion of the Global Offering. The Revolving Facility
has an initial term of three years, with a one year extension at the request of
the Company and the option of the lenders. The interest rate on borrowings
under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in

R201ME128318 AR RERES
ZLEMH 141 3BEET > MR2010F128
31HAIB2858HEBET ©

RRFREBRBER S BBEE TSR]
BEAFERENREERESER221688
£ REMEHERRENRKEELTER
RS0 2EE8ET  BZEEEmEY
BRI - BE201MF12A3THLEFE » K
DNEEREREMAIERER - BULEAR
BRIEAEERERRN2010F12A31H
BT ARBENTNNIBEEZTRNE
X e

M2011E5H27H » AATFI100.0EEET
BREERE ([BREE]) ;T EERE -
BREENRERBETHEBEN - BREE
WL ERA=F  TERQAFAZERKE
MAZEBREBER —F - BREBETERNF
ERUT Z28H : () (@ mBERITRIZEFE (1
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the case of borrowings made in Euro) or (b) the prime rate of the lender and
(i) a margin to be determined based on the Company’s leverage ratio. The
Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee of 1% per annum on any unutilized
amounts, as well as an agency fee if another lender joins the Revolving Facility.
The Revolving Facility is secured by certain assets in the United States and
Europe, as well as the Company’s intellectual property. The Revolving Facility
also contains financial covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios,
and operating covenants that, among other things, limit the Company’s ability
to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain
mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Company
was in compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2011. The
Company incurred costs of US$4.0 million in connection with the negotiation
and documentation of the Revolving Facility, which have been capitalized and
will be amortized over the term of the agreement. No amounts were drawn on
this facility at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, US$82.4 million was
available on the Revolving Facility as a result of the utilization of US$17.6 million
of the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors.

Certain members of the consolidated group maintain credit lines with various
third party lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit
lines provide working capital for the day-to-day business operations of
such subsidiaries, including overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance
and factoring facilities. The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted
facilities. The total aggregate amount outstanding under the local facilities
was US$15.0 million and US$11.7 million at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively.

The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Company’s loans
and borrowings (including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact
of netting agreements) as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

AUBCTIERWEMRE  BABTERT
BEFL) O ERANREZRERNER ()
BRAQNTERLEEENEE - BREEY
AR AN S EREE T 1% WAEKE > I
REMERANMABREEREDRAEE -
BREEUETREBRRBMNZEEURK
ATNABERER - BREETESEER
BEMEERESLREENMKERE &
By (A aE) REIRAREEREIME
B BEYETIEER  SEETEM
g BB BEEHESRIREMEE S ° 12011
F12A318 » RNABETZTHEELH - KA
AREREENEFIRIHEENIOEESE
TR AR B B AL I A 17 5 HA PR o s 8 -
201112 831 A BIREGZEEAZFE ©
R201ME12A310 - ARARETFE TER
ANMKEEERRMBA1I76EEEZTA
& BREENEUEHALERIEEET -

FEEENETREAREGEEEME
BHNZAE=FERAFTLEEEE - Z£5E
EEEAZENBAR A XKL ERHE
EEES  BEEX  HRTER RESAE
BURKRRRERE - LEEFEEBABSE
EAEGEHRE - R2011F12831BK%2010
F12A318 B@METHREBLED
BBISOEEERTRINTEESET

TRIEN2011F12831BK%20105128
31 BARAFNERRMAER (BEETTRENAR
RTEEFEAERENZE) ANEWA -

UFETZ5
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

BZE128310LEE
As of December 31,

2011 2010

BERIRN—FA

On demand or within one year

Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF
Between 2 and 5 years MEZERF
Over 5 years BREF

15,015 12,052
26 100

37 291,090

8 Z

303,222

Hedging

The Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in US Dollars which
are designated as cash flow hedges. Cash flows associated with these derivatives
at December 31, 2011 are expected to be US$91.6 million within one year.

Eapay
RATIMEEENB AR EHIT LHEBEE
ZHUERKZENTFENRIPEHN  HEEY
TIEEETRESRET - 20115128310
HRETETAEENBSRERR—FR
BIN6HEEBET
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Other Financial Information

Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s average inventory,
cost of sales and average inventory days for the years ended December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010.

Hia B &R

EEESLEE

FEEDH

TRHENEZ2011F128318 R2010F
NANBLFEAARMNTYEFE - HE
BARFHEFERE B HHRE -

BZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,

RNFETLT

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Average inventory’ FHEE'

Cost of sales SHERAS

Average inventory turnover days? FigFEREAE’

2011 2010
229,831 167,966
708,199 525,628

118 117

Notes Kzt

T Average inventory equals the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period.

FHEFEREREERBRIRARNFEFEN T I -

2 Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied

by the number of days in the period.
BEPBNTEEFEBE B HASHZHENFOFERUZHBNHEERSE  BRUZHBNBEER -

The Company’s average inventory increased in 2011 (US$237.0 million at
December 31, 2011 compared to US$222.7 million at December 31, 2010)
from 2010 (US$222.7 million at December 31, 2010 compared to US$113.2
million at December 31, 2009) to support increased customer demand and
new product introductions.

Average inventory at December 31, 2010 was at a reduced level due to low
inventory levels at the end of 2009. As the business began to recover from the
economic downturn in 2009, the Company began rebuilding inventory levels
in 2010.

Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s average trade and
other receivables, net sales and turnover of trade and other receivables for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

20N EARRBNEHEFE (R2011F12A8
31H B237.088 Xt MR2010F12A
31AA222. 788 %) 820105 (KR2010
F128318 H222 7B £ T - MMH2009
F12A318H 113 258%T) BN LUE
NHEFEREAURBHIER

HA2009F RFEKFERMEN - 42010
F12A31BFHEFEERFRE - HREK
H2009F REBEHFERHKRER  AQF
R2010FHRBRERFEKF -

FE UK BR R R L At FE U RR 1B
TREIEZ2011F12831H0 %20105F
12A31HLFERE RAATNFIER
IR R H b EURGRIE « SHEFE > URER
IRRR ARG EAEHE o

BZ12A3BLEE
Year ended December 31,

RFETLS

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
Average trade and other receivables' P9 FEU AR TR R H A FE L kg 158,847 132,770
Net sales HE R (I RVYER 1,215,307
Turnover days of trade and other receivables? FEUR BR 7k % HL At FE U SR BB 8 B 22 37 40

Notes Ffs

T Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period.

R M B T L e PR W B AR 5 055 R 4 D 90 D T A AR P W Rk I L At WU IRF AR P 19 B o

2 Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

5 EH RN EBRS R E RN REE B SRS R 2NN T RUERR R At WFUER BN HE T - BRUZHBNBEEH -
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The Company's average trade and other receivables increased in 2011 (US$171.6 2011842 BRI F 9 REUR BR 7 K H A FEULER
million at December 31, 2011 compared to US$146.1 million at December  IE (}A2011F 128318 A1716B8XT
31, 2010) from 2010 (US$146.1 million at December 31, 2010 compared to A 2010F 12831 BB B146.1 BB X7T)
US$119.4 million at December 31, 2009) in line with the increase in net sales. 20104 (742010128318 %146.18
BXx o M2009F12A831HAIR 119488
Trade receivables as of December 31, 2011 are on average due within 60 days ~ £Jt) #2h0 - ERSEEFENER—2 -
from the date of billing.
R2011F 12831 B 2B ERARFEHIBRER
Trade and Other Payables BHHEET60 A REIE -
The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s average trade and
other payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other payables for P& R 7% & H 4th FE 14 7 8
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. TREIREZ2011F12H831BK20105F
12831 AL FEHREARR TN EIGEMSER
MR H M EATRIE « SHER A R BT IRRR
REMENREBEAHHE -

BZ12A310LEE
DFETLE5 Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
Average trade and other payables' P9 FE TR R H A FE {4 kg 308,536 294,789

Cost of sales SHERA 708,199 525,628
Turnover days of trade and other payables? FEASBR AR % EL b B TR IE 8 B 2 159 205

Notes Hfz

T Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period.
PG REA BRR R LAt FE A RIB AR S RS TE B R M I R PR BRI EL A PR RUR M P19

2 Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of sales for
that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.
A5 B R O A RN I EL A FE S FUE A EE B AR S N2 B T RS R AR HAL RS BB A GZ IR VN & 388 BRUZSENBES -

The increase in average trade and other 2011512 A31H W F 9B IRF R H Ath FE
payables at December 31, 2011 (US$286.6  {47%18 (R2011F 12831 B A286.6HEXE
million at December 31, 2011 compared to 7t » M #2010 12A318 Bl 533058 &
US$330.5 million at December 31, 2010) % 7t) ¥2010F 128318 (R2010F124
from December 31, 2010 (US$330.5 millionat  31H £&3305B & X 7t * M MA2009F 128
December 31, 2010 compared to US$259.1 31 HBIAE259 1 BEET) M TEBHR
. million at December 31, 2009) was primarily ~ HiRBENFEIEINKEHZE B AR o
2002 due to increased inventory purchases period 2011 EHENIRA R EMESRIBBREER
over period and the timing of such purchases.  E&2010F R4 » EEHWRHEFEEEM
The decrease in turnover days of trade and other payables ~ EHEERA LH - EEH0 B P HENERR
in 2011 from 2010 was primarily due to an increase in R E b TRIBHY IR 18R FTIELEY o
cost of sales attributable to higher net sales, partially offset
by an increase in average trade and other payables year ~ #2011F12 831 B 2EFBRATFITHMRE

The F’lite introduced
Hardlite technology

to the world; the first
product in the industry
to be rigid and strong

yet lightweight. over year. S HEEEFH105HREIE -
A HardliteRHE A lite »
P ey CEa Trade payables as of December 31, 2011 are on average

o TR R B R B due within 105 days from the invoice date.
TRESTHEm °
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Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Company’s historical capital expenditures for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

BEXEX

BEERMX
TREVADTREE2011FE12A318K
2010F 12 A31HIEFEMNBEERER -

BZE12B31ALEE
Year ended December 31,

NFETLE5
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2010
Land Tty 85 -
Buildings s 513 1,258
Machinery, equipment, HER - BB HEYEREIEREM
leasehold improvements and other 36,574 28,317
37,172 29,575

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Company’s capital expenditures budget for 2012 is approximately US$43.0
million. The Company plans to refurbish existing retail stores, to open new retail
stores and to invest in machinery and equipment.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Company’s
contractual obligations for which cash flows are fixed and determinable as of
December 31, 2011.

SEEARX
RATONFENERMIEAENR4I3.08
BXET - AQEEBHRAREE  BAR
HNEERE - URRENEBIRRE -

EHER
TREMM201MFE12A31BARDTFMER
BeREABEERAIEENGNEENTEST
ZHAME -

BIH R
Payments Due
1-2F 2-5%F

UFET25] Bt 15 R Between Between BiBSF

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Total Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years

Loans and borrowings BERRER 15,086 15,015 26 37 8
Minimum operating BRIEKEHE NI

lease payments 200,749 53,074 41,808 81,804 24,063

215,835 68,089 41,834 81,841 24,071

As of December 31, 2011, the Company did not have any material off-balance
sheet arrangements or contingencies except as included in the table summarizing
its contractual obligations above.

MA20115F 128318 BRERBIMA QT
EREEN  AATRLEEIMNEANEES
BERIIZPHHAREE o
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Gearing Ratio

The following table sets forth the Company’s loans and borrowings (excluding
deferred financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as of December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010.

ERE =R
TREHIADNTR2011F12831BK2010
F12A3BMNERRER MWRIELRE
RAR) ~ R BEERERIEE -

BZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

2010

NFETL
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars
Loans and borrowings ERR AR
(excl. deferred financing costs) (MBRIEFE BAE AL AN )
Total equity EmBzE
Gearing ratio’ Bz

15,086 258,741
945,200 762,852
1.6% 33.9%

Note FizE

T Calculated as total loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity.

RERRETREE (BIRELRERA) BRUERAETH -

As a result of the repayment of the loan notes, the former amended senior credit
facility and the former term loan facility in 2011, the Company’s gearing ratio
decreased from 33.9% at December 31, 2010 to 1.6% at December 31, 2011.

Other Information

Human Resources and Remuneration

At December 31, 2011, the Company had approximately 6,640 employees
worldwide, compared to approximately 5,750 employees at December 31, 2010.
The Company regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees
according to the relevant market practice, employee performance and the
financial performance of the Company.

Strategic Review and Prospects
During 2011, the Company continued to implement its strategic plan in the
following areas:

Significant growth in all regions
All regions and key company metrics showed considerable growth for the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year ended December 31, 2010.

e The Company’s net sales, Adjusted Net Income, and Adjusted EBITDA
for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased by 34.4%, 56.6% and
47.2%, respectively, compared to the year ended December 31, 2010.
These figures exclude the effect of the termination of the Lacoste and
Timberland licensing agreements, which were no longer active from
December 2010, and have been adjusted to eliminate the effect of certain
non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges.

e Net sales increased by 28.8% to US$1,565.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year. Excluding foreign
currency effects, net sales increased by 24.3%.

HARE201 FEEZERER  LAKIEITE
AEERERENEHEERE  AATIE
1R EH2010F12831BM33.9% THRZE
2011512831 H/1.6% °
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6,640B{EE » MMN2010FE 12831 BEIEEXN
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e Adjusted Net Income increased by 29.6% to US$136.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

e Adjusted EBITDA increased by 29.3% to US$248.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011 compared to the previous year.

e Adjusted EBITDA margin remained relatively flat at 15.9% and 15.8% for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Significant investment in advertising and promotion

The Company continued to invest approximately 8% of net sales in marketing,
reflecting its commitment to advertise and promote its brands and products
to support sales growth worldwide. Marketing expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2011 increased by 19.9% to US$122.8 million, compared to
the year ended December 31, 2010.

New products in the market
The Company continued to focus on the innovation of its products, which
will help drive sales growth and deliver quality and value to its customers.

Expanded distribution network

The Company continued the further expansion of its distribution network by
adding approximately 2,900 points of sale, including 36 Company-owned
retail stores and 79 new stores operated by preferred dealers in 2011. More
than 2,300 points of sale were added in North America and more than 400
points of sale were added in Asia during the year ended December 31, 2011.

The Company’s growth strategy will continue as planned for 2012, while
focusing on the following:

e |everage the strength of the Company’s brands, Samsonite and American
Tourister;

e tailor our products to meet local requirements, while staying true to our
core values of lightness, strength and innovation;

e improve the efficiency and effectiveness of our supply chain and global
distribution network;

e increase our marketing and R&D investment broadly in line with worldwide
sales growth;

e deploy increased levels of resources to improve our market share of
business and casual products and accessories, where the Company is
under-represented; and

e focus on achieving growth organically, while considering acquisition
opportunities with a compelling strategic and financial rationale as
they arise.

The Company aims to deliver top-line growth, maintain gross margins,
increase Adjusted EBITDA margins and create shareholder value.
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Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. Maximum
exposure is limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in
the Company'’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
2008 demographiFS of its cu;tomer base, includihg
the default risk of the industry and country in
A new era in suitcase which customers operate, as these factors may
technology; using have an influence on credit risk. There is no
Samsonite’s Curv concentration of credit risk geographically or
technology, the Cosmolite  ith any single customer.
was introduced as
the strongest, lightest
Samsonite ever made.
RAFFBERCunvBl i 8iE
HICosmolite * R FEEL
USR58 % Bx B HVAT 246 -
FRITRER R o

3

The Company has established a credit policy
under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before its
standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped
according to their credit characteristics, including aging profile,
and existence of previous financial difficulties. Trade and other
receivables relate mainly to the Company’s wholesale customers.
Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit
hold and monitored by the Company, and future sales are made
on an approval basis.

Financial Guarantees
The Company’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of
subsidiaries. No other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
the obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating
activities, invested cash, and available lines of credit. The Company has no
significant debt service obligations and believes that its existing cash and estimated
cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to meet its
operating and capital requirements for at least the next twelve months.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that
are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies
of its subsidiaries.

The Company periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The forward
exchange contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings
on variable rate debt instruments. Although the Company does not currently
have any interest rate hedging instruments, it may from time to time enter into
interest rate swap contracts to manage interest rate risk.

Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to
measure periodic net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net
of pension plan assets in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial
position. The Company’s investment strategy is to generate investment returns
on pension plan assets in order to satisfy its defined benefit pension plan
obligations. The Company engages professional pension plan asset managers
to assist in this process.

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement
date without considering future compensation levels), exceeds the fair value of
the assets of the Company’s pension plans, which is primarily the result of the
performance of equity markets during prior years. Future market conditions and
interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact future assets and liabilities
of the Company’s pension plans and future minimum required funding levels.
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Corporate Governance Report tx=s5s

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognizes that corporate governance practices
are fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

On October 19, 2011 the Company adopted its own corporate governance
manual, which is based on the principles, provisions and practices set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the period from the listing of the Company on June 16,
2011 (the “Listing Date”) to December 31, 2011, save for the deviation from
code provision A.2.1 discussed below regarding the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ").

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Timothy Parker, the CEO of the Company, is also the Chairman of the
Board. The Company believes this is appropriate because having Mr. Parker
serve as both the CEO and the Chairman provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board, which is
comprised of highly experienced individuals including three Executive Directors
(including Mr. Parker), three Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Moreover, Mr. Parker is not a member of either the
Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee of the Board, and each of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination committees is comprised of a majority
of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”) for securities
transactions by directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. The
Trading Policy is no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Trading Policy for
the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2011. Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ interests in the Company’s shares as at December 31, 2011 are set
out at pages 75 to 76 of this Annual Report.
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The Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
corporate governance and financial reporting of the Company and for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control. To assist it in
fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three board committees: the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee (for
details of which see pages 55 to 57 of this Annual Report).

The day-to-day operation of the business of the Company is managed by the
CEO and his management team.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must
be approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation,
approval and adoption of the Company’s annual operating budget and capital
expenditure budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO, Chief Financial Officer,
Joint Company Secretary or certain other members of the Company’s senior
management team; and approving and recommending significant transactions.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.

Composition of the Board, Number of Board Meetings and
Directors’ Attendance

The Board consists of nine directors, including three Executive Directors (“ED"),
three Non-Executive Directors (“NED"), and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INED"). The biographical details of each director and their respective
responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 61 to 70 of this Annual Report.

There were five meetings of the Board held during the year ended December
31, 2011. The following is the attendance record of the Board and committee
meetings held during the year:
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R
Attendance

25 gy EREEY REEEY FMEES
Category Board of Directors'  Audit Committee Nomination Committee ~ Remuneration Committee

Timothy Charles Parker ED Chairman and CEO 5/5 - - -
HITESERERTHEAR

Kyle Francis Gendreau ED 5/5 - - -
YITES

Ramesh Dungarmal ED 4/5 - - -

Tainwala HTEE

Nicholas James Clarry NED 5/5 2/2 - -
FHITES

Keith Hamill NED 3/5 2/2 - =
FHITES

Bruce Hardy McLain NED 4/5 - - 171
FHTES

Paul Kenneth Etchells INED 4/5 2/2 - 1/1
BYFHITES

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko INED 4/5 2/2 - 1/1
BYFHITES

Ying Yeh INED 4/5 2/2 - 1/1
BIYFHTES

Note FfizE

' Two of the five meetings of the Board occurred prior to the Listing Date. At the time of the first such meeting, Messrs. Parker, Gendreau and Clarry were the
only directors of the Company.
AREEEERPHWMIA LT AHAIEH - REXEEEE 2 - Parker » GendreauRk Clarry A4 AR AT —EE -

BBUFHTESTFAAQARMABL
MRS MARBRELHRAE313
FRRABBZELFNITESHIRE Y -

Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation of his or her
independence, and the Company considers each of the INEDs to be independent
under rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

ERERARTA
BHEHNESETENEANERZD 148

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14 days in

advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings.
Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow
directors to include items in the agenda, and final agendas together with board
papers are sent to directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting so that
the Board can make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Each
director also has separate and independent access to the senior management
where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest in a transaction,
that director is required to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at the meeting for approving the transaction.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment,
election and removal of directors, which is set out in the Company’s articles
of incorporation and is led by the nomination committee, which will make
recommendations on new director appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs is engaged on a service contract for a term of 3
years, subject to re-election. Each of the EDs is also party to a service contract,
with their appointment subject to re-election. Further details of the appointment,
election and removal of directors are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 61 to 70 of this Annual Report.

Induction and Ongoing Development

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and awareness of a director’s responsibilities and obligations,
and directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities.

Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website and
are available to shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees
generally follow the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Board established an Audit Committee on May 27, 2011 and adopted
written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the
committee. The Audit Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Paul
Etchells (Chairman of the Audit Committee) (INED), Mr. Miguel Ko (INED), Ms.
Ying Yeh (INED), Mr. Nicholas Clarry (NED), and Mr. Keith Hamill (NED).

In compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the
Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise in discharging the responsibilities of
the Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements
as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever required.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls, to monitor the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial reporting, and to
oversee the audit process.

There were two meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2011. The following is a summary of the work performed by the
audit committee during 2011:

e Reviewed the draft results announcement and interim report of the Company
for the six months ended June 30, 2011;

e Reviewed the scope of the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011, as well as the fee
proposal for such audit;

e Reviewed the status and plans for the Company’s internal audit function; and

e Planned for the review of the Company’s internal control system to be
performed in connection with the annual report for the year ended December
31,2011.

In addition, during the first three months of 2012 the Audit Committee conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls and reviewed
the independence of the Company’s external auditors and recommended the
re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ending December 31, 2012.

Nomination Committee

The Board established a Nomination Committee on May 27, 2011 and adopted
written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the
committee. The Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.
Timothy Parker (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (ED), Mr. Paul Etchells
(INED), Mr. Miguel Ko (INED), Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), and Mr. Nicholas Clarry (NED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board
with respect to any changes to the composition of the Board, and to assess the
independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee did not meet during the year ended December
31, 2011 because the Company did not consider it necessary to review the
composition of the Board in the six month period between the Listing Date
and December 31, 2011. Going forward, the Nomination Committee will meet
at least once a year to discharge its responsibilities. When identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall (where applicable and appropriate)
use open advertising or the services of external advisers and consider candidates
from a wide range of backgrounds on merit and against objective criteria.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Remuneration Committee on May 27, 2011 and
adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of
the committee. The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Miguel Ko (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul
Etchells (INED), Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), and Mr. Hardy McLain (NED).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, as well as
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
certain members of Senior Management.

There was one meeting of the Remuneration Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2011. The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee during 2011:

e Reviewed compensation arrangements of Executive Directors and certain
members of senior management; and

e Approved the participation of an Executive Director in an employee
benefit plan.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Company,
as well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors:

The remuneration of directors is determined by the Board, which receives
recommendations from the remuneration committee. The remuneration of
directors also has to be approved by special resolutions at the annual general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. One of the NEDs and all of the INEDs
received directors’ fees. Executive Directors did not receive any directors’ fees.

Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the Executive
Directors and senior management receive compensation in the form of salaries
and bonuses subject to performance targets.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company does not have any long-term
incentive schemes. If the Company decides to establish any such schemes in the
future, further to recommendations from our remuneration committee, such
schemes will comply with applicable provisions of the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses,
and other benefits) was approximately US$4.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The aggregate amount of emoluments for the five highest
paid individuals of the Company, including certain Executive Directors, was
approximately US$5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. No
amounts have been paid to the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company, or as compensation
for loss of office for the year ended December 31, 2011. No directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments to which they were entitled for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

The following table summarizes the emoluments, by band, of the ten members
of the Company’s senior management for the year ended December 31, 2011:
US$250,000 - 500,000: four employees

US$500,000 — 750,000: three employees

US$750,000 — 1,000,000: one employee

Over US$1,000,000: two employees

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 85
of this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended
December 31, 2011 provided by KPMG LLP, the external auditors of the
Company, were as follows:
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US$'000
FEEZRPHEHRE 3,091
Annual audit and interim review services
TRBEELENER 4,164
Fees incurred in connection with the Global Offering
BB RTE 496
Non-audit related services
“st 7,751
Total
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

e Overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Company with
a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company; and

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with
the support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to
be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s financial reporting, including annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements, and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, and reports to regulators and information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls
The Board places great importance on internal control and is responsible to
ensure that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls.

The Company’s internal audit department provides an independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system. The internal and
external audit plans are discussed and agreed each year with the Audit Committee.
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The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control for the year ended December 31, 2011. The Board has delegated
to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the Company’s internal
controls and reporting the committee’s findings to the Board. In conducting
such review, the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board has (i) reviewed
the Company’s internal audit activities during the year and discussed such
activities and the results thereof with the Company’s Director of Internal Audit,
(i) reviewed and discussed the scope and results of the annual audit with the
Company’s external auditors, (iii) reviewed the assessment of internal controls
conducted in connection with the Company’s initial public offering, and (iv)
reviewed with management the results of the Company’s internal management
representation process that was performed in connection with the preparation
of the annual financial statements. Based on its review, the Board is not aware
of any material defects in the effectiveness of internal controls.

Communications with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications
with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps a constant dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls, information
sessions and participation in major investor conferences to communicate the
Company'’s business strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, stock exchange filings, video
webcasts, press releases and other information and updates on the Company’s
operations and financial performance are available for public access on the
Company's website, www.samsonite.com, and some of them are also available
on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company’s Annual
General Meeting ("AGM") and other general meetings, to communicate
their views and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level
of accountability and also to stay informed of the Company’s strategies,
developments and goals.

The 2012 AGM will be held on June 7, 2012. The notice of AGM will be sent
to the shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Directors and Senior Management z=rsg==E

General

The Board currently consists of nine directors, comprising three Executive
Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

In accordance with Code provision A.4.2 as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Under Article 8.1 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the
directors shall be elected by the shareholders at a general meeting, and the
term of office of a director shall be three years, upon the expiry of which
each shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Keith Hamill, Miguel Kai Kwun Ko and Ramesh Dungarmal
Tainwala shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as directors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting “AGM".

The terms of the other six directors will expire at the June 6, 2013 Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Directors

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the Company’s business. The following table sets out certain
information concerning the directors:
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Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities’
Timothy Charles 56 Executive Director, Chairman As non-executive chairman: Overall strategic planning
Parker and Chief Executive Officer November 2008 and management of the
HITES - TERTBER As Chief Executive Officer: Company
January 2009 RATNEERIHRE
RIFFAITER : 20085118 RER
BITHARER © 2009F 14
Kyle Francis 42 Executive Director and Chief January 2009 Management of the
Gendreau Financial Officer 20091 AR Company’s finance and
HITEERIERE treasury matters
EEANRWI KR B E
BHEHE
Ramesh Dungarmal 52 Executive Director and February 2011 Management and
Tainwala President, Asia-Pacific and 201142 8 development of the

Middle East
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HE Fie it E3Ea=p] TERE
Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities'
Nicholas James Clarry 40 Non-Executive Director October 2007
FHITES 200741048
Keith Hamill 59 Non-Executive Director October 2009
FHTES 2009104
Bruce Hardy McLain 59 Non-Executive Director October 2007
(Hardy) IEHITES 20074108
Paul Kenneth Etchells 61 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
Director 2011458
BN FHTES
Miguel Kai Kwun Ko 59 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
Director 2011458
BYFHTES
Ying Yeh 63 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
Director 2011458
BYFEHITES

Note K&

' As is usual for a company of this size, the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational
responsibilities but rather, with the benefit of their particular experiences, provide strategic guidance and leadership to the Board.
MEERENAR  FPTEERBUFATESLRBELESRT MRS RECREINOESSRMURBIEEREE -

Executive Directors

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors. He was
appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of the Company with effect from
November 2008 and has been the Chief Executive Officer since January 2009.
Mr. Parker is responsible for the Company’s overall strategic planning and
management. Mr. Parker has a long history of managing large businesses.
Prior to joining the Company he was chief executive of: The Automobile
Association (2004 to 2007), the car-repair firm Kwik-Fit (2002 to 2004),
Clarks, the shoemaker (1997 to 2002) and Kenwood Appliances (1989 to
1995). Mr. Parker currently holds a directorship with and is the chairman of
Autobar Group, and has previously held non-executive directorships with
Alliance Boots, Compass and Legal and General. Mr. Parker also currently
holds a non-executive directorship with Archive Investments. Mr. Parker has
also previously advised ministers and senior civil servants on nationalized
industry policy in his capacity as an economist at the British Treasury (1977
to 1979). Mr. Parker is also an industrial partner of an affiliate of the CVC
Funds, providing assistance in the sourcing and evaluation of potential
investment opportunities, and in some cases, once an investment has been
made, advising and assisting with the operation of the investment. Mr.
Parker holds a BA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the University
of Oxford, Oxford, the United Kingdom (1977) and a Masters in Business
Studies from London Graduate School of Business Studies, London, the
United Kingdom (1981).
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Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company with effect from January 2009 and has been the
Chief Financial Officer since January 2009. Mr. Gendreau is responsible for
managing all aspects of the Company’s finance and treasury matters. He
joined the Company in June 2007 as Vice President of Corporate Finance
and as Assistant Treasurer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Gendreau
held various positions including vice president of finance and chief financial
officer at Zoots Corporation, a venture capital-backed start up company
(2000 to 2007), assistant vice president of finance and director of SEC
reporting at Specialty Catalog Corporation, a listed catalog retailer (1997
to 2000) and a manager at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996).
Mr. Gendreau holds a BS in Business Administration from Stonehill College,
Easton, Massachusetts, USA (1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant
in Massachusetts.

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from February 2011 and
is the Company’s President for Asia-Pacific and the Middle East. In his
role as President, Mr. Tainwala’s principal responsibility is to manage and
develop the Company’s business in Asia Pacific. The responsibilities of
this role include the Company’s manufacturing operations in India as well
as marketing and sales in the Middle East, West Asia and Australia. Mr.
Tainwala has been the General Manager of the Company’s Middle Eastern
operation since January 2007 and has been the Chief Operating Officer
of the Company’s Indian operation since June 2000. Prior to joining the
Company in November 1995, Mr. Tainwala worked in the plastic processing
and consumer goods industries including with Tainwala Chemicals & Plastics
(India) Limited with which he was associated from 1985 to 2008. Mr.
Tainwala was an entrepreneur in the plastic processing and consumer goods
industries. Mr. Tainwala is also an independent non-executive director of
Donear Industries Limited and of Basant Agro Tech (India) Ltd., both listed
on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited. Mr. Tainwala holds a Masters degree in Management Studies from
the Birla Institute of Technology and Science, Pilani, India (1982).

Kyle Francis Gendreau 54 » 425 + 142009
FIRAREZEARLAHTES IHN
20094 1 B e —E{E{E B #44EX » Gendreau
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Nicholas James Clarry, aged 40, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from October 2007. Mr. Clarry is a
senior managing director of private equity house CVC Capital Partners which
he joined in 2003. Since joining CVC Capital Partners he has been involved
in a number of investments and is currently a director of entities in the
Formula One group and the holding company of the Autobar Group, the
European vending machine operator. Prior to joining CVC Capital Partners,
Mr. Clarry worked in the mergers and acquisitions divisions of Morgan
Stanley (2000 to 2003) and Goldman Sachs (1996 to 2000). Mr. Clarry
began his career with JP Morgan Asset Management where he worked from
1994 to 1996. Mr. Clarry holds a BA in Economics from the University of
Cambridge, Cambridge, the United Kingdom (1993).

Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
with effect from October 2009. He was initially appointed by RBS following
the 2009 Reorganization. Mr. Hamill has extensive experience as both an
executive and non-executive director of major international corporations.
He is currently the chairman of Tullett Prebon plc, an inter-dealer broker (a
company listed on the main board of the London Stock Exchange), Endell
Group Holdings Limited (parent company of Travelodge Hotels Limited)
and of Fundsmith LLP, a fund manager and is a non-executive director on
the board of a number of other companies including easylet plc and Max
Property Group plc. Mr. Hamill's prior experience also includes being the
chairman of Alterian plc, the software developer (a company listed on
the main board of the London Stock Exchange) (until September 2011),
a non-executive director of Heath Lambert Limited (2009 to 2011) and
HGL Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011), group chief financial officer of
Forte plc (1993 to 1996), WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000) and the company
which was then named United Distillers International Limited (1991 to
1992), and a director of financial control at Guinness plc (1988 to 1991).
Mr. Hamill was also a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986 to
1988). Mr. Hamill holds a BA in Politics from the University of Nottingham,
Nottingham, the United Kingdom (1974), is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants, England and Wales and was previously Chairman
of the Board of the University of Nottingham.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 59, was appointed as a Non-
Executive Director with effect from October 2007. Mr. McLain is a managing
partner and co-founder of CVC Capital Partners (formerly a subsidiary
of Citigroup known as Citicorp Development Capital). Mr. McLain joined
Citicorp Development Capital in 1988, and in 1993 participated along with
fellow managers in the acquisition of Citicorp Development Capital from
Citigroup and the founding of CVC Capital Partners. Since founding CVC
Capital Partners he has been involved in and held a number of directorships
including within the Dorna Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala VMC
OYJ (1998 to 2005), Punch Taverns Plc (formerly known as Punch Group
Limited) (1999 to 2002), Spirit Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Spirit Amber Holdings) (2003 to 2006), and Kappa Holding BV (1998
to 2000). He is currently a director of Formula One, the Colomer Group
and the Lecta Group. Prior to joining Citicorp Development Capital, Mr.
McLain worked for Citicorp’s investment management (1986 to 1987) and
mezzanine finance (1987 to 1988) groups. Mr. McLain holds a BA in Public
Policy and Psychology from Duke University, Durham, North Carolina, USA,
where he graduated in 1976, and an MBA in Finance and Marketing from
UCLA, Los Angeles, California, USA (1981).

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director with effect from May 26, 2011. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Swire Properties Limited, a leading
developer, owner and operator of mixed use, principally commercial
properties in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Etchells has also held various
positions at The Coca-Cola Company (1998 to 2010), including deputy
president of Coca-Cola Pacific (2007 to 2010) and president of Coca-
Cola China (2002 to 2007). Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company, Mr.
Etchells held various positions at the Swire Group (1976 to 1998), including
managing director of Swire Beverages (1995 to 1998), general manager of
the Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1989 to 1995) and finance manager
of the Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1981 to 1989). Mr. Etchells holds
a BA in Political Studies from the University of Leeds, Leeds, the United
Kingdom (1971) and is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director with effect from May 26, 2011. Mr. Ko has held
various executive and non-executive positions in international hotel
companies and other corporations in Asia. He is currently chairman and
president of Starwood Hotels & Resorts in Asia Pacific, which he joined in
2000. Mr. Ko currently holds two non-executive directorships in Changi
Airport Group, Singapore and Royal Orchid Hotel (Thailand) plc, which he
joined in 2010 and 2001, respectively. Prior to joining Starwood Hotels &
Resorts, Mr. Ko held the position of deputy chairman and chief executive
officer at City E-Solutions (formerly known as CDL Hotels) (2000), various
positions including president at PepsiCo for Asia Pacific (1992 to 1999) and
various positions at ITT Sheraton Corporation (1979 to 1992). Mr. Ko has
also previously held various non-executive directorships with Millennium
and Copthorne plc UK, Amarin Plaza, Thailand, City e-Solutions Hong Kong
(formerly known as CDL Hotels), Serm Suk Company, Thailand and Civil
Aviation Authority, Singapore. Mr. Ko holds a BA in Economics from the
University of Massachusetts (1975) and a MBA from Suffolk University,
Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1979). He also qualified as a Certified Public
Accountant in New Hampshire in 1982, though does not currently practice.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director with effect from May 26, 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive experience
as an executive and a non-executive director of major international
corporations. She was the chairman of Nalco Greater China Region until
June 30, 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s largest sustainability service
companies. Ms. Yeh currently holds the non-executive directorships at ABB
Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the stock exchanges
in Stockholm (NASDAQ OMX Stockholm) and New York (NYSE)), AB
Volvo (a company listed on the OMX Nordic Exchange, Stockholm) and
InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a company listed on the main board
of the London Stock Exchange). Prior to joining Nalco, Ms. Yeh worked
in various Asian divisions of Eastman Kodak (1997 to 2009) and also held
various positions with the United States Government, Foreign Service (1982
to 1997). Ms. Yeh holds a BA in Literature and International Relations from
National Taiwan University, Taiwan (1967).
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Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of
our business. The following table sets out certain information concerning
our senior management:

SREEE
BRERESERMOXBHARER T
RESEREEENETER

®E FiR BA

Name Age Position

Timothy Charles Parker 56 Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
HTEE - TERTHER

Kyle Francis Gendreau 42 Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

HITESRUBHE

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala 52

Tom Korbas 60 President, Americas

Fabio Rugarli 47 President, Europe
BONEEE

John Henry Sullivan (Jack) 59 President, Latin America
NTEMNEBEE

Robert Thomas Zielinski 55 Chief Supply Officer
YRt R R

Paola Tiziana Brunazzi 49
2R RFAREESR

Andrew David Wells 51 Chief Information Officer
EsBE

John Bayard Livingston 44

Executive Director and President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East

HOTESHRDARPRIEERE

Vice President, Global Design and Development

Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

B - BERBEEREEATUE

Mr. Tom Korbas is the President of the Company’s Americas division and is
responsible for the overall management and development of the Company’s
business in the Americas. Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1993. His
previous positions with the Company include: Vice President/General
Manager of the Company’s US wholesale business (2000 to 2004), Vice
President of Sales and Operations (1998 to 2000) and Senior Vice President
of Soft-Side and Casual Bags (1997 to 1998). Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Korbas was vice president of operations (1986 to 1997), director of
manufacturing operations, and engineering manager for American Tourister.
Mr. Korbas holds a BS in Industrial Engineering from Northeastern University,
Boston, Massachusetts, USA (1973) and an MBA from Babson College,
Wellesley, Massachusetts, USA (1976).
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Mr. Fabio Rugarli is the President of the Company’s European division
and is responsible for the overall management and development of the
Company'’s business in Europe. Mr. Rugarli joined the Company in 1989.
His previous positions with the Company include General Manager for
Samsonite Italy (2002 to 2009) and Marketing and Sales Director for the
luggage division in Italy (1996 to 2001). Mr. Rugarli holds a degree in
Business Administration from the University Bocconi, Milan, Italy (1988).

Mr. John Henry Sullivan (Jack) is the President of the Company’s
Latin America division and is responsible for the overall management and
development of the Company’s business in Latin America. Mr. Sullivan
joined the Company in 1985, left in 1990 and rejoined in 1994. His previous
positions within the Company include: Vice President for the Mexico division
and Vice President and General Manager for the Latin America division of
the Company. In 1990 and 1991 he was marketing director for the Monroe
division at Tenneco Automotive. Before rejoining the Company, he was
with Frito-Lay International, the snack food division of PepsiCo where he
was vice president for marketing and sales of the Puerto Rican division
and president of the Caribbean division. Prior to joining the Company in
1985, Mr. Sullivan was manager of international affiliates at General Electric
Consumer Electronics, and assistant sales manager, marketing manager and
franchise manager for southern Spain for Pepsi-Cola International. He holds
a BA in Chemistry from Williams College, Williamstown, Massachusetts,
USA (1974) and a MBA (Marketing) from Amos Tuck School at Dartmouth
College, Hanover, New Hampshire, USA (1978).

Mr. Robert Thomas Zielinski is the Company’s Chief Supply Officer and
is responsible for the Company’s supply chain and the development of key
supplier partnerships. Mr. Zielinski joined the Company in 1992 and his
previous positions with the Company include: Vice President for Sourcing
(2000 to 2009), Director for Planning and Scheduling (1997 to 2000) and
Senior Manager of Forecasting (1994 to 1997). Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Zielinski held various production and distribution positions at Health-Tex
Inc between 1977 and 1992. Mr. Zielinski holds a BA in Political Science
from Providence College, Providence, Rhode Island, USA (1979).
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Ms. Paola Tiziana Brunazzi is the Company's Vice President for Global
Design and Development, a position she has held since 2009. Ms. Brunazzi
joined the Company in 2006 as a project manager for the Lacoste brands.
Ms. Brunazzi has extensive experience in the luxury brands industry having
worked as senior designer, project manager and director of the design office
at various fashion houses including Tod's S.p.A. (2004 to 2006), Dolce &
Gabbana S.p.A. (2001 to 2004), Sosir S.p.A. (Trussardi) (1999 to 2001),
Coccinelle (1999), Sosir S.p.A. (Trussardi) (1996 to 1999) and as a consultant
with Fontana S.r.l. (1991 to 1996). Ms. Brunazzi holds a masters degree in
Fashion Design from Domus Academy, Milan, Italy (1984).

Mr. Andrew David Wells is the Company’s Chief Information Officer and
is responsible for developing, structuring and implementing the Company’s
global information technology strategy and outsourced IT shared services.
Mr. Wells joined the Company in March 2009. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Wells was global chief information officer and senior vice president at
Shire plc, a FTSE 100 pharmaceutical company (2000 to 2008), supply chain
director for Bristol Myers Squibb Central & Eastern Europe Division (1996 to
1999) and manager of Information Services International at Mars (1986 to
1996). Mr. Wells holds a M Eng (Masters of Engineering) from Cambridge
University, Cambridge, the United Kingdom (1994).

Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston is responsible for all
of the Company’s legal matters worldwide and provides counsel to senior
management and the Directors on matters of corporate governance. Mr.
Livingston joined the Company in July 2006 and was Vice President and
General Counsel for the Company’s Americas division until September 2009
when he became Vice President and General Counsel of the Company. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Livingston was in-house counsel (2002-2006) at
Reebok International Ltd. and was an associate in the corporate department
of Ropes & Gray (1995 to 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a BA in Political
Science from Colgate University, Hamilton, New York, USA (1989), and a
J.D. from Boston College Law School, Newton, Massachusetts, USA (1994).
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Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Wun Sei Lo are the Company's
joint company secretaries. Ms. Wun Sei Lo was appointed as joint company
secretary and an authorized representative of the Company with effect from
May 27, 2011. Ms. Lo has more than ten years of experience in the field of
corporate secretarial services and is currently a corporate services manager
of Tricor Services Limited, which she joined in 2003. Prior to joining Tricor
Services Limited, Ms. Lo held two positions at PricewaterhouseCoopers
including as an associate in Assurance and Business Advisory Services
Department (1999 to 2001) and as an associate in the Corporate Services
Department (2001 to 2003). Ms. Lo holds a BA in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University (1999) and is an Associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an Associate of the Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

None of the Directors or Senior Managers is related to any other Director
or Senior Manager.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2011.

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the
“Company”) is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and
distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags,
and travel accessories throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite® and
American Tourister® brand names and other owned and licensed brand names.
The Company sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution
channels and through its company operated retail stores. The principal luggage
wholesale distribution customers of the Company are department and specialty
retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs.
The Company sells its products primarily in Asia, Europe, North America and
Latin America.

Results and Distributions to Shareholders
The results of the Company are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 86 to 175 of this Annual Report.

The Board recommends that a cash distribution in the amount of US$0.02132
per share (the “Distribution”) be made to the Company’s shareholders from its
ad hoc distributable reserve. The payment shall be made in US dollars, except
that payment to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
in Hong Kong shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant exchange
rate shall be the opening buying rate of Hong Kong dollars to US dollars as
announced by the Hong Kong Association of Banks (www.hkab.org.hk) on the
day of the approval of the Distribution.

The Distribution will be subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from June 5, 2012 to June 7, 2012, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. The record date to determine which
shareholders will be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM will be
June 7, 2012. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on June 4, 2012.

*  For identification purposes only
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Subject to the shareholders approving the recommended Distribution at the
forthcoming AGM, such Distribution will be payable on or about July 6, 2012
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on June 15,
2012. To determine eligibility for the Distribution, the register of members will
be closed from June 14, 2012 to June 15, 2012, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to
receive the Distribution, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on June 13, 2012.

The Distribution will not be subject to withholding tax under Luxembourg laws.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment for the year
ended December 31, 2011 is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves during the year ended
December 31, 2011 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity on pages 90 and 91 of this Annual Report and in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At December 31, 2011, reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately US$2.3 billion as shown in the statutory accounts of
Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation.

Charitable Donations
Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to US$0.2 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the year ended December 31, 2011 are set out in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011 are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Bank Loans
As at December 31, 2011, the Company had bank loans of approximately
US$15.0 million that were repayable upon demand or within one year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Company’s major
suppliers during the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

RITER
AATR2011F12B31BNRTERNS
15.0BBET BRERIN—FREE-

FEEFRMEERD
AATEEHEFEML2011F1283181E
EENARBECEOLLNT :

RigE
Purchases

The largest supplier S ALFERE
Five largest suppliers combined T A FERE & HFE(S

12.3%
35.2%

The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers was less than 30% during the year ended
December 31, 2011.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the
Company’s five largest suppliers and customers.

Five Year Financial Information
A summary of the results, assets, and liabilities of the Company for the last five
fiscal years is set out on page 176 of this Annual Report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

Purchase, Sale, or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the period from the Listing
Date to December 31, 2011.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Directors
As at December 31, 2011 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors
Timothy Charles Parker

Kyle Francis Gendreau
Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala

Non-Executive Directors
Nicholas James Clarry

Keith Hamill

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Paul Kenneth Etchells

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko

Ying Yeh

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 62 to 66 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2012 AGM has or
is proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except as disclosed in respect of Ramesh Tainwala’s interests in certain of the
Company’s continuing connected transactions on pages 79 to 81 below, none
of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in the shares and underlying shares

As at December 31, 2011, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company

EERBRETHRAERBRORAEREE
BEERAE

R2011F 128318 ARAEERBREIT
BABRAQAREEEAE (REHFRE
EGG ([FHERBEKRH]) EXVHZE
) ZROREERGPEERE(ESFR
HERD) EXVEE 7RSS BAMEARR
ARBEBHERSMERAT (BERER
ZRBERGAZEBEGEIRE  HERR
EREERE2EZRAR) IREZFFR
HEGPEXVHEIREMBEFHEEZE
AT RARE E TR B SR 10FTE 2
(EHBTAZEZETESRS 2ZETA))
(22 ]) BERTHEERDAREBE
ERGIEBRATZRERABNT :

1. RERARBZHER

20111231 BEFENEBRROHEE:

ERERNBIAE Dt

EEME EEMEE Number of ordinary shares held at ~ Approximate shareholding

Name of Directors Nature of Interest December 31, 20112 percentage %

Timothy Charles Parker Beneficial owner 56,285,480 (L) 4.00
BEREEA

Kyle Francis Gendreau Beneficial owner 6,409,648 (L) 0.46
BEREEA

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala Beneficial owner 8,167,634 (L) 0.58
EREEA

Keith Hamill Beneficial owner 193,745 (L) 0.01
EREEA
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2. Interests in the shares of associated corporations 2. R EE N ER

M2011%12H318 RN E DL

g EE AR BENEBRRHEE? Approximate
EBEMA Name of Associated BEMEE Number of ordinary shares held shareholding
Name of Directors Corporation Nature of Interest at December 31, 20112 percentage %
Ramesh Dungarmal Samsonite Beneficial owner and 4,552,020 (L) 12.83
Tainwala South Asia interest in a controlled
Private Limited® corporation
BEREEAR
REZEZEEE R
Samsonite Interest in a controlled 8 (L) 40.00

Middle East FZCOc  corporation
REZESEENER

Notes K&

2 (L) represents long position.
L) RREFA -

> This amount includes 1,807,020 shares held by Mr. Tainwala as the beneficial owner, 556,000 shares held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and
2,189,000 shares held by Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited, of which Mr. Tainwala holds 33.96% of the issued share capital of Tainwala Holdings
Private Limited while Mr. Tainwala’s wife holds 54.21% of the issued share capital of Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited and therefore, Mr. Tainwala is
deemed to be interested in the entire equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and Periwinkle
Fashions Private Limited. 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited is held by the Company.
FHEAEEERES ATainwalai £155#191,807,020/% B3  Tainwala Holdings Private Limited #7#7556,0008% 813 & Periwinkle Fashions
Private Limited}$E#92,189,0008% /%12 » H A Tainwalast 3B Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 33.96% Y2 % 1T B& AN Tainwala %t 4 AV LB
Al3FAPeriwinkle Fashions Private Limited 54.21% T B/TIRA » E It - TainwalaZt 4 W R EFEA Tainwala Holdings Private Limited & Periwinkle
Fashions Private LimitedSamsonite South Asia Private Limited i3St #E 1 F) 2 EFREE © Samsonite South Asia Private Limited 60% I i% #E A< A &)
A -

¢ Mr. Tainwala holds 100% of the equity interest in Periwinkle Holdings Limited and therefore Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire
40% equity interest in Samsonite Middle East FZCO held by Periwinkle Holdings Limited. The remaining equity interest (60%) in Samsonite Middle
East FZCO is held by the Company.
Tainwala%E 435 HPeriwinkle Holdings Limited2#BIR4E » E It - TainwalaZE £ WIRIEFER Periwinkle Holdings Limited#Samsonite Middle East
FZCOFT%40% HIBRAER FI 2 E0#E25 © Samsonite Middle East FZCOBRT BRIE(60%)H AN D EHEA

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2011, none of the directors or ~ BREXFT#ETEE S ®B2011F128318 >
chief executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or A ATEBHHESTHRAEHMERELQTAR
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company ~ E{EIABEE®E (RFHH R EHKRAIEXY
and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the B2 EE) 27 - HERD N ERETE
SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong  BEAREESRHERAIEXVIBEIR
Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including 82 #EHMEARAAREEBHARAZFTER
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under A& (BiEREFFRBEKGIZBREKRX
such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained ~ HERRIEREERE2EZRAR) RNE
by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise  EAREHFH RS 5EHIEXVEBFE 35215
notifiable to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Bz 2 Z MR BEETHERITHEAR
pursuant to the Model Code. REIRBERBHERZMERAR ZERES
WA ©

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in FTERRARDREBERG 2ERR
the shares and underlying shares RE
MR2011E128318 > BEEME UTR
R (TEREEAQAFESIESTHRAE) B
AAREBTRA RIBERD FEEERAEK
N EIRIEE F R ERE 55158 XV EB 58 3364% M
BFHEF2ERMEEN% U ENER
EREAR

As at December 31, 2011, so far as the directors are aware, the following
shareholders (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
had 5% or more beneficial interests or short positions in the issued shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required
to be maintained by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

1. Long and short position in the shares of the Company 1. REQAFIRBZHFRERKE

1 AR FEHIABE A
R2011E12A31BFENY Btk

BRROEE"

Approximate

RERER REMtE Number of ordinary shares shareholding

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest held at December 31, 20112 percentage %

CVC European Equity Partners IV (C) L.P. Beneficial owner 77,201,708 (L) 5.49
BEREEA

CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (A) Beneficial owner 73,584,450 (L) 5.23

L.P BB A

CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (B) Beneficial owner 73,426,501¢ (L) 5.22

L.P. BREEA

CVC Capital Partners SICAV-FIS S.A. Interested in a controlled corporation 403,281,766 (L) 28.66
REZEFEB NS

CVC Capital Partners Finance Limited Interested in a controlled corporation 403,281,766 (L) 28.66
R TG EE N ER

CVC Capital Partners Advisory Company Limited Interested in a controlled corporation 403,281,766 (L) 28.66
REEHEE R

CVC European Equity IV (AB) Limited Interested in a controlled corporation 98,209,419 (L) 6.98
REZZFEB RS

CVC European Equity IV (CDE) Limited Interested in a controlled corporation 150,566,378° (L) 10.7
REZEFEB NS

CVC European Equity Tandem GP Limited Interested in a controlled corporation 154,505,969¢ (L) 10.98
REEHEBE R R

Morgan Stanley Interested in a controlled corporation 88,201,200 (L) 6.27

FEAR £ 3R REEZFEBHER

Morgan Stanley Interested in a controlled corporation 13,579,630 (S) 0.97

EEAR 3 F REZEFEBNERE

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc Beneficial owner 222,853,235 (L) 15.84

B ERIRT BaREBA

Federated Equity Management Company of Investment Manager 70,887,800 (L) 5.04

Pennsylvania REEEA

The Capital Group Companies, Inc. Interested in a controlled corporation 70,605,000 (L) 5.02

REZESEENER

Notes Fffzt
2 (L) represents long position. (S) represents short position.

ORRFE - (SRFRE -

CVC European Equity Partners IV (C) L.P. &% — &% ACVC European Equity IV (CDE) Limited{Z Sl ERRERETEEBE -
¢ CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (A) L.P. and CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (B) L.P. are exempted liability partnerships which are each
controlled by a general partner, CVC European Equity Tandem GP Limited.
CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund(A) L.P & CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (B) L.P 5% Bl — &% ACVC European Equity Tandem GP

Limited 25| WEH R BREESFEBHF o

9 Such 403,281,766 shares belong to the same batches of shares.

403,281,766 R R 3 B E —#HEAR 17
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2011, so far as the directors are
aware, no other persons (except the directors or chief executives) or corporations
had 5% or more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Over-allotment Option

On July 8, 2011, the over-allotment option referred to in the Offering Circular
was partially exercised by the Joint Global Coordinators (Note a) on behalf
of the International Underwriters (Note b) requiring the CVC Funds (Note
¢) and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc to sell 24,664,700 additional shares,
representing approximately 3.7% of the shares initially being offered under
the Global Offering before any exercise of the over-allotment option. After
the over-allotment option was exercised, the shareholding of the substantial
shareholders were as follows:

BrECFRIEEE SN 20115128318 >
BEVTANBETMEMAL (BEEHESIT
BABRIN) SEERARATCEHTROR
HERGPEEENARATREESRBE
1R BISE XV EBEEIZ6MRM A FHEF 2 B LM

SEERM05% Bl E M ERRERAA -
BB R

R0 E7A8H » BEZIRIGAA (Kak
a) REEBEIBREHER (M) HoTEMNE
EEK B RE  ERCVCES (M
o) REEEEXRRTHE24,664,7008%
EIMNEAD - HERBERRERETEA 2R
BETHSRSVLERDN37% c RNEE
BERREETER  TERRORERR
wE

R2011E7AsABFENEERSE

IERENBAE D

REEEE EENE Number of ordinary shares held at ~ Approximate shareholding
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest July 8, 20112 percentage %
CVC Funds Beneficial owner 403,281,766 28.70
CVCES BREEEA
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc Beneficial owner 213,820,484 15.20
BB 2 RIRTT EEEEA

Notes FfizE

@ Joint Global Coordinators mean Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C., The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and Morgan Stanley Asia

Limited.

BEZRHAAESE (M) BREEAF - BB LEELRTERATDRERLAFMNERAF -

b International Underwriters mean Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C., The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc, UBS AG, Hong Kong Branch and The Royal Bank of Scotland N.V., Hong Kong Branch.
B EHEESR (M) BREELR - BB LBELZIRITAER AT » Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc » UBS AGEEB S ITREEHMER
RITERDIT ©

¢ CCVC Funds means CVC European Equity Partners IV (A) L.P, CVC European Equity Partners IV (B) L.P,, CVC European Equity Partners IV (C) L.P, CVC
European Equity Partners IV (D) L.P, CVC European Equity Partners IV (E) L.P, CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (A) L.P., CVC European
Equity Partners Tandem Fund (B) L.P., CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (C) L.P.
CVC E£3ECVC European Equity Partners IV (A) L.P. ~ CVC European Equity Partners IV (B) L.P. ~ CVC European Equity Partners IV (C) L.P. ~ CVC
European Equity Partners IV (D) L.P. ~ CVC European Equity Partners IV (E) L.P. ~ CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (A) L.P. ~ CVC European
Equity Partners Tandem Fund (B) L.P. »~ CVC European Equity Partners Tandem Fund (C) L.P. ©
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Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Company and required under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules to be disclosed in the Company’s annual report:

a) Transactions between Samsonite India and associates of

Ramesh Tainwala

Samsonite South Asia Private Limited (“Samsonite India”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into transactions with associates of
Ramesh Tainwala, a director of the Company, and certain members of his family
(the “Tainwala Group”) which relate to the operation of Samsonite India in the
ordinary and usual course of its business. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala
Group are also substantial shareholders in Samsonite India.

Manufacturing agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Abhishri Packaging Private Limited (“Abhishri”), a
company controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this
memorandum of understanding, Abhishri purchases certain raw materials
and components from Samsonite India and manufactures hard-side luggage
products on behalf of Samsonite India. The price paid by Abhishri to Samsonite
India for raw materials and components is based on the current market price
paid by Samsonite India, and the price paid by Samsonite India for products
manufactured by Abhishri is determined based on Samsonite India’s current
cost strategy, which also reflects the cost of raw materials. The mark-up on
costs charged by Abhishri for finished products is eight percent on hard-
side shells and ten percent on assembly of luggage. The pricing under the
memorandum of understanding is on normal commercial terms as the mark-
up charged by Abhishri is comparable to (or better to the Company than) that
charged by certain other third party manufacturers who are not connected
persons under agreements with Samsonite India.

Dealership agreement with Bagzone

On November 16, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum
of understanding with Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited (“Bagzone”), a
company controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this
memorandum of understanding, Bagzone was appointed as a preferred
dealer of Samsonite and American Tourister products in India, which as of
December 31, 2011 are sold in 48 exclusive Samsonite retail outlets operated
by Bagzone. Samsonite India directly rents seven of these outlets and is
reimbursed by Bagzone for the associated rental costs. The other 41 outlets
are directly rented by Bagzone who bears the costs of such rentals. Bagzone
pays all operating costs of these 48 retail outlets. Bagzone receives a discount
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of 45 percent on the retail price for products it purchases from Samsonite
India and sells through the exclusive Samsonite outlets it operates. Under a
side letter between Samsonite India and Bagzone dated January 1, 2011, the
parties have agreed that the discount available to Bagzone will be reviewed
and amended as necessary from time to time to ensure that the maximum
profit margin available to Bagzone on retail sales through exclusive outlets
that it operates shall not exceed three percent of Bagzone's net sales. These
transactions are on normal commercial terms as the profit margin available
to Bagzone is within a range that is reasonably consistent with that made
by other third party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India sells products,
and the reimbursement of rental costs by Samsonite India to Bagzone is
determined by reference to the amounts payable by Bagzone to third party
landlords under the relevant leases.

In addition to its exclusive Samsonite outlets, Bagzone purchases products
from Samsonite India to sell in its own multi brand outlet stores. For these
purchases Bagzone receives a discount of 45 percent on the retail price.
These purchases are on normal commercial terms as the discount available
to Bagzone is comparable to that offered to other third party dealers.

Dealership agreement with Samtain

On October 25, 1999, Samsonite India entered into a dealership agreement
with Samtain Sales Limited (“Samtain”), a company controlled by certain
members of the Tainwala Group. Under this agreement, Samtain was
appointed as a dealer of Samsonite products in India. On April 1, 2006,
Samsonite India and Samtain entered into a memorandum of understanding
under which Samsonite India agreed to acquire retail premises to be operated
as exclusive Samsonite outlets by Samtain. As of December 31, 2011, a total of
32 premises had been rented by Samsonite India for this purpose. Samsonite
India pays all rental costs for these premises. Samtain pays all rental costs
for a further seven retail outlets. Samtain pays all operating costs of these
39 retail outlets. Under a side letter between Samsonite India and Samtain
dated January 1, 2011, the parties have agreed that the discount on maximum
retail price at which Samtain purchases products from Samsonite India will
be reviewed and amended as necessary from time to time to ensure that the
maximum profit margin available to Samtain on retail sales through exclusive
outlets that it operates shall not exceed three percent of net sales. These
transactions are on normal commercial terms as the profit margin available
to Samtain is within a range that is reasonably consistent with that made by
other third party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India sells products.

— Samsonite International S.A.
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Shop-in shop supply agreement with Planet Retail

With effect from April 10, 2008, Samsonite India entered into a supply
agreement with Planet Retail Holding Private Limited (“Planet Retail”), a
company in which the family of Ramesh Tainwala acquired a 49 percent
interest on August 1, 2010. Under this agreement, Samsonite India supplies
Samsonite and American Tourister products to Planet Retail for sale in shop-in-
shop concessions at its Debenhams department stores. The discount available
to Planet Retail under the agreement is 45 percent of the retail price. This
agreement is on normal commercial terms as the discount available to Planet
Retail is comparable to that available to other third party dealers and the
agreement was negotiated with Planet Retail over two years before it became
a connected person of Samsonite India.

License and lease agreements with members of the Tainwala Group
Samsonite India has entered into six lease or license agreements for company
accommodation and office premises with members of the Tainwala Group.
These agreements are on normal commercial terms and the rent, license fees
and administrative charges payable thereunder are within the reasonable
range of the then prevailing market rates at the date of execution.

Aggregate value of transactions between Samsonite India and

the Tainwala Group

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the Tainwala
Group under all transactions described above from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2011 was approximately US$3.3 million. The annual caps for
the maximum aggregate amount payable by the Company under transactions
with the Tainwala Group for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at
US$11.3 million, US$15.7 million and US$20.2 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made by the Tainwala Group to Samsonite
India under all transactions described above from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2011 was approximately US$7.5 million. The annual caps for
the maximum aggregate amount payable to the Company under transactions
with the Tainwala Group for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2012
and 2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at
US$16.4 million, US$23.3 million and US$32.8 million, respectively.
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b) Transactions between Samsonite Middle East

and the rest of the Company

Samsonite Middle East FZCO (“Samsonite Middle East”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is held 40 percent by Ramesh Tainwala and members
of the Tainwala Group. Because Remesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of the
Company, is a connected person of the Company; and (ii) is entitled to control
the exercise of ten percent or more of the voting power in Samsonite Middle
East, Samsonite Middle East is also a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from the Listing Date, Samsonite Middle East entered into a
framework agreement with the Company (the “Middle East Framework
Agreement”) covering all transactions with other subsidiaries of the Company in
the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business including the purchase
by Samsonite Middle East of finished products from other subsidiaries of the
Company, receipt and payment by Samsonite Middle East of cross-charges
and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing, promotion, product
development and personnel costs between subsidiaries of the Company and
the payment by Samsonite Middle East of royalties in respect of intellectual
property rights licensed to Samsonite Middle East.

The Middle East Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions between
Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the subsidiaries of the Company must be
on normal commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions
between other subsidiaries of the Company and otherwise in compliance with all
applicable provisions of the Listing Rules. The Middle East Framework Agreement
will expire on December 31, 2013 and is automatically renewable for further
periods of no more than three years, subject to compliance with the then
applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by either
party giving three months’ prior written notice.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite Middle East to other
subsidiaries of the Company from the Listing Date to December 31, 2011 was
approximately US$2.2 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of the subsidiaries of the
Company for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 have been
set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$4.5 million, US$5.5
million and US$6.4 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite Middle East by the rest of
the subsidiaries of the Company from the Listing Date to December 31, 2011
was approximately US$0.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable to Samsonite Middle East by the rest of the subsidiaries of the
Company for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 have been
set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$1.8 million, US$2.3
million and US$3.0 million, respectively.
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¢) Transactions between Samsonite India and the rest of

the Company

Samsonite India, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is held 40
percent by Ramesh Tainwala and members of the Tainwala Group. Because
Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of the Company, is a connected person of
the Company; and (ii) is entitled to control the exercise of ten percent or more
of the voting power in Samsonite India, Samsonite India is also a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from the Listing Date, Samsonite India entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the “India Framework Agreement”) covering
all transactions with other entities within the Company in the ordinary and
usual course of the Company’s business including the purchase by Samsonite
India of raw materials, components, spare parts, finished products and capital
assets from other subsidiaries of the Company, the sale of finished products by
Samsonite India to other entities within the Company, payment by Samsonite
India of cross-charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing,
promotion and product development costs between entities within the Company
and the payment by Samsonite India of royalties in respect of intellectual
property rights licensed to Samsonite India.

The India Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions between
Samsonite India and the rest of the Company must be on normal commercial
terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between other
subsidiaries of the Company and otherwise in compliance with all relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules. The India Framework Agreement will expire on
December 31, 2013 and is automatically renewable for further periods of no
more than three years, subject to compliance with the then applicable provisions
of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by either party giving three
months’ prior written notice.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the rest of the
Company from the Listing Date to December 31, 2011 was approximately
US$3.9 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable by
Samsonite India to the rest of the Company for the years ending December 31,
2011, 2012 and 2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing
Rules at US$9.9 million, US$11.1 million and US$14.5 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite India by the rest of the
Company from the Listing Date to December 31, 2011 was approximately
US$10.2 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable
to Samsonite India by the rest of the Company for the years ending December
31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the
Listing Rules at US$33.0 million, US$42.6 million and US$54.9 million, respectively.
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The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, who have confirmed
that these transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(o) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

In addition, the Auditor of the Company was engaged to provide a limited
assurance report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
" Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”. The auditor has issued its unqualified Limited Assurance Report
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Company in pages 86 to 176 of the Annual Report
in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s
report has been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Company
during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, none of
these transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued
share capital required under the Listing Rules during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements were audited by KPMG LLP, who shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 27, 2012
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The Board of Directors
Samsonite International S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position
of Samsonite International S.A. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011
and 2010 and the related consolidated income statement and statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Samsonite International S.A. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

KPMe LLP

Certified Public Accountants

March 27, 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

mElER

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZS  SREIFR I Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except per share data I\Bﬁ;ﬁ 2011 2010
HE T Net sales 7 1,565,147 1,215,307
Ei=h=—3 7 %N Cost of sales 708,199 525,628
E R Gross profit 856,948 689,679
72X Distribution expenses 410,889 319,621
=E L Marketing expenses 122,822 102,453
—BRITBEX General and administrative expenses 113,613 97,096
BEREERETEERERE Reversal of impairment of intangible assets
and fixed assets 8, 9 - (379,826)
EAHGER) ZH Restructuring (reversal of charges)/charges 20 (877) 4,348
Hihp X Other expenses 571 2,385
R A Operating profit 209,930 543,602
B 7% W A Finance income 23 1,247 1,647
B EH Finance costs 23 (71,879) (30,660)
MEBRAREHR Finance income and costs (70,632) (29,013)
R B4 A Y Al Profit before income tax 24 139,298 514,589
FrEFMEx Income tax expense 22 (35,680) (147,775)
FREF Profit for the year 103,618 366,814
BREFE AR GEF Profit attributable to the equity holders 86,748 355,022
IE 428 AR 42 25 BB 1 % A Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 16,870 11,792
F R E Fl Profit for the year 103,618 366,814
BREF Earnings per share
BREARBEEAR Basic and diluted earnings per share
(BEREBEUETZ) (Expressed in US Dollars per share) 15 0.06 0.27

BEFI B R AR A M RE —BD -

~— Samsonite International S.A.
86 Annual Report 2011

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GA2EKEE

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,

Ff &£
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2011 2010
F R a Fl Profit for the year 103,618 366,814
Htt2HEEE Other comprehensive loss:
EREEMGFEBEEE Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans 17 (12,886) (7,438)
ReREHHNATEESY Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 5,401 297
BONEBIIEER (BB) e Foreign currency translation (losses)/gains
for foreign operations (15,357) 1,383
Hitt2EBIBEENAEHRAX Income tax expense on other comprehensive
loss items (1,586) -
Hih2mEE Other comprehensive loss (24,428) (5,758)
THKRZLE Total comprehensive income 79,190 361,056
BRESEAEBRL2ZE VAL Total comprehensive income attributable to
the equity holders 64,585 348,890
FEREZELCZEKEARHE Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 14,605 12,166
FREZHEK AL Total comprehensive income for the year 79,190 361,056
BERMIEE B R AR S B RER — 2D © The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRR R
R12A318
December 31,
Ff =E
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2011 2010
ERBEE Non-Current Assets
ME BMERREE  FHE Property, plant and equipment, net 8 127,975 124,782
kS Goodwill 9(a) 153,212 153,212
HMhEEEE  F58 Other intangible assets, net 9(b) 619,438 628,296
EERIEEE Deferred tax assets 22 14,023 20,791
H it & E & FEW R IE Other assets and receivables 10(a) 18,500 15,393
FERBEELTE Total non-current assets 933,148 942,474
mEBEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 11 236,957 222,704
FEWBRFR R HAabfEWFR 18 - S Trade and other receivables, net 12 171,552 146,142
EARAZREMEE Prepaid expenses and other assets 10(b) 61,630 67,883
BHERELZEY Cash and cash equivalents 13 141,259 285,798
mBEEHALE Total current assets 611,398 722,527
EEBE Total assets 1,544,546 1,665,001
BERER Equity and Liabilities
R Equity:
g A< Share capital 14 14,071 22,214
e Reserves 14 904,060 717,994
EREEAELERESE Total equity attributable to equity holders 918,131 740,208
I = I fE == Non-controlling interests 14 27,069 22,644
R B EE Total equity 945,200 762,852
FRENE & Non-Current Liabilities
BERRER Loans and borrowings 16(a) 71 246,709
EEEF Employee benefits 17 59,725 77,124
FTESBMITE Non-derivative financial instruments 14(qg) 29,522 18,652
EEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 22 120,307 135,779
HthE & Other liabilities 6,252 7,122
FRBABEEE Total non-current liabilities 215,877 485,386
REBERE Current Liabilities
BERRER Loans and borrowings 16(b) 11,696 12,032
& 81 F Employee benefits 17 45,182 38,777
FE A BR X R B At FE {3 SR E Trade and other payables 20 286,560 330,511
nREFEERE Current tax liabilities 22 40,031 35,443
TREEEEEE Total current liabilities 383,469 416,763
BEH%E Total liabilities 599,346 902,149
EakEELEE Total equity and liabilities 1,544,546 1,665,001
REBEEFHE Net current assets 227,929 305,764
EERABERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 1,161,077 1,248,238

BEM M EBR A S M BE/RER D -
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Company-Alone Statement of Financial Position

KA BARRER

R128318
December 31,
B 5
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2011
ERBEE Non-Current Assets
RBARNKRE Investment in subsidiaries 26 866,682
HihE =R E WK LD 5§ EKRRIE Other assets and receivables due from subsidiaries 104,490
FRBEELTE Total non-current assets 971,172
REBEE Current Assets
UK E A RN E 5 R H M FE KRR Trade and other receivables due from subsidiaries 548
RERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 868
mBEEALE Total current assets 1,416
EEHAE Total assets 972,588
BEREE Equity and Liabilities
s Equity:
IR A Share capital 14 14,071
R 1E Reserves 14 936,532
SR Total equity 950,603
mEBER Current Liabilities
ERRER Loans and borrowings 16 (3.319)
ESREMHER RN EMESFIE Trade and other payables due to subsidiaries 26 22,085
B REMEMNRE Trade and other payables 977
REBHEEE Current tax liabilities 2,242
mEIEEARE Total current liabilities 21,985
BEHAE Total liabilities 21,985
EakBERAE Total equity and liabilities 972,588
REBEE(BRK)FHE Net current assets/(liabilities) (20,569)
EERBERRBARE Total assets less current liabilities 950,603
(6}
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREHR

Bt 5% ROHE
HUFETZ2Z - R EE BRI Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except number of shares Note Number of shares
B E2010F12ALEE : Year ended December, 2010:
ek 0 20101818 Balance, January 1, 2010 2,219,970,633
F A Al Profit for the year -
Ht 2HEERE Other comprehensive loss:
EHEBAGTENBEEEE  HNKRH Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax 17 -
ReREEHZAFEEE  HKRH Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax =
SPESE H &= Foreign currency translation gains =
FAXEKEEE Total comprehensive income for the year =
HEEFBANRS  HESAER Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
BARA Issuance of share capital 14 1,424,365
REEMA Share-based compensation =
BB 5& IR WV 4R 78 B 3R Guaranteed return on class B preference shares 14 -
ROLHEATEEZE Change in fair value of put options 14 =
ENFEREZRKRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests =
H 5 Other transactions =
SPEE K = Foreign currency translation gains =
#er > 20105128318 Balance, December 31, 2010 2,221,394,998
BE2011F12A31HILFE : Year ended December 31, 2011:
&8 . 2011FE 1818 Balance, January 1, 2011 2,221,394,998
F A& Profit for the year -
Hih2HEEE : Other comprehensive loss:
EHEBANTENBEEEE MR Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax 17 -
BeREHPZ2ATFEEZD  HKRHK Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax -
HNEEREIE Foreign currency translation losses -
FR2HEKBEETHE Total comprehensive income for the year -
HEBANRS  BiEsTAES Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
REZR Share-based compensation -
BEE {8 & IR BV 1R 3% B 3R Guaranteed return on class B preference shares 14 -
BEERERABERERE Conversion of preference shares to loan notes 14 (78,000,000)
Delilah Holdings S.4&.r.|.B% 17 £ 5% Contribution of Delilah Holdings S.4.r.l. shares 14 (2,143,394,998)
[ Delilah Holdings S.a.r.I.&Y Issuance of share capital to
REHFEABITRAE Delilah Holdings S.a.r.l. equity holders , 14 1,286,036,999
RERBERBITEBER Issuance of ordinary shares upon Global Offering 14 121,100,005
HERHEFENZHEA Transaction costs associated with Global Offering 14 -
RN EEE Change in fair value of put options 14 -
ENFEEREZRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
Hit x5 Other transactions -
#er > 20115128318 Balance, December 31, 2011 1,407,137,004

BEM MR A S M BE/RER D -

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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f# fBReserves

REEF
(RFtE#R) EEEFEAA
BEEERME HWMAMAMARSE Retained  FEMBEZELE
Class B Additional BRERE Hih R earnings Total equity EE2
B 7 preference paid-in Translation Other (accumulated  attributable to  Non-controlling AR
Share capital share reserve capital reserve reserves deficit)  equity holders interest Total equity
22,200 4,107 813,904 2,690 (72,568) (378,796) 391,537 17,113 408,650
= = = = = 355,022 355,022 11,792 366,814
= = = = (7,438) = (7,438) = (7,438)
= = = = 297 = 297 = 297
= = = 1,383 = = 1,383 = 1,383
- - - 1,383 (7,141) 355,022 349,264 11,792 361,056
14 - 2 - = = 16 = 16
= = 600 = = = 600 = 600
= 13,383 = = = (13,383) = = =
- - - - - (1,209) (1,209) - (1,209)
- - - - - - - (4,684) (4,684)
_ _ _ — = - - (3,269) (3,269)
= = = = = = = 1,692 1,692
22,214 17,490 814,506 4,073 (79,709) (38,366) 740,208 22,644 762,852
22,214 17,490 814,506 4,073 (79,709) (38,366) 740,208 22,644 762,852
- - - - - 86,748 86,748 16,870 103,618
- - - - (12,886) - (12,886) - (12,886)
- - - - 3,815 - 3,815 - 3,815
- - - (13,092) - - (13,092) (2,265) (15,357)
- - - (13,092) (9,071) 86,748 64,585 14,605 79,190
- - 200 - - - 200 - 200
- 6,489 - - - (6,489) - - -
(780) (23,979) (76,230) - - - (100,989) - (100,989)
(21,434) - - - - - (21,434) - (21,434)
12,860 - 8,574 - - - 21,434 - 21,434
1,211 - 224,041 - - - 225,252 - 225,252
- - (8,899) - - - (8,899) - (8,899)
- - - - - (2,226) (2,226) - (2,226)
- - - - - - - (5,390) (5,390)
- - - - - - - (4,790) (4,790)
14,071 - 962,192 (9,019) (88,780) 39,667 918,131 27,069 945,200
S
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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RERERER
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,
Ff &£
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Note 2011 2010
KRETEz2HERE ! Cash flows from operating activities:
HY % A Profit for the period 103,618 366,814
1Bt FA 2 LU i F 52 Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash
RETEMEBRSIFHEYEER generated from operating activities:
HEREE (Gain) / loss on sale and
BE(WE) BE - B8 disposal of assets, net (252) 159
e Depreciation 8 30,158 16,335
B EE#E Amortization of intangible assets 9 8,333 4,409
BEREEREETEERERR Reversal of impairment of 8, 9
intangible assets and fixed assets - (379,826)
RIZRBE Provision for doubtful accounts 806 612
EHREAGRE) BiE (Reversal of) / provision for
restructuring activities (877) 4,348
ROLBEATEEY Change in fair value of put options 8,644 8,788
EREEKR BRI EMN Net change in defined benefit
BE)FRE pension plan (29,989) (28,037)
FERESFEFX Noncash interest expense 32,806 16,295
FREMEHMAZ Noncash income tax expense (10,290) 123,394
FEEREER Noncash share-based compensation 200 600
143,157 133,891
ReEEREEEE Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
FE Ut BR 5k K EL A FE Uk R 1B Trade and other receivables (33,244) (28,960)
FE Inventories (24,628) (112,461)
HitRBEE Other current assets 258 (23,378)
FE {3 BR 3k R HL 4th FE {3 FR 18 Trade and other payables 29,484 93,554
HthEEREE  F8 Other assets and liabilities, net (8,925) (6,923)
REFTEMBRE Cash generated from operating activities 106,102 55,723
2HFE Interest paid (4,299) (260)
[EECREEE Income tax paid (37,301) (21,022)
KRETEFMBRESFHE Net cash generated from operating activities 64,502 34,441




BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars I\B}?)g 2011 2010
REZBHz2EHERE ! Cash flows from investing activities:
BEYE BEREE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 8 (37,172) (29,575)
Hih FriS I8 Other proceeds 1,401 60
RETEFMAEESFESH Net cash used in investing activities (35,771) (29,515)
RMEETH2RERE ! Cash flows from financing activities:
Bl HA & MK 8 ®K P18 FI8 (3 %) Current loans and borrowings proceeds
(payments) 2,766 (2,899)
FEBNHAE R R 8 KT Non-current loans and borrowings payments 6 (279,051) (18,400)
BITRAFTBRE Proceeds from issuance of share capital 6 225,252 17
H2RBEFEANRS HAE Transaction costs associated with Global 6
BRAER Offering recognized in equity (8,899) -
EREBMAR Loan note payments 6 (100,989) -
TRNEBRTEA Payment of debt issue costs 6 (3,981) -
ENFEERERRE Dividend payments to non-controlling
interests (5,390) (4,684)
BEEFFACESESE Net cash used in financing activities (170,292) (25,966)
ReRkBReLEBYNRDFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (141,561) (21,040)
RekBReEEY  M1A1H Cash and cash equivalents, at January 1 285,798 290,533
EXGHHRERALEZEYNTE Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (2,978) 16,305
HERBELSEEY > M128318 Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 13 141,259 285,798
BEFMMIAE B R E M BRER — D © The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Background

Samsonite International S.A. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the
“Company”) is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and
distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags,
and travel accessories throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite® and
American Tourister® brand names and other owned and licensed brand names. The
Company sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels
and through its company operated retail stores. The principal luggage wholesale
distribution customers of the Company are department and specialty retail stores,
mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Company sells its
products primarily in Asia, Europe, North America and Latin America.

The Company completed an initial public offering of its ordinary shares on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 16, 2011 (the
“Global Offering”). The Company was incorporated in Luxembourg on March 8,
2011 as a public limited liability company (a société anonyme), whose registered
office is 13-15 Avenue de la Liberté, L-1931, Luxembourg. Prior to the completion
of the Global Offering, on June 10, 2011 the Company became the parent
company of the consolidated subsidiaries. The beneficial owners of the ordinary
shares of Delilah Holdings S.a.r.l. (“OldCo"”), the previous parent company of the
consolidated subsidiaries, contributed their ordinary shares in OldCo to the Company
in consideration for the issue of ordinary shares in the Company. See further details
and discussion in note 6.

* For identification purposes only

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 26.

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which collective term includes
all International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations, as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose
of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Company has adopted
all these new and revised IFRSs for all periods presented, except for any new
standards or interpretations that are not yet mandatorily effective for the accounting
period ended December 31, 2011. The revised and new accounting standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the accounting period ended
December 31, 2011 are set out in note 3(u).

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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2. Basis of Preparation continued
(a) Statement of Compliance continued

The accounting policies below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on March 27, 2012.

(b) Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost

basis except for the following material items in the consolidated statement of

financial position as set out in the accounting policies below:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

e the defined benefit liability is recognized as the net total of the plan assets,
plus unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses, less
unrecognized actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (functional currency). The functional
currencies of the Company’s significant subsidiaries are the currencies of the primary
economic environment and key business processes of these subsidiaries and include,
but are not limited to, United States Dollars, Euros, and Renminbi.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in
the United States Dollar (“USD"), which is the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies
and to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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2. Basis of Preparation continued
(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions continued
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:
e Note 3(n) — Revenue recognition
e Note 8 — Property, plant and equipment
e Note 9 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
e Note 11 — Inventories
e Note 12 — Allowances for trade and other receivables
e Note 14 — Non-controlling interests
e Note 17 — Obligations under defined benefit plans
e Note 21- Fair value of financial instruments
e Note 22 — Income taxes
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have an
effect on the consolidated financial statements resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year are included in the following notes:
e Note 17 — Measurement of plan assets and defined benefit obligation
e Note 21 — Financial instruments
e Note 22 — Utilization of tax losses

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs and one new interpretation

that are first effective for the year ended December 31, 2011. Of these, the

following developments are relevant to the consolidated financial statements:

e |AS 24 (revised 2009), Related Party Disclosures

* Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

e |FRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

e Amendments to IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum
funding requirements and their interaction — Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement.

IFRIC 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (IFRIC 14), which
removed an unintentional consequence arising from the treatment of prepayments
of future contributions in some circumstances when there is a minimum funding
requirement in pension plans, and certain revisions to IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures (IAS 24), which amends the definition of a related party, were
mandatory for the first time for financial reporting periods beginning January 1,
2011. The adoption of these standards had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet mandatorily effective for the current accounting period.



3. EEREHBRME

AARAREMBRAEAERAREHHKR
RMZINAEHREERMERT XH
VEFHRE BETHBRHFERBAF
ERMNENERNENS2E  F2HK
7o MEZHFELQNTLARENG
BHEFE  EF - KERF - FEHE
X~ BAER  SREFRBHMRRE

(a) &&IRA
(i) BMER
MEBAREADAEHNER -EAD
AEERAE -—REBNVMBRRELERR
DR EFSHESANERRFEES -
MEARNUBENBEHREE
At AGEMBHRER EEEFHKILE
BAL FEARBEREHRRRSE
RiGEE ANREFE 8 -

(i) FEERELD
FEREZTIRGEEBBMRRRPERE
B—HEY  BBYRAQRAEBERR
BhERD  RARBEEAIFFERE
BEFERBRRGEEEERERA N
AR ERFERESHEAQATESR
RWAEFNIEERAB2E RSB X
273 -

AARAR—BHEQ RN ERE S
(T EEBHREEHE)INEEERS
THGEEREPTNERRFZERESF
HAEE  URREEESR 2EE - R
BEHHEFHEMABRLERIEM
B o

i AR B KR E— BB DAY= H
o BIMEHEERZNBRAR 228
D AELENKREREERES S
BR -RAEEHEE B MRERA K
BLAAZEMEREDEAFEER M
ZHREABBRERNTEREREEZ D
F1E

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the
Company and its subsidiaries to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation adopted in the current year, see note 7. None of the changes impacts
the Company’s previously reported consolidated net sales, gross profit, operating
profit, income tax expense, profit for the period, earnings per share, or statement of
financial position.

(a) Principles of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The financial information of subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

(ii) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Company are presented
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the period between non-controlling interests and the equity holders of the
Company.

Changes in the Company’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk

(i) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising
on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising on
the retranslation of qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of
the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated
into USD at period end exchange rates. Equity accounts denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into USD at historical exchange rates. Income and expense
accounts are translated at average monthly exchange rates. The net exchange
gains or losses resulting from translating at varied exchange rates are recorded
as a component of other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and
attributed to non-controlling interests, as appropriate.

(c) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Company’s management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is
available.

The Company’s segment reporting is based on geographical areas, representative
of how the Company’s business is managed and its operating results are evaluated.
The Company’s operations are organized primarily as follows; (i) “Asia”; (ii)
“Europe”; (iii) “North America”; (iv) “Latin America”, and (v) “Corporate”, which are
set out in note 7.

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses,
income tax assets and liabilities, and licensing activities from the license of brand
names owned by the Company.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to
acquire property, plant and equipment.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Assets under finance leases are
stated at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. Improvements
which extend the life of an asset are capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are
expensed as incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if applicable, as follows:
Buildings 20 to 30 years
Machinery, equipment and other 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements lesser of useful life or the lease term

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Company with freehold interest is not
depreciated.

The Company capitalizes the costs of purchased software and costs to
configure, install and test software and includes these costs within machinery,
equipment and other in the consolidated statement of financial position. Software
assessment and evaluation, process reengineering, data conversion, training,
maintenance and ongoing software support costs are expensed.

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Company’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition date. If the net fair
value is greater than the consideration transferred, then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

For measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 9. Subsequent to
initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit
(CGU), or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note 9).
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

(ii) Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill)

Intangible assets consist of tradenames, customer relationships, and leasehold rights.
No recognized intangible assets have been generated internally.

Intangible assets which are considered to have an indefinite life, tradenames,
are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are not amortized
but are tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that the asset may be impaired. Samsonite® and American
Tourister® are the significant tradenames of the Company. It is anticipated that the
economic benefits associated with these tradenames will continue for an indefinite
period. The conclusion that the tradenames are an indefinite lived asset is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for amortization of intangible
assets with finite lives as set out below.

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized and measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization
expense is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives from the date that they are available for use, as this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
Leasehold rights 3 to 6 years

Intangible assets having a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed
annually and adjusted if applicable.

(f) Impairment
(i) Financial Assets

(Including Trade and Other Receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably. The allowance account for receivables is used to
record impairment losses unless the Company believes recovery is remote and the
impairment loss is applied directly against the financial asset.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms
that the Company would not consider otherwise, or indications that a debtor or
issuer will enter bankruptcy.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(f) Impairment continued
(i) Financial Assets

(Including Trade and Other Receivables) continued

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a
specific asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables are assessed
for specific impairment. All individually significant receivables found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends, adjusted
for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends. Impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

(ii) Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. For those CGUs or group of CGUs that to which
goodwill has been allocated and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “CGU"). For the purposes
of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. This allocation is subject to an operating segment before
aggregation ceiling test and reflects the lowest level at which that goodwill is
monitored for internal reporting purposes to the asset or CGU.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If
there is an indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(f) Impairment continued
(ii) Non-financial Assets continued

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its
CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the group of units, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss that has been recognized on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods if estimates used to determine the recoverable amount change.
For other assets, impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognized.

(9) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. The cost of inventory includes expenditures
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production
overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost also may include transfers
from other comprehensive income of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognized as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses
of inventories are recognized as expenses in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, deposits held at call with
banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(i) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value. Trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

(j) Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognized and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

(k) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are
originated.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized
as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
receivables are measured at cost, less any impairment losses. Receivables are
comprised of trade and other receivables.

The Company initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they
are originated. The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, canceled or expire.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and
borrowings, and trade and other payables. Both loans and borrowings and trade
and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to their initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(k) Financial Instruments continued

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its foreign
currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract
and accounted for separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the host
contract and the embedded derivative are not closely related, a separate instrument
with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative, and the combined instrument is not measured at fair value through
profit or loss. For derivatives designated in hedging relationships, changes in the fair
value are either offset through profit or loss against the change in fair value of the
hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or recognized in hedging reserves
that are reported directly in equity (deficit) until the hedged item is recognized in
profit or loss and, at that time, the related hedging gain or loss is removed from
equity (deficit) and is used to offset the change in value of the hedged item.

Other than agreements with holders of non-controlling interests, there were no
derivatives embedded in host contracts in 2011 or 2010. The put option agreements
are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation, in the consolidated statement of financial position, as the Company
has a potential obligation to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount
recognized initially is the fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests
and subsequently remeasured at each reporting date based on a price to earnings
multiple discounted to the reporting date. For agreements entered into prior to the
adoption of IFRS 3, Business Combinations, on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes
in liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after
January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and any attributable transaction
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as
described below.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(k) Financial Instruments continued
(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments continued

The Company periodically enters into derivative contracts that it designates as
a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received
or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging
relationships, the Company formally documents the hedging relationship and its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging
instrument'’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed prospectively
and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring ineffectiveness.
The Company also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting cash flows of hedged items by determining whether
the actual results of each hedge are within a range of 80% to 125%. For derivative
instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and reclassified into profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged transaction affects profit or loss. Gains and
losses on the derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are excluded from the
assessment of effectiveness and are recognized in current profit or loss.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines
that the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged
item, the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is
de-designated as a hedging instrument because it is unlikely that a forecasted
transaction will occur, or management determines that designation of the derivative
as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualified hedging relationship, all changes in fair value are
recognized immediately through profit or loss.

(iii) Share Capital

(a) Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

(b) Preference Shares

Prior to the Global Offering, there were Class A and Class B preference shares of
OldCo issued and outstanding. The Class A and Class B preference shares were
classified as equity in accordance with IAS 32. The Company does not have any
preference shares outstanding subsequent to the Global Offering.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Employee Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense
in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets
are deducted. The discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under
which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve.
The discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present
value. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized
asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past service costs and the present
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate
the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum
funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Company. An economic benefit
is available to the Company if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on
settlement of the plan liabilities.

The Company initially recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from
defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income. Actuarial valuations are
obtained annually at the end of the fiscal year.

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other
than pension plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The
discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under which the benefits
were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate
was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value. Any actuarial
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at the end of the fiscal year.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

() Employee Benefits continued

(iv) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits, including severance, are recognized as an expense when the
Company is committed demonstrably, without realistic possibility of withdrawal,
to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies
are recognized as an expense if the Company has made an offer of voluntary
redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months
after the reporting period, then they are discounted to their present value where
the effect of discounting is determined to be material.

(v) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for
the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(vi) Share-based Payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number
of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an
expense is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-
market performance conditions at the vesting date. For equity-settled share-based
payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for
differences between expected and actual outcomes.

(m) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred

tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business

combination, items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or

loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(m) Income Taxes continued

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the
following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences arising
on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, if they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and
deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

(n) Revenue Recognition

Revenues from wholesale product sales are recognized when (i) evidence of a
sales arrangement at a fixed or determinable price exists (usually in the form of
a sales order), (ii) collectibility is reasonably assured, and (iii) title transfers to the
customer. Provisions are made for estimates of markdown allowances, warranties,
returns and discounts at the time product sales are recognized. Shipping terms are
predominately FOB shipping point (title transfers to the customer at the Company’s
shipping location) except in certain Asian countries where title transfers upon
delivery to the customer. In all cases, sales are recognized upon transfer of title
to customers. Revenues from retail sales are recognized at the point of sale to
consumers. Revenue excludes collected sales taxes.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognized in profit or loss.

The Company licenses its brand names to certain third parties. Net sales in the
accompanying consolidated income statement include royalties earned on licensing
agreements with third parties, for which revenue is earned and recognized when
the third party makes a sale of Company branded product.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(o) Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and Administrative Expenses
The Company includes the following types of costs in cost of sales: direct product
purchase and manufacturing costs, duties, freight in, freight out, receiving,
inspection, internal transfer costs, depreciation and procurement and manufacturing
overhead. The impairment of inventories and the reversals of such impairments are
included in cost of sales during the period in which they occur.

Distribution expenses are primarily comprised of rent, employee benefits,
customer freight, depreciation, amortization, warehousing costs and other selling
expenses.

Marketing expenses consist of advertising and promotional activities. Costs for
producing media advertising are deferred until the related advertising first appears
in print or television media, at which time such costs are expensed. All other
advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs associated
with customer support programs giving the Company an identifiable advertising
benefit equal to at least the amount of the advertising allowance are accrued
and charged to marketing expenses when the related revenues are recognized.
From time to time, the Company offers various types of incentive arrangements
such as cash or payment discounts, rebates or free products. All such incentive
arrangements are accrued and reduce reported revenues when incurred.

General and administrative expenses consist of management salaries and
benefits, information technology costs, and other costs related to administrative
functions.

(p) Finance Income and Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the
discount on provisions, changes in the fair value of put options associated with the
Company’s majority-owned subsidiaries, expenses related to the Global Offering, and
losses on hedging instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Foreign currency
gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments are included
in the initial measurement of the related financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Such costs are amortized as finance costs using the
effective interest method over the term of the related debt obligation.

S

HEREBRARAR —
—O——%%# 109



L)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

RE MR &

3. EREHBRME~

(q) EBREF
AARAHEERZIIEREAREE
BEFN(ESREFNDNEE SRELR
MRRARBDEERREGBRRUZ
HEBRTENNROGOMEF I - I
RADAFAEROGERARE SREFR
NEMFMEEETHEEZERONZE
BETRREERR TEENERE (W
ER)AREBERREGEERBITEN
VEBERODHOMEFGHEMAE - A5
RARDFERMDIERE -

() #AE
MAARRERABH EFHAAK —BERZ
BREECEEFAREENRER %5 —
EENTNZH  SF-—EBXFREER
SHZEZFIBRSEBE—BEHE -
ZEREDERERZHENEEHED -
MARZERERABREENEE
R e
BEERFWENRBRBD EHREE
BEAAGAMENEEDYEARER
B RYTHERAE  HEEEERHEERHE
AFERBEREEMNRNRENREE
WHETE - RYSERE  EEREE
ARZEENSTBEXAR HMHESE
AREHEEHEEETERAAAELR
B MR RER o
AAREESERE  2HEP LR
ARE - VNSHERNF—ZE=1+F -
ARFPHETHESAEEREESRE
RBEHACTHENHEENRAESE
—REREQAAZNEMHES - RE
HE B EERARREMAE AR o R
AFRESEEREBEEEREERKE
HEeLANEENERABHABRREMR
EFRX BERHESRERBEHEHERES
WREZBENEMEREREGS THERRT
RIEEMIERBER - RRBEEAR
RELRIERE -
BEBEESFHNSEEASELR
DRMERIRIIBEREZEESR D
o mERTEREZHERASTHBEN
BHEBRTHEKRNEHEERE -

~— Samsonite International S.A.
110 Annual Report 2011

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(q) Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the period, adjusted for shares held by the Company.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
adjusted for shares held by the Company, for the effects of all potentially dilutive
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share options granted to
employees, as applicable.

(r) Leases

An arrangement comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains
a lease if the Company determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Leases in which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased
asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognized in the
Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.

The Company leases retail stores, distribution centers and office facilities.
Initial terms of the leases range from one to twenty years. Most leases provide
for monthly fixed minimum rentals or contingent rentals based upon sales in
excess of stated amounts and normally require the Company to pay real estate
taxes, insurance, common area maintenance costs and other occupancy costs. The
Company recognizes rent expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis over the base term of
the lease. Any difference between the straight-line rent amount and the amount
payable under the lease is included in other liabilities in the consolidated statements
of financial position. Contingent rental payments are expensed as incurred.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between
the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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3.
(s)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when

the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,

or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent

liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related Parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Company if that person:

has control or joint control over the Company;

has significant influence over the Company; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions
applies:

the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, the subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i) (1) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may

be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(u) New Standards and Interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not
yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2011, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which simplifies the classification and
measurement requirements for financial instruments, is expected to impact the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
effective date of this standard is January 1, 2015. The Company has not determined
the extent of the impact on its financial statements upon adoption of this standard.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, have been issued by the IASB to replace IAS 27, Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, and SIC 12, Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities,
with a single standard on consolidation requirements and a separate standard on
related disclosures requirements. The effective date of these standards is January 1,
2013. The Company has not determined the extent of the impact on its financial
statements upon adoption of these standards.

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, has been issued by IASB to enhance the
accounting and disclosures requirements of joint arrangements and to replace
IAS 31, Joint Ventures and SIC 13, Jointly Controlled Entities — Nonmonetary
Contributions by Venturers. The effective date of this standard is January 1,
2013. The Company has not determined the extent of the impact on its financial
statements upon adoption of this standard.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, has been issued by the IASB to define
fair value, set out a framework for measuring fair value and establish disclosures
requirements about fair value measurements. The effective date of this standard is
January 1, 2013. The Company has not determined the extent of the impact on its
financial statements upon adoption of this standard.

IAS 1, Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income, has been
amended by the IASB to require that an entity present separately the items of other
comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if
certain conditions are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or
loss. The effective date of this standard is July 1, 2012.

IAS 19, Employee Benefits, has been amended by the IASB to require actuarial
gains and losses to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The
effective date of this standard is January 1, 2013. The Company has not determined
the extent of the impact on its financial statements upon adoption of this standard.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(u) New Standards and Interpretations continued

IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011), has been issued
by the IASB and supersedes IAS 28 (2008). IAS 28 (2011) was amended in regards
to cessation of significant influence and the criteria to be classified as held for
sale. The effective date of this standard is January 1, 2013. The Company has not
determined the extent of the impact on its financial statements upon adoption of
this standard.

4. Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that
asset or liability.

(a) Trade and Other Receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes and generally approximates
carrying value.

(b) Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price.
If a listed market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting
the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price
for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on
government bonds).

Call options are considered derivative financial assets and are recorded at fair
value.

Fair value estimates reflect the credit risk of the Company and counterparty.

(c) Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the
present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market
rate of interest at the reporting date.
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4. Determination of Fair Values continued

() Non-derivative Financial Liabilities continued

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

The Company has entered into agreements that include put and call option
arrangements to acquire non-controlling interests in certain majority-owned
subsidiaries exercisable at fair value at certain predetermined dates. Pursuant to
these agreements, the Company has call options to acquire the remaining shares
owned by the non-controlling interest holders and these non-controlling interest
holders have put options to sell their ownership in these subsidiaries to the
Company. In addition, the Company has the right to buy-out these non-controlling
interests in the event of termination of the underlying agreements. The table of
contractual maturities (note 21) does not include amounts for the repurchase of
non-controlling interests as they do not include contractual maturities.

The put option agreements are classified as financial liabilities in accordance
with IAS 32 in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Company
has a potential obligation to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount
recognized initially is the fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests
and subsequently remeasured at each reporting date based on a price to earnings
multiple discounted to the reporting date and is subsequently remeasured at each
reporting date. For agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 on
January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.
For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities
are recognized through equity.

(d) Intangible Assets

The fair value of tradenames is based on the relief-from-royalty method of
valuation. The fair value of leasehold interests is determined using the income
approach. The fair value of customer relationships is determined using a
combination of the income approach and the multi-period excess earnings method,
whereby the subject asset is valued after deducting a fair return on all other assets
that are part of creating the related cash flows.

5. Financial Risk Management Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial
instruments:
e credit risk
e liquidity risk
e market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the
above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative
disclosures are included throughout the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued

(a) Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is
limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in the consolidated
financial statements.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have
an influence on credit risk. No single customer accounted for more than 5% of
the Company’s sales for the years ended December 31, 2011 or December 31,
2010 or accounts receivable as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer
is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their
credit characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial
difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Company’s wholesale
customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and
monitored by the Company, and future sales are made on an approval basis.

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flow that is being
generated from operations, invested cash, and available lines of credit (note 16(b)).
The Company has no significant debt service obligations. The Company believes that
its existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will
be adequate to meet the operating and capital requirements of the Company for at
least the next twelve months.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return.

The Company periodically buys and sells financial derivatives, such as forward
purchase contracts for hedging purposes, in order to manage market risks.

(i) Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the
Company's subsidiaries.

The Company periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries. The forward
exchange contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Company monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on
variable rate debt instruments. Although the Company does not currently have any
interest rate hedging instruments, it may, from time to time, enter into interest rate
swap contracts to manage interest rate risk.

(iii) Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the
Company’s defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to
measure periodic net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net
of pension plan assets in the Company’s consolidated statement of financial
position. The Company’s investment strategy is to generate investment returns on
pension plan assets in order to satisfy the Company’s defined benefit pension plan
obligations. The Company engages professional pension plan asset managers to
assist in this process.

(iv) Other Pension and Post-retirement Obligations

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed
to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels) exceeds the fair value of the assets of the
Company’s pension plans, which is primarily the result of the performance of equity
markets during prior years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations
could significantly impact future assets and liabilities of our pension plans and
future minimum required funding levels.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued

(e) Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management policies is to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for shareholders, fund
capital expenditures, normal operating expenses and working capital needs, and the
payment of obligations. The primary source of cash is revenue from sales of the
Company’s products. The Company anticipates generating sufficient cash flow from
operations in the majority of countries where it operates and will have sufficient
available cash and ability to draw on loans and borrowings for funding to satisfy
the working capital and financing needs.

The Company’s capital needs are primarily managed through cash and cash
equivalents (note 13), trade and other receivables (note 12), inventories (note 11),
property plant and equipment (note 8), trade and other payables (note 20) and
loans and borrowings (note 16).

6. Global Offering and Related Events

The ordinary shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 16, 2011, at which time 671.2 million
shares were sold at a unit price of HK$14.50. Out of these 671.2 million shares,
121.1 million shares were newly issued shares sold by the Company and 550.1
million shares were previously issued shares sold by existing shareholders. The
Company’s remaining 735.9 million issued and outstanding shares were not sold
in connection with the Global Offering and at the time of the Global Offering
continued to be held by the shareholders who held such shares immediately prior to
the Global Offering.

The Company received gross proceeds of HK$1,756.0 million corresponding
to a capital increase of US$225.3 million at the exchange rate prevailing at the
date of the transaction. In connection with the transaction, the Company incurred
costs of US$33.7 million, of which US$8.9 million were related to the listing and
issue of new shares and were recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.
The remaining costs of US$24.8 million were recognized as an expense in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Prior to the Global Offering, the beneficial owners of the ordinary shares of
OldCo contributed their shares to the Company in consideration for the issue of
ordinary shares in the Company.
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6. Global Offering and Related Events continued

The 78.0 million preference shares of OldCo that were previously outstanding
were redeemed and canceled on June 10, 2011 in consideration for the beneficial
owners of the preference shares receiving (i) A loan notes issued by OldCo with a
principal equal to the nominal value of the A preference shares and the total share
premium reserve attaching to the A preference shares for an aggregate principal
value of US$77.0 million (the “A Loan Notes”) and (ii) B loan notes issued by
OldCo with a principal equal to the nominal value of the B preference shares plus
the accrued B preference share reserve for an aggregate principal value of US$24.0
million (the “B Loan Notes” and, together with the A Loan Notes, the “Loan
Notes”). The Loan Notes received a commercial rate of interest. The US$101.0
million outstanding balance of the Loan Notes was repaid utilizing a portion of the
Company’s proceeds from the sale of ordinary shares on completion of the Global
Offering.

The Company utilized a portion of the remaining proceeds from the Global
Offering, along with existing cash on hand, to repay in full the outstanding principal
balance of US$221.6 million on its former amended senior credit facility and the
outstanding principal and accrued interest of US$59.2 million on its former term
loan facility. The former amended senior credit facility and former term loan facility
were terminated following the Global Offering.

On July 8, 2011, the over-allotment option referred to in the Offering
Circular was partially exercised by the Joint Global Coordinators on behalf of the
International Underwriters, thereby requiring the funds managed by CVC Capital
Partners Limited (the "CVC Funds”) and the Royal Bank of Scotland (“RBS"),
members of the selling shareholder group, to sell 24.7 million additional shares,
which represented approximately 3.7% of the shares initially being offered under
the Global Offering before any exercise of the over-allotment option. These
additional shares were sold by the CVC Funds and RBS at HK$14.50 per share,
being the offer price per share under the Global Offering. The Company did not sell
any additional shares upon the exercise of the over-allotment option. In connection
with an agreement between the Company and the Joint Global Coordinators,
the Company received proceeds of US$3.5 million on profits recognized by the
Joint Global Coordinators from the exercise of the over-allotment option (the
“Stabilization Proceeds”).
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6. Global Offering and Related Events continued

On May 27, 2011, the Company entered into a new credit agreement for a
US$100.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”). The Revolving
Facility became effective upon completion of the Global Offering. The Revolving
Facility has an initial term of three years, with a one year extension at the request
of the Company and at the option of the lenders. The interest rate on borrowings
under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in the case
of borrowings made in Euro) or (b) the prime rate of the lender and (i) a margin
to be determined based on the Company’s leverage ratio. The Revolving Facility
carries a commitment fee of 1% per annum on any unutilized amounts, as well as
an agency fee if another lender joins the Revolving Facility. The Revolving Facility is
secured by certain assets in the United States and Europe, as well as the Company’s
intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also contains financial covenants related
to interest coverage and leverage ratios, and operating covenants that, among
other things, limit the Company’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens on
its assets, and participate in certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales
or investments. The Company incurred costs of US$4.0 million in connection with
the negotiation and documentation of the Revolving Facility, which have been
capitalized and will be amortized over the term of the agreement.

7. Segment Reporting

(a) Operating Segments

Management of the business and evaluation of operating results is organized

primarily along geographic lines dividing responsibility for the Company’s operations,

besides the Corporate segment, as follows:

e Asia — which includes operations in South Asia (India and Middle East), China,
Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan, Hong Kong, Thailand, Indonesia,
Philippines and Australia;

e Europe — which includes operations in European countries as well as Africa;

e North America — which includes operations in the United States of America and
Canada;

e [atin America — which includes operations in Chile, Mexico, Argentina and
Uruguay; and

e Corporate — which primarily includes certain licensing activities from brand names
owned by the Company and Corporate headquarters overhead.
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7. Segment Reporting continued
(a) Operating Segments continued

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below.
Performance is measured based on segment operating profit or loss, as included
in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker. Segment operating profit or loss is used to measure performance
as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the
results of the Company’s segments.

xRBE o Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as
R2011E12B31BRBEZBLE  follows:
ENDEHERDOT :
M BUM 3k =M HTEM b1 &t

LUTFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe North America Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
N EB UK = External revenues 578,316 479,089 388,190 108,601 10,951 1,565,147
& Em A Operating profit 62,136 61,327 39,639 9,871 36,957 209,930
TEREH Depreciation

and amortization 13,224 13,441 3,478 3,822 4,526 38,491
BEARRAX Capital expenditures 13,826 16,924 3,761 1,829 832 37,172
EHER Restructuring charges /

(EEH) (reversals of charges) - (884) - - 7 (877)
HME WA Interest income 142 184 9 26 886 1,247
FEREX Interest expense (1,861) (23,158) - (540) (11,726) (37,285)
Fri5 8B Income tax expense (13,447) (11,367) (465) (1,497) (8,904) (35,680)
EEAHE Total assets 498,725 407,866 509,861 83,299 44,795 1,544,546
EEHRE Total liabilities 186,597 186,618 461,947 40,857 (276,673) 599,346
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7. Segment Reporting continued
(a) Operating Segments continued

Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010 is

MWoHERMT : as follows:

=M BUM db 2 M HTEM o At
LFETZEZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe North America Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
ShEB Uk = External revenues 405,143 406,696 302,968 88,960 11,540 1,215,307
& & Fl Operating profit 67,543 213,089 47,628 23,188 192,154 543,602
ER#H Depreciation 12,297 1,250 1,044 1,941 4,212 20,744

and amortization

EEEERE Impairment of fixed assets 63 52 - - - 115
BREER Reversal of impairment of

EEEERE intangible assets and

e fixed assets — (79,741) (13,184) (13,188) (273,828) (379,941)
BEARMX Capital expenditures 9,120 12,779 3,499 1,939 2,238 29,575
EHER Restructuring charges /

(BEEH) (reversals of charges) = (106) 3,957 - 497 4,348
A E WA Interest income 184 128 7 9 1,319 1,647
AEEX Interest expense (795) (7,703) - (785) (6,821) (16,104)
FriEfH (%), Income tax (expense) /

i) benefit (13,811) (20,140) (684) 250 (113,390) (147,775)
EERE Total assets 499,843 547,985 1,968,002 73,405 (1,424,234) 1,665,001
BEREE Total liabilities 180,461 349,074 1,765,338 41,650 (1,434,374) 902,149

ETHRYFCEHIE  UFEE
ZB20MMFENRABLEEERAZERA
X o HE2010F12831BLLFEE 708
EEXETHNEHRAZELEMNSHES
FAEZCESD  BRSHIHBHNER
mAHEMEEES - HAQNANGREE
BIWEERTE -

(b) HE&#

TRHEIRATEENEFELENEE
NEER  ()ADFERAEIIBEF WS
RVADBNME  BERRE BFEE
EUARBEEENERBDEE) - FF
Wit EDERNERNBEENLE - 15
ENFRBEENBUEDEREE

NEBRLE -

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation adopted for the year ended December 31, 2011. Income tax expense
of US$7.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 was reclassified from the
North America segment to the Corporate segment, resulting in a corresponding
change in profit for the year of each segment. There was no resulting impact to the
Company’s consolidated results.

(b) Geographical Information

The following tables set out enterprise-wide information about the geographical
location of (i) the Company’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the
Company's property, plant, and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (specified
non-current assets). The geographical location of customers is based on the selling
location of the goods. The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the asset.
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7. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued

(i) Revenue from External Customers

The following table presents the revenues earned from customers in major
geographical locations where the Company has operations.

BZ12A3MALEE
Year ended December 31,

HUFETZ2% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
G+ Asia:
i E China 144,594 91,844
B0 Hong Kong™ 48,392 42,481
JEEE Philippines 3,567 2,304
= Taiwan 14,252 10,045
ENE India 109,846 77,852
PR B S B R B United Arab Emirates 21,364 16,187
B AR T Australia 34,881 24,872
[F South Korea 93,969 62,531
=[P Japan 51,984 36,528
Hith Other 55,467 40,499
mMEE Total Asia 578,316 405,143
BON ¢ Europe:
ERF Italy 67,549 69,191
= France 61,024 48,206
=E Germany 61,077 46,671
AT Spain 46,973 40,929
£ 7 By Belgium 59,561 50,996
121 B8 Holland 25,030 19,645
HE United Kingdom 30,120 26,247
B2 ih K Austria 11,338 8,500
i+ Switzerland 18,037 17,050
HEHE Russia 28,020 21,666
THEH Turkey 11,059 10,306
Hith Other 59,301 47,289
BN E 5T Total Europe 479,089 406,696
b E0M - North America:
xH United States 360,314 281,911
mEx Canada 27,876 21,057
EtEMEF Total North America 388,190 302,968
LT EM : Latin America:
& Fl Chile 50,158 40,130
S7 Mexico 32,790 27,493
F] 4R & Argentina 14,218 14,189
Hib Other 11,435 7,148
T EMEE Total Latin America 108,601 88,960
tEREMEAZEKR) : Corporate and other (royalty revenue):
ERE Luxembourg 10,713 11,268
xE United States 238 272
GCEREMEF Total Corporate and other 10,951 11,540
#at Total 1,565,147 1,215,307
O BIEEM

Includes Macau
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7. Segment Reporting continued
(b) Geographical Information continued

(ii) Specified Non-current Assets

The following table presents the Company’s significant non-current assets by
geographical location. Unallocated specified non-current assets mainly comprise

TZEERE - goodwill.
RW128318
December 31,
LT ET25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
ESE| United States 24,545 27,885
ERE Luxembourg 532,428 532,428
ENE India 25,307 22,165
i E China 15,623 14,986
Mg South Korea 10,737 12,435
BB Hong Kong 9,049 8,721
Lt Rl B Belgium 45,803 50,324
27 Chile 10,510 10,912
8. ME MER®HIHE 8. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
H2E o aRIE
HEME
REREMH
Mashinery,
equipment,
leasehold
st} #F improvements st
HUFETES Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20114 2011
B Cost:
M2011E1A1H At January 1, 2011 7,373 62,738 277,838 347,949
= Additions 85 513 36,574 37,172
HE Disposals - (16) (10,614) (10,630)
TEZR H th 8 ) 19 Effect of movements in
24 exchange rates / other 817 11,728 (8,906) 3,639
M2011%F12831H At December 31, 2011 8,275 74,963 294,892 378,130
Rt ERREE : Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
R2011EF181H At January 1, 2011 - 7,544 215,623 223,167
FRAFE Depreciation for the year - 1,508 28,650 30,158
HE Disposals - (11) (9,470) (9,481)
EE Hih 2B Effect of movements in
g exchange rates / other 1,208 11,822 (6,719) 6,311
M2011%F12831H At December 31, 2011 1,208 20,863 228,084 250,155
BRTHEE : Carrying value:
M2011%F12831H At December 31, 2011 7,067 54,100 66,808 127,975
)]
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REMBERRM T &

8. V¥ MER®(HEEIH= 8. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net continued

TR
HEWME
HIERHA
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
Tt F  improvements Bt
HUFETZ27 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20104 2010
B Cost:
M2010F181H At January 1, 2010 7,353 65,058 273,655 346,066
"B Additions = 1,258 28,317 29,575
e Disposals - (1,320) (16,500) (17,820)
ER T HAh#E Effect of movements in
) 52 exchange rates / other 20 (2,258) (7,634) (9,872)
M2010%F12831H At December 31, 2010 7,373 62,738 277,838 347,949
AFIMER Accumulated depreciation and
WERBE : impairment losses:
20101818 At January 1, 2010 749 36,468 259,559 296,776
FAIE Depreciation for the year - 727 15,608 16,335
HE Disposals - (1,306) (16,355) (17,661)
WEE B Impairment losses = — 115 115
BB B 18 B E Reversal of impairment loss (749) (26,808) (38,795) (66,352)
TEZR H th 8 B 1Y Effect of movements
24 in exchange rates / other - (1,537) (4,509) (6,046)
A2010%12831H At December 31, 2010 - 7,544 215,623 223,167
FRHEE : Carrying value:
A2010%F12H831H At December 31, 2010 7,373 55,194 62,215 124,782

HZE20115F12831H%2010%F12831H
LtEENNEERSRIB302BBEZTR
163EBERT EZEEEPL4I1BEE
TRISEEEZERTD BT AEZE20115F12
A31BK2010F12A31BILEENEE
BA - BRTEERIHER — MR RITHEHA
TREY o ANATER2012F #Ht F43.0
BBEELNEAMS HbP2588X
TTER2011FE12B831B 5% - FRIEHEA
AEEEW L EB KR ERE o

20105 » 4 A 7 #E R 2 Al 122008
FRENYE BERZERESER
Elee4dEEET RABTEEREZ
BEBED 37 2BEXETHES HMEE
B2 2BEEZTH -—RETEHIIES
B REFERERHERECEERHEY
HEFERBANGENELENSES|E -
R2010%F 128318 ' BEERTRERSE
gk o

20115128318 - #BEZEERE
BRIFFE ©

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010 amounted to US$30.2 million and US$16.3 million, respectively. Of this
amount, US$4.1 million and US$1.3 million was included in cost of sales during the
years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Remaining
amounts were presented in distribution and general and administrative expenses.
The Company has authorized capital expenditures of US$43.0 million in 2012, of
which approximately US$2.5 million has been committed as of December 31, 2011.
All land owned by the Company is freehold.

During 2010, the Company recognized a reversal of impairment losses of
US$66.4 million with respect to property, plant and equipment previously impaired
in 2008. Of the reversal of impairment charges on the fixed assets, US$37.2
million related to distribution functions and US$29.2 million related to general
and administrative functions. The reversal of impairment losses was triggered by
the turnaround of the global economy and the resulting impact on net sales and
profitability. There were no accumulated impairment losses remaining at December
31, 2010.

No potential impairment indicators existed at December 31, 2011.
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(9) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(a) Goodwill

As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company’s goodwill
balance amounted to US$153.2 million, of which none is deductible for income tax
purposes.

BEZREEDT : The carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:
M12A318
December 31,
HUFETZ% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
A Cost:
M1B1BR®KI12B31H At January 1 and at December 31 1,122,999 1,122,999
ZHREESE Accumulated impairment losses
BM1A1ERRI12A31A At January 1 and at December 31 969,787 969,787
BREE : Carrying Amount: 153,212 153,212

THREREEEIN 2BEZHARE
BT :

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating
segment were as follows:

23 BOM 3k =M T EM Ra
LUTFETZ7 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia Europe North America Latin America  Consolidated
20115128318 At December 31, 2011 153,212 = = = 153,212
A2010%12H831H At December 31, 2010 153,212 = - - 153,212

R BIASEE 36 5% & & & 18 (IASSE 36
B AQRFFECBESEESENMNITHK
EEERFAFEREERANSFEAE
EFEsEEE ESRMRREBEEFAZ
BUMEEZARBEIFREREETE

In accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets (IAS 36), the recoverable
amounts of the Company’s CGUs with goodwill were determined using the higher
of fair value less cost to sell or value in use, which is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the unit.

9
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(a) Goodwill continued

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company’s
operating segments, comprised of groups of CGUs, as these represent the
lowest level within the Company at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. The allocation is made to those CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Separate calculations are prepared for each of the groups of CGUs that make
up the consolidated entity. These calculations use discounted cash flow projections
based on financial estimates reviewed by management covering a five year period.
Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using estimated growth
rates appropriate for the market in which the unit operates. The values assigned
to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends and
are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data) and are
summarized below.

e A pre-tax discount rate of 16% was used in discounting the projected cash flows.

e Segment cash flows were projected based on the historical operating results and
the five year forecasts.

e The terminal value is extrapolated using a constant long term growth rate of 3%,
which is consistent with the average growth rate for the industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation and has also
taken into account the business plans going forward. Management believes that
any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount. Judgment
is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow projections.



9. HERAMENEE

(b) HWEBREE

(b) Other Intangible Assets

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

HtnEF EEBE ¢ Other intangible assets consisted of the following:
Hin &
B EEARE
EFRF HERE Total Total other
Customer Leasehold subject to GRS intangible
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars relationships rights ~ amortization Tradenames assets
A Cost:
20101810 At January 1, 2010 111,650 5,551 117,201 538,350 655,551
MEEZLZEH Effect of movement in foreign
EZ - currency exchange rate - - - 405 405
A2010F128318 & At December 31, 2010
20115 181H and January 1, 2011 111,650 5,551 117,201 538,755 655,956
MEBERZBNTE Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate - - - (525) (525)
7 2011¥12A31H At December 31, 2011 111,650 5,551 117,201 538,230 655,431
2t EER Accumulated amortization
WA and impairment:
201018 1H At January 1, 2010 (57,663) (5,349) (63,012) (273,828) (336,840)
1 8 Amortization (4,207) (202) (4,409) = (4,409)
B T Reversal of impairment 37,954 1,807 39,761 273,828 313,589
A2010F128318 & At December 31, 2010
20111818 and January 1, 2011 (23,916) (3,744)  (27,660) - (27,660)
8 Amortization (7,608) (725) (8,333) = (8,333)
#2011 12A31H At December 31, 2011 (31,524) (4,469) (35,993) - (35,993)
MR & : Carrying amounts:
72010F12831H At December 31, 2010 87,734 1,807 89,541 538,755 628,296
#20115E12A31H At December 31, 2011 80,126 1,082 81,208 538,230 619,438

HZE2011%F128318 %2010512 8
31 EEENHEMEREE 2R

BERREIHS A A360BEETKR 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

27.7EBET °

Accumulated amortization and impairment charges of other intangible assets
subject to amortization was US$36.0 million and US$27.7 million as of December
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

BEEZMEZAREENT ¢ The aggregate carrying amounts of each significant tradename were as follows:
American
Tourister®
HEB® American Hith FE
LFETZEZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Samsonite® Tourister® Other  Consolidated
M2010F1 818 At January 1, 2010 220,200 38,400 5,922 264,522
B E Reversal of impairment 242,259 31,569 = 273,828
IME Foreign exchange - - 405 405
M2010%12H831H At December 31, 2010 462,459 69,969 6,327 538,755
IME Foreign exchange - - (525) (525)
#2011F12A31H At December 31, 2011 462,459 69,969 5,802 538,230

BRENHEMETEEREFBARK
HEENNETEEAFTHS IR 1445
R3.6% - HZE2011F12H31HR2010F
NRANALFE  BREENHEER
DRIASIEBETRAILEESET o #iE
BEARGAWRERPEIADHEHES - B
F2011F12AMBILENT—ERENR
R EHENAS3EEET 8 0EE
T 76EBXERT -76BEEERT 76
BEEIRHEZBEANIBEET

RIBIASEE36SE » EHREMERT
EEAZNEREAENSHSEREEREE
LB BEREKQATARBEFHIGE
BEEENATWREMY - BZE2011F128
31 H % 2010512 831 B 1t & &% £ 5 E
P& o

M2010%F » A QA B R B R EE
BEE22738HEET BEFBENRE
EiEEE380EET RAEENEE
BERE1SHEEET - BAEFBERER
HEREBEERRAHEEFTERRERN
RIEENTE REHBEEENE
EEENARATMNBBEMRRSIE -BE
2010512 B31 8 1k, 14% K BR B A7 BE 30 =
ARMREFAAREERNTESRE S
RERI16%HRBATEIEEARBERE S
WHEHRERE - ZHEESHAARER
XKLL FR200EEE WRBHEHER S
ENGELENESRESENARS R
HEREBKEENRRNTML - K2010
F12A310 T |EFERTRERSSE °
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Other intangible assets subject to amortization are amortized over their
weighted average useful lives of 14.4 years and 3.6 years for customer relationships
and leasehold rights, respectively. Amortization expense for intangible assets for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 was US$8.3 million
and US$4.4 million, respectively. Amortization expense is presented as a distribution
expense in the consolidated income statement. Future amortization expense as
of December 31, 2011 for the next five years is estimated to be US$8.3 million,
US$8.0 million, US$7.6 million, US$7.6 million, US$7.6 million and a total of
US$42.1 million thereafter.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Company is required to evaluate its intangible
assets with definite lives for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. As of
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 there were no potential impairment
indicators.

During 2010, the Company recognized a reversal of impairment losses of
US$273.8 million with respect to tradenames, US$38.0 million with respect to
customer relationships, and US$1.8 million with respect to leasehold rights. The
reversal of impairment losses was triggered by the turnaround of the global
economy and the resulting impact on net sales and profitability, along with the
Company’s financial performance related to the sales attributed to the tradenames.
As of December 31, 2010, a pre-tax discount rate of 14% was used in discounting
the projected cash flows for customer relationships and leasehold rights and a pre-
tax discount rate of 16% was used in discounting the projected cash flows for
tradenames. This rate is 200 basis points above the rate utilized for the overall
business and is based on the assessment that the risk associated with the cash
flows from the tradename intangible assets is higher than the risk associated with
the overall business. There were no accumulated impairment losses remaining at
December 31, 2010.
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10. Prepaid Expenses, Other Assets and Receivables

(a) FEiFRE (a) Non-current
HttEERERRBEER ! Other assets and receivables consisted of the following:
M12A831H
December 31,
UFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
VEEN Deposits 15,415 10,065
Hib Other 3,085 5,328
HMmEEREWRREHALE Total other assets and receivables 18,500 15,393

(b) AE
AYRXRAMRBEERIRN -FR
WEHZH o

(b) Current
Prepaid expenses and other current assets are expected to be recoverable or
expensed within one year.

1. 58 11. Inventories
FEaHE Inventories consisted of the following:
M12A31H
December 31,
HUFETZ% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
R 1 Raw materials 14,952 12,162
EHM Work in process 1,804 1,936
R Finished goods 220,201 208,606
HWIFEE Total inventories 236,957 222,704
NESEEEHE The amounts above include the following:
M12A318
December 31,
UFETZ7 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
BAFTEBEEXAINERZEE Inventories carried at fair value less costs to sell 47,561 30,811

HZE2011F12831H K%2010%128
BTHLEEE  FEMBZEIZEFE (D
FEREERST) DA ACCEEETLR
34EBET -EBE201MFE12A31A R
2010F12A31BLLEFE > RERFER
PHREE DB EB03EEETIRIIAE
EnAAFAERUASHREABHRN
EEHEBRIMELFSE -

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the write-
down of inventories to net realizable value (fair value less costs to sell) amounted to
US$6.6 million and US$3.4 million, respectively. During the years ended December
31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the reversal of write-downs recognized in profit
or loss amounted to US$0.3 million and US$1.7 million, respectively, where the
Company was able to sell the previously written down inventories at higher selling
prices than previously estimated.

S
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(a) BR#k 5 #T

REEBH - stARBIRR R W
IR HY R WCRR R (I BR R BRI ) Y AR e
DM

12. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are presented net of related allowances for doubtful
accounts of US$11.3 million and US$12.5 million as of December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively.

(a) Aging Analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful accounts) with the following aging analysis as of the reporting dates:

M12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
ZNHA Current 127,926 115,317
1B HA Past Due 37,074 25,082
165,000 140,399

EEHNDREEANEFNEEMR
H oo A20115F 128318 BRI FE
HEHAASHZAHEL0A R o

(b) FEMCARRKEIR(E

B R W BR TRV RE S 1B A BB AR AT
HOBRIEADARBBERENRSE
W ERBERT - BESEEERERE
METHE ARRAALRBZEERS
BEMER R -

Credit terms are granted based on the credit worthiness of individual
customers. As of December 31, 2011, trade receivables are on average due within
60 days from the date of billing.

(b) Impairment of Trade Receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Company is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly. The
Company does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year:

FARBREEZSOT :
LUFETZEZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
B1A1R At January 1 12,485 14,938
ERRBEEE Impairment loss recognized 806 612
ERERER X Impairment loss written back (1,982) (3,065)
M12831H At December 31 11,309 12,485
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13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

M12A318
December 31,
UFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
IRITHE R Bank balances 121,188 122,367
EHRE Short-term investments 20,071 163,431
HeRkBEeEEWHRSE Total cash and cash equivalents 141,259 285,798

BERBETEBYRFRIEIEH
REZEMEEITELFERER LA
EHERBE (N Ee ) 89 K E 2
BREH o

B ZE2011F12H831HK20105F12 A
31HLE  ARB W EHEEMASER
HIPR &l o

FHREEERRAB RS REH
fER e

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents year over year is primarily
attributable to the repayment of the outstanding balance of the former amended
senior credit facility and former term loan facility as discussed in note 6.

As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the Company had no

restrictions on the use of any of its cash.

Short-term investments are comprised of overnight sweep accounts and time

deposits.

14. BE R & 14. Share Capital and Reserves
MW128318 > BAWMT : As of December 31, share capital was as follows:
ZER OldCoMy 12 % B
Ordinary shares Preference shares of OldCo
F R In thousands of shares 2011 2010 2011 2010
B1A1HBTEN Outstanding at January 1 2,143,395 2,141,971 78,000 78,000
1518 55 IR 5 3 BX Conversion of preference shares to
ERERE Loan Notes - - (78,000) -
OldCoHy B 12 )£ & Contribution of OldCo shares (2,143,395) - - =
[OldCoM &= A A Issuance of share capital to
BITRA equity holders of OldCo 1,286,037 - - =
RERBER A UWEIR S M 1T Issued for cash upon Global Offering 121,100 - - =
AU EUR & 81T Issued for cash - 1,424 - _
R12B31 B #&TESH Outstanding at December 31 1,407,137 2,143,395 - 78,000
S
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EEZREE  FHOACoEBRZ
ERBEEARRQAGEAZERGES
RAAFRBTEBR2RE  HRERHE
ERMEATREEGHENB12860HER
LZiER - E—SFEESHEMTE206 KRR
AREERBEESSHENI2ZINEER
HEHZER - AAFE WREFTERELR
1,756.0B BB HERERXZ AH
ZBTERTENSIAEET - HE
201MFE12A3MBLLEE AR TAHEH
REEERABIEEET HHh8oH
EXTHEFR LETRBETER LDD
BRBENEBELRNRD o BT HKA24.8
BEETEREZ2011FE128318ILE
EZGRERERABRIAR/MAE -

EREZHRBE  OldCo78.0E B R
BARER2011F6H 108 BE KR T -
LEABEEREZEEARDNERERE
ZRE BEREBZI010EEETAE
BEBOCUAQRIALEHRBEETHE R
ELER2EREZ—BHEE -

(a) BB
MR20ME12831B: XA2AHEE
99,872,899,995 A E B R EFETR M K
1,407,137,004 R S REE0.01ETHE
BRIOTRBITEIMEBR -

EZEREEABERADAANEE
tHRERET—ZE-FECRTEER
HEERESHM  T2B=ZFLEEH
RBOAER - FHRRSTWHAERE
HEAMDIR °

M 2010 % 12 B 31 B ' OldColE &
2,143,394,998 R B R EE A0.01 X TH
AE DERITRBTEIMMEZER -
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14. Share Capital and Reserves continued

In connection with the Global Offering, the beneficial owners of the ordinary
shares of OldCo contributed such shares to the Company in consideration for
the issue of ordinary shares in the Company, which, upon completion of the
reorganization prior to the Global Offering, totaled approximately 1,286.0 million
ordinary shares. Please refer to note 26 for further details. In the Global Offering,
approximately 121.1 million additional ordinary shares were offered and sold
by the Company. The Company received gross proceeds of HK$1,756.0 million
corresponding to a capital increase of US$225.3 million with the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction. In connection with the transaction,
the Company incurred costs amounting to US$33.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, of which US$8.9 million were related to the listing and issue
of new shares and were recorded as a reduction of the additional paid-in capital.
The remaining costs of US$24.8 million were recognized as an expense in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2011.

In connection with the Global Offering, the 78.0 million preference shares of
OldCo were redeemed and canceled on June 10, 2011 in consideration for the
beneficial owners of the preference shares receiving the Loan Notes. The US$101.0
million outstanding balance of the Loan Notes were repaid utilizing a portion of the
Company’s proceeds from the sale of ordinary shares on completion of the Global
Offering.

(a) Ordinary Shares

At December 31, 2011, the Company had 99,872,899,995 shares authorized but
unissued and 1,407,137,004 ordinary shares with par value of US$0.01 per share
issued and outstanding.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares in issue rank equally and in full for all dividends
or other distributions declared, made or paid on the shares in respect of a record
date.

At December 31, 2010, OldCo had 2,143,394,998 ordinary shares with par
value of US$0.01 per share authorized, issued and outstanding.
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(i) AEEER
M 2010 & 12 B 31 B :OldCo¥E A&
77,000,000 FHR0.01ETHEE B 3
TRETEMEBEER - 2MBEFHTR
BHBRREHE -
ABBEERABGROAEE LRI
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Fi it B sk B EIAKE B £ R o R IBIASE 32
WOANBEEREIERAER - TBAE
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(i) BEEER
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CDRITEABTE/NBEELR -T2
TROHEEZEIT -
BEELRIZRFEESTERAR165.0
BEXTHWEERESS%NREER  H
PEHEEBEEARFEE ERBFERBEE
BEEARE  AXMNREFEIR - RER
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14. Share Capital and Reserves continued

(b) Preference Shares

(i) Class A Preference Shares

At December 31, 2010, OldCo had 77,000,000 shares of US$0.01 par Class A
preference shares authorized, issued and outstanding. All issued shares were fully
paid.

Class A preference shares were issued for a share premium which OldCo
reserved against for future distribution to holders of Class A preference shares. The
controlling shareholders of OldCo could not force a dividend or effect a redemption
of the Class A preference shares as a result of restrictions on the applicable
shareholders’ deed as well as Luxembourg company law. The Class A preference
shares were classified as equity in accordance with IAS 32. All Class A preference
shares were redeemed and canceled in on June 10, 2011.

(ii) Class B Preference Shares

At December 31, 2010, OldCo had 1,000,000 shares of US$0.01 par Class B
preference shares authorized, issued and outstanding. All issued shares were fully
paid.

Class B preference shares were entitled to an 8% cumulative return on the
aggregate amount of US$165.0 million compounded annually, which was allocated
to a reserve for Class B preference shareholders. Payment of the cumulative return
would occur only upon a liquidation or repurchase of the Class B preference shares.
The controlling beneficial shareholders of OldCo could not force a dividend or effect
a redemption of the Class B preference shares as a result of restrictions on the
shareholders’ deed as well as Luxembourg company law. The Class B preference
shares were classified as equity in accordance with IAS 32. All Class B preference
shares were redeemed and canceled on June 10, 2011.

(c) Treasury Shares
There are no treasury shares held by the Company.

(d) Distributable Reserves
Details of the equity components of Samsonite International S.A. as of December
31, 2011 are set out below.

i
Reserves
REEF
(RFEER)
FIMANRA Retained
Additional earnings e 4AER
R paid-in  (accumulated Total
HUFETEZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Share capital capital deficit) Equity
720105128311 At December 31, 2010 = - — -
B ABLER Loss attributable to equity holders - - (25,660) (25,660)
RERBEBITRA Issuance of share capital in
conjunction with Global Offering 14,071 971,091 - 985,162
FHEXHBENRGRAE Transaction costs associated
with Global Offering — (8,899) — (8,899)
20115128318 At December 31, 2011 14,071 962,192 (25,660) 950,603
)
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AAABREREIEREBARER
HELENEEAS P ERWBLQA
RETHEEE - RIBEZERH  AQF
FREEHFTHEEANREREHREIR
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14. Share Capital and Reserves continued
(d) Distributable Reserves continued
The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of Samsonite
International S.A. for the year ended December 31, 2011 included a loss of
US$25.7 million which are dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
At December 31, 2011, distributable reserves amounted to approximately
US$2.3 billion as shown in the statutory accounts of Samsonite International S.A.
and calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

(e) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

(f) Other Reserves
Other reserves comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow
hedging instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

(g) Non-controlling Interests

The Company currently operates in certain markets by means of majority-owned
subsidiaries that are operated in conjunction with a non-controlling partner in
each country. Under these arrangements, the Company contributes brands through
trademark licensing agreements and international marketing expertise and the
partner contributes local market expertise. All interests acquired were paid in full at
the time of the acquisition and each of these subsidiaries are operated on a self-
financing basis. There are no current or future requirements for the Company to
contribute any further investment amount to any of these entities.

The agreements governing certain majority-owned subsidiaries include put and
call options whereby the Company may be required to acquire the respective non-
controlling interests at amounts intended to represent current fair value. As of
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the financial liabilities recognized
related to these put options were US$29.5 million and US$18.7 million, respectively.

The call options were deemed to have a fair value of nil at each reporting date
as the agreements call for redemption at fair value upon the option being exercised.

S
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APEERERAEZFDRBEEZ20115F
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15. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic
The calculation of basic earnings per share in the current period is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, less the guaranteed return on
the previously outstanding Class B preference shares of OldCo.

The weighted average number of shares has been calculated as follows:

HBZENANNBLEE
Year ended December 31,

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars,

UFETZ2I KRR EREFEE R except share and per share data 2011 2010
A RTEERS Issued ordinary shares at the beginning 1,286,036,999 1,286,036,999
of the period
EIRBEFRBRTROM Weighted average impact of issuance of shares
IAEF G & (HE6) in the Global Offering (note 6) 66,024,386 =
B R IR 17 0 #E 2 19 & Weighted average number of shares

RERE AELEF

B2 5E IR B 2 F

R 5B AL KHEER

BEREREF
(RERETZ3)

RIBIASEIREMREF » REERE
ERMBTENINMAATNEZEREENE
AZEMEVNEREH  -EHELRLD TR M
R201MF6A16BEEBBEHERZMER
AT LT ADAFIREBR14508 T E# 1T
NRINBEEREBER °

HALEEREZFRE -

(b) ##
HREE2011512A31HK2010F124
SNALSEEYEBETIABRTESN - &
BREFSRANEASRERBFAER -

at end of the period 1,352,061,385 1,286,036,999

Profit attributable to the equity holders 86,748 355,022
Less earnings on Class B preference shares (6,489) (13,383)
Adjusted profit attributable to the equity holders 80,259 341,639
Basic earnings per share

(Expressed in US Dollars per share) 0.06 0.27

In accordance with IAS 33, Earnings Per Share, the ordinary shares of the
Company outstanding prior to the Global Offering have been retroactively restated
to the earliest period presented. In conjunction with the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 16, 2011, the
Company issued 121.1 million ordinary shares for HK$14.50 per share.

No dividends were declared and paid during the period.

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as there were no
outstanding dilutive instruments during the years ended December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010.

S
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16. Loans and Borrowings
(@) Non-current obligations represent non-current debt and finance lease
obligations as follows:

128318
December 31,

HUFETE2Z Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
7l & SR IE Finance lease obligations 78 137
RIETEEEERE (FaE) Amended senior credit facility (note i) - 189,158
7 Hi & B & (B &Eii) Term loan facility (note ii) - 57,451

78 246,746
B ER 2> HA 49 K Less current installments 7 37

71 246,709

() BETELEERE
EREZHRBE AQFCEBHER LA
BIETBELEEERENRERERS G
16EBET MBEBAMELDKIL -

EREEHERMEENARESR
EMHRME  AARME > EH24008 8%
THEEMEL  BOK&EITELEEER
EETHEHERNAFEHER1936H
BXET 46 4B BETNEBCEERR
BARBFERAERARENRZENHR

BZE201MFE12A31HLEEE  H
RAATARIYPAICEFEER  WER
2010F 12 A3 1B LA KCEITEBEEE
RENR T REHAIR 3248 8ET
BRBANERX

HBZE20106 128318 LEE 7
HMBRAERANFEN I ASEESR
TT e B E2010F12831HILEFE - KD
AN EETEL CEREAEI184HE
E T LB RA2011 E A B I BLE /9 Bt
BEHZBETABAEREX - REK » #
RENM26ABERTHAFERX - 12010
F12A318 Gt REELRSEHNA
FEAINIBEET
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(i) Amended Senior Credit Facility

In conjunction with the Global offering, the Company repaid in full the outstanding
principal balance of US$221.6 million on the former amended senior credit facility,
and the facility was terminated.

The Company estimated the fair market value of the term loan under the
amended senior credit facility was US$193.6 million at inception, compared to the
face value of US$240.0 million based on the present value of future cash flows
related to the term loan. The difference of US$46.4 million was recorded as a
discount on debt and was to be amortized over the life of the note utilizing the
effective interest method.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recognized the
remaining unamortized discount of US$32.4 million as of December 31, 2010 on
the former amended senior credit facility as interest expense due to the settlement
of the borrowing prior to maturity.

Interest expense recognized on the amortization of the discount amounted
to US$8.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company had made principal payments on the amended
senior credit facility in the amount of US$18.4 million to increase the allowable
capital expenditures under the financial covenants on this facility for 2011. At that
time, an additional US$2.6 million was recognized as interest expense. The fair value
of the outstanding principal balance as of December 31, 2010 was estimated at
US$192.9 million.
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(b) MEER

16. Loans and Borrowings continued

(@) Non-current obligations represent non-current debt and finance lease
obligations as follows: continued

(ii) Term Loan Facility

In conjunction with the Global offering, the Company repaid in full the outstanding

principal and accrued interest of US$59.2 million on the former term loan facility,

and the facility was terminated.

The Company had entered into the term loan facility whereby the CVC Funds,
the facility agent of the bank syndicate and a member of management agreed to
lend the Company up to US$55.0 million. The Company drew US$55.0 million on
the facility on September 10, 2009. The maturity date under the term loan facility
was September 10, 2014.

The borrowing under the term loan facility accrued interest at a rate that was
reset annually depending on interest rate market conditions. As of December 31,
2010 the interest rate on the term loan facility was 3.82%. Interest accrued under
the term loan facility and was added to the outstanding principal balance on the
interest reset dates. As of December 31, 2010 the balance of accrued interest was
US$0.7 million and US$2.5 million of interest had been added to the outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2010. The carrying value of the term loan facility
approximated fair value.

(iii) Other

In 2007, the Company entered into an arrangement with a bank to provide
funding in the amount of US$33.0 million to the Company’s Chilean subsidiary. The
Company provided US$33.0 million to the bank to secure the debt. The Company
has offset these amounts in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position. As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the balance both on
deposit with the bank and due on the loan to the Chilean subsidiary was US$23.7
million and US$26.8 million, respectively.

(b) Current Obligations

RABRNRBEHLT : The Company had the following current obligations:

128318

December 31,
UFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
8 %BEBEREE 87/3% Senior subordinated notes - 260
IE R B & 5 /Y B A o9 BA A9 X Current installments of non-current obligations 7 37
Hinz BEE Other lines of credit 15,008 11,735
TENE S A5 Total current obligations 15,015 12,032
R IE FE B4 B R AN Less deferred financing costs (3,319) -
BB R EREE Total current loans and borrowings 11,696 12,032
@
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16. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations continued

Certain subsidiaries of the Company maintain credit lines with various third
party lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines provide
working capital for the day to day business operations of the subsidiaries, including
overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance and factoring facilities. The majority
of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities. The total aggregate amount
outstanding under the local facilities was US$15.0 million and US$11.7 million at
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The unused available
lines of credit amounted to US$59.6 million and US$65.5 million as of December
31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

On May 27, 2011, the Company entered into a credit agreement for a
US$100.0 million revolving credit facility. The Revolving Facility became effective
upon completion of the Global Offering. The Revolving Facility has an initial term
of three years with a one year extension at the request of the Company and the
option of the lenders. The interest rate on borrowings under the Revolving Facility
is the aggregate of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in the case of borrowings made in
Euro) or (b) the prime rate of the lender and (ii) a margin to be determined based
on the Company’s leverage ratio. The Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee
of 1% per annum on any unutilized amounts, as well as an agency fee if another
lender joins the Revolving Facility. The Revolving Facility is secured by certain assets
in the United States and Europe, as well as the Company’s intellectual property.
The Revolving Facility also contains financial covenants related to interest coverage
and leverage ratios, and operating covenants that, among other things, limit the
Company'’s ability to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate
in certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The
Company was in compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2011.
The Company incurred costs of US$4.0 million in connection with the negotiation
and documentation of the Revolving Facility, which have been capitalized and
will be amortized over the term of the agreement. No amounts were drawn on
this facility at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, US$82.4 million was
available on the Revolving Facility as a result of the utilization of US$17.6 million of
the facility for outstanding letters of credit.
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17. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits expense, which consists of payroll and other benefits for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 amounted to US$201.5
million and US$156.3 million, respectively. Of these amounts, US$20.9 million and
US$12.2 million was included in cost of sales during the years ended December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in
distribution and general and administrative expenses.

Average employee headcount worldwide was approximately 6,200 and 5,500
for the years ending December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

(a) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have pension plans and post-retirement health
benefit plans which provide retirement benefits for eligible employees, generally
measured by length of service, compensation and other factors. The Company
follows the recognition and disclosure provisions of IAS 19, Employee Benefits (IAS
19). Under IAS 19, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. The measurement date for all pension and other employee benefit plans is
the Company’s fiscal year end.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Company sponsors a defined benefit retirement plan,
the Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan, that covers certain employee
groups. Retirement benefits are based on a final average pay formula. The Company
also maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain management employees.
These plans were closed to new entrants effective January 1, 2010. Effective
December 31, 2010, both plans were frozen to future accruals.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Company also provides health care and life insurance
benefits to certain retired employees who meet certain age and years of service
eligibility requirements. The plan was closed to new entrants with regards to life
insurance benefits effective January 1, 2009 and closed to new entrants with
regards to medical benefits effective December 31, 2009. Eligible retirees are
required to contribute to the costs of post-retirement benefits. The Company’s other
post-retirement benefits are not vested and the Company has the right to modify
any benefit provision, including contribution requirements, with respect to any
current or former employee, dependent or beneficiary. As of December 31, 2011
and December 31, 2010, the percentage of health insurance cost that the retiree
must contribute was 100%.

A Belgium subsidiary of the Company sponsors a pre-pension defined benefit
retirement plan to certain employees who meet certain age and years of service
eligibility requirements. Benefits are calculated based on a final pay formula and are
contributed until the employee reaches the legal retirement age.

S

HEREBRARAR —
—O——%%# 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FREMBREME &

17. REEA = 17. Employee Benefits continued

(a) BASFEIREEBEFRE & (a) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
ZEEGEHBYIREAARNTEE The U.S. plans are administered by trustees, which are independent of the

AEE HFEEEHERAQAGMNEEDHE  Company, with their assets held separately from those of the Company. These
BE ZiBzHRDIEBBEILRERM plans are funded by contributions from the Company in accordance with an
BEEBEMERFLY - 25T & REH  independent actuary’s recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations. The
ZBILREEMETIN2011F12831HE  latest independent actuarial valuations of the plans were as of December 31, 2011
ERAEZEIREZEE S8 2BIEEM and were prepared by independent qualified actuaries, who are members of the
FEMFEAEGENEREIEL % Socety of Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected unit credit
BEfMERRAQRREZEEEEAE method. The actuarial valuations indicate that the Company’s obligations under
RETEIR20115F 1231 H R20105F128  these defined benefit retirement plans are US$242.5 million and US$234.7 million as
BTHZAED I H242.5BEE7TK234.7  of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, which are 75.4% and
BEXET  R2011F12H831HK2010F  67.1% funded by the plan assets held by the trustees at December 31, 2011 and

12B31B 2 BIB75.4%K%67.1%HTEEAN  December 31, 2010, respectively.

FENGEEEMRT -

(b) REEMBRARPEHERZNUKIE (b) The amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial

T : position are as follows:

M12A31H

December 31,
HUFETE2Z Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2010
2R MBHEBERIE 2RE Present value of wholly or partly funded obligations (234,748)
STEEEZATE Fair value of plan assets 157,624
BEheBEFHE Net pension liability (77.,124)
AERBEEERSH Net unrecognized actuarial losses =
(77,124)
AREEEREE ZRRAR Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities 9,897
EEERMELECKRAE Experience adjustments arising on plan assets 2,675

BERESEBEFEUBAGETHEMRMRNEX  The net pension liability is recorded in employee benefits in the consolidated
HEEREFP -BARAQATANREMEE statement of financial position. The Company does not have net unrecognized
WP RAMBERBERLZ  MAAQAFTIE  actuarial losses as the Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in other

EABIBEBETHE - comprehensive income.
LB EEEAN —FRBEE - R A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one

m BHRARERBERFBEEAMIEMEZ  year. However, it is not practicable to segregate the amount from the amounts
BREARBEBRZR TR ZARRESH M  payable in the next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate to future
T AR EEAAZEREEARRT =M services rendered, future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions.
AzENREIBER - AQAFFEFR  The Company estimates that the benefit payments for the pension and post-
20RFEMERESRERERBAMNSKAEHN  retirement benefits will be approximately US$17.5 million during 2012 and between

R17TSEBETRM2013F Z20165F - US$16.4 million and US$17.2 million each year from 2013 through 2016.

BFENTI164BBEEZETZEI7T2HEET °
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17. EERH &
(b) REEHBRARPEEBURIE

mE ;&

RARSEBEFHRNTHAR :

17. Employee Benefits continued

position are as follows: continued

The net pension liability is shown below:

20114E12A31H
December 31, 2011

XEBHE Lt 1 85 3B 4k

(b) The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of financial

XERHhE =F =7

&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @t
HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total

EEBHAREZ Present value of the defined
HE benefit obligation (231,157) (2,510) (8,786) (242,453)
FTEEEATE Fair value of plan assets 182,728 - - 182,728
FEE Net liability (48,429) (2,510) (8,786) (59,725)
20105128318
December 31, 2010

XERKE Lt Fl B5 3R 4R

ZEENKE &F BF

B US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement #ct
HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total

EEBHAEZ Present value of the defined
HE benefit obligation (223,321) (2,390) (9,037)  (234,748)
STEEERAFEE Fair value of plan assets 157,624 - - 157,624
FEE Net liability (65,697) (2,390) (9,037) (77,124)
(6}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

RE MR &

17. EE&H &

() ERBARBEZIREES :

17. Employee Benefits continued
(c) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are

as follows:
2011

EXEBKE Lb #) B 38 4k

£EBHE & I

= US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
LFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total

BRERESZS : Change in benefit obligation:
R1A1B ZRBA&AIE Benefit obligation at January 1 223,321 2,390 9,037 234,748
BR 7% B A< Service cost - - 445 445
F B g A Interest cost 11,075 116 432 11,623
T a2 & H R Plan participants’ contributions - 873 - 873
RE(WR)EEB Actuarial (gain) loss 13,819 314 (191) 13,942
EFEF Benefits paid (17,058) (1,183) (642) (18,883)
INE 7 Foreign exchange adjustments - - (295) (295)
R12A318 2 @A &L Benefit obligation at December 31 231,157 2,510 8,786 242,453
2010

XEIERKE bt Fl B5 3R 4R

XERIKE = =R

B US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement #st
UFETZ2Z Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total

BRAE2S Change in benefit obligation:

B1A1H ZERAIE Benefit obligation at January 1 219,836 3,053 11,596 234,485
Bk % BX 2= Service cost 1,241 = 405 1,646
F B B A Interest cost 12,078 135 412 12,625
22 E G Plan participants’ contributions - 866 - 866
(EH) Amendments - (173) - (173)
BEER Actuarial loss 9,768 81 241 10,090
2R Benefits paid (17,302) (1,225) (788) (19,315)
5T EE R Plan curtailments (2,300) (347) (2,044) (4,691)
IMEFHE Foreign exchange adjustments - - (785) (785)
R128318 2B F &L Benefit obligation at December 31 223,321 2,390 9,037 234,748

S
~— Samsonite International S.A.
142 Annual Report 2011



17. BEEA = 17. Employee Benefits continued

(d) stEIEEES (d) Movement in Plan Assets
THRHEINEHE2011F12831H K2010 The following table sets forth the components of the change in plan assets for the
FNRANBLEEHEEEZEMNANK  years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:
o
2011
XEBKE Eb F) B 38 4K
XEBRHhE &F =7
=¥ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
LFETZEZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
EEESE Change in plan assets:
M1B1BZst8IEE 2 AF{E Fair value of plan assets at January 1 157,624 - - 157,624
FrEIEE 2B HE R Expected return on plan assets 8,303 - - 8,303
FEEE2BENRSE Actuarial gain on plan assets 1,089 - - 1,089
18 3 3K Employer contributions 32,770 310 642 33,722
a2 B E H R Plan participants’ contributions - 873 - 873
23 F Benefits paid (17,058) (1,183) (642) (18,883)
M12B318 25t & EE 2 AF{E Fair value of plan assets at December 31 182,728 - - 182,728
2010
EERIRE E ) B 3R 4R
XEERKE = EF
B US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
HUFETZ2% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
EEESE Change in plan assets:
MIB1BZEtBIEEZAFE Fair value of plan assets at January 1 134,724 - - 134,724
SFEEE AR Expected return on plan assets 9,094 - - 9,094
FEEECRE RS Actuarial gain on plan assets 2,675 - - 2,675
& E R Employer contributions 28,433 359 788 29,580
FHEI2 A HR Plan participants’ contributions - 866 - 866
243 Fl Benefits paid (17,302) (1,225) (788) (19,315)
M12B318 23t & EE 2 A F{E Fair value of plan assets at December 31 157,624 - - 157,624
S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FREMHRRHE &
17. REEA = 17. Employee Benefits continued
() PEMEZE W PHEZZEFRFEW (e) Net actuarial gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income
= (58 8iE consists of:
2011
EEBRKE b FI B 3R 4K
XEEAKE =F =F
&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
S I = A=y o Cumulative amount at January 1 78,848 (3,443) 111 75,516
FRE(K=)EE Net actuarial (gain) loss 12,731 314 (159) 12,886
M12B31B 22524 Cumulative amount at December 31 91,579 (3,129) (48) 88,402
2010
XERKRE Lt Fl B 3R K
ZEEKRE EF =F
B US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement Fh
HUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
MMB1RAZEF£5 Cumulative amount at January 1 71,755 (3,524) (153) 68,078
FREEEIE Net actuarial loss 7,093 81 264 7,438
R12B31B 2 &£ % Cumulative amount at December 31 78,848 (3,443) 111 75,516
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17. EERH &

() REEWBERPERBZHAZWOT :

17. Employee Benefits continued

(f) Expenses recognized in the consolidated income statement are as

follows:
2011

XEBKE Lk # B 3R 4K

XEEHKE =F =7

&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement ast
HUFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BR 7% B 2 Service cost - - 445 445
B B AR Interest cost 11,075 116 432 11,623
e EE 2T E ) Expected return on plan assets (8,303) - - (8,303)
T U 2 8 6 Amortization of net gain - - (32) (32)
FEHRBA K AL Total net periodic benefit cost 2,772 116 845 3,733

2010

XEEKRE Lt Fl B 3R K

XEEKRSE BEF =F

& F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement “st
HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BR 7% B 2 Service cost 1,241 - 405 1,646
F B K A< Interest cost 12,078 135 412 12,625
e EE 2 TEHE &) Expected return on plan assets (9,094) - - (9,094)
UK 2= 1 6 Amortization of net gain = - (22) (22)
iB 13 BR 5 5K 2~ 4 61 Amortization of prior service cost — (173) = (173)
BRI RS Curtailment gain recognized (2,300) (347) (2,044) (4,691)
FEHBARA (WA)#EE Total net periodic benefit cost (income) 1,925 (385) (1,249) 291

REaWaERT  FXRUTIEBER

The expense is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated

A income statements:
HZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,
HUFETZ2% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
—BRITBEX General and administrative expenses 2,231 (717)
Hbpe Other expenses 1,502 1,008
3,733 291

RAESHXBEEAQTE XK
EENWE QR (HRERASERER
DR (TRAEBRERAE 1) B1993F
M HRAESEBHARAAE)NE
EERERATAXARENEMKA R
X o R1993F AT - BB EAEH L

A (ADBHE—E0) 8 — 840 -

Pension expense included in other income and expense relates to the actuarial
determined pension expense associated with the pension plans of two companies
unrelated to the Company’s current operations whose pension obligations were
assumed by the Company as a result of a 1993 agreement with the Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC"). The plans were part of a controlled company
of corporations of which the Company was a part of, prior to 1993.

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

RE MR &

17. EE&H &
(9) THRIBEFTABEEMRE :

17. Employee Benefits continued

(g) The following table provides actuarial assumptions used:

XEENKRE Lt 7 B 3R 4R
XEEAKE B/H B
&l US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
20114 2011
AERAEBZ12A31AZEBAEREZ Weighted average assumptions used to
MEFHEME > Hep determine benefit obligations as of
December 31:
AL 3R 3 Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 4.75%
FHEBR=E Rate of compensation increase - FEANA -
B ERR= Rate of price inflation TEANA  TEANA 2.00%
AERESEZ12A31BLEEEZEEY  Weighted average assumptions used to
BRRAR 2 MEFIGHMHmFK  HAP determine net periodic benefit cost
for the year ended December 31:
AL IR % Discount rate 5.16% 5.16% 4.38%
EEZEHREERE Expected long-term rate of return on assets 6.30% ATEANA FTEANA
HERER Rate of compensation increase - FEANA -
20104 2010
AEREBZ12A31AZBARIEZ Weighted average assumptions used to
InEFIGEmR - Hep determine benefit obligations as of
December 31:
AR 3R =& Discount rate 5.16% 5.16% 4.70%
HEEBR=R Rate of compensation increase 3.50% FEAN/A -
BERBER=E Rate of price inflation TEANA  FEANA 2.00%
AEREBZ12AIBLEFEEZFES  Weighted average assumptions used to
BRIKA 2 NEFIGHERE > HAp determine net periodic benefit cost
for the year ended December 31:
BRI = Discount rate 5.73% 5.73% 4.94%
EECABRBERE Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.00% ATEAN/A TEANA
WELERR Rate of compensation increase 3.50% AFEANA FEANA

REBFEMS ALAAEEZEEE
HEHEHRERE63% c BHEHEHKR
TiRAEEEMIEMBEEEER KGR
BETHWBEMGE - ZERDERBER
REEAREAZ -FAHRHERED
ARBMADGEHIEHBIFEREZR
EESvHEHFHRAENREMTH
REBR -BREAQAANBRELGHRE
B RTEZEREE  BHRTIEER
REHRANSEFHNEEEZRE 22011
F12H31BK2010F12B31BMEEW
BEREHRED B HS%KR10% °
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The Company’s overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is 6.3% for the
U.S. plans. The expected long-term rate of return is based on the portfolio as a
whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. The return
is based exclusively on historical returns, without adjustments. The expected long-

term rate of return is a long-term assumption which reflects the Company’s best

estimate of the average rate of earnings expected on funds invested to provide
for the projected plan obligations. In assessing this rate, appropriate consideration
was given to the returns achieved in recent years as well as returns expected to
be achieved in the long-term, based on the Company’s investment guidelines
and objectives. The actual rate of return on assets for December 31, 2011 and

December 31, 2010 was 8% and 10%, respectively.



17. EE®FH =
(9) TRIBMFAABRERE : &
MEEDERSFRESFFEHE
RIBZFREBE BRI LCEZHENZ
HWFERBERUE - BB RREBHIR
EAHELHBRENEBRFER -
REKEBERAFEMS - BE2011
F12ANALEE  REBRRERER
BAE AT L7 9% EF RE R
ZEREEGTEHRD ZEH E2028%F 12
B3R LEEENISKER M REZER
R o
FETEERBERABRL RE @R
REBERRBHEBRENSEAEEKX
HE BHEBEERBRABZLEERTS
Z—HEBKELETHIZE

17. Employee Benefits continued
(g) The following table provides actuarial assumptions used: continued

The discount rate is based on a high-grade bond yield curve under which
benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount
rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value.

For post-retirement benefit measurement purposes, an 7.9% annual rate of
increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to
4.5% for the year ended December 31, 2028 and remain at that level thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts
reported for the post-retirement health care plans. A one percentage point change
in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

2011 2010

1% B 1% 1% B 1%

1% point 1% point 1% point 1% point

UFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars increase decrease increase decrease

AR 7% & R 25 A 48 B &R o Effect on total of service and

Fab- -2 interest cost components 1 (1) 1 (1)
HERREREREEZ Effect on post retirement benefit

=44 obligation 15 (15) 25 (24)

EARAERE(REERRBER
E RAEZEHFEERERFBEREER
HHEFNBEEMBE) 2 B2 HR20115F12
A31HR2010F12B31BHZ8EERZ
AFESOIEEEARIZIEBET ©

(h) EHEEREHERBTEEZATEE

The estimated benefit obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement
date without considering future compensation levels), exceeded the fair value of
plan assets as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 by US$59.7 million
and US$77.1 million, respectively.

(h) The fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major

REEEESHEDOT : asset category were as follows:
720115128318
December 31, 2011
BHESE
Targeted AFE
allocation Fair value
(FZ3T)
(US$°000)
% ¥ Equity —%-40% 28,692
& & U 2= Fixed income -%-100% 102,687
BEEDE Asset allocation 20%-40% 46,986
Hib Other -%-10% 4,363
HE Total 100% 182,728
9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

RE MR &

17. EE&H &

17. Employee Benefits continued

(h) ZEBRAKEHEFHEEZAFEE (h) The fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major

REBRAESENT - &

asset category were as follows: continued

20105128318
December 31, 2010

BESER
Targeted AFE
allocation Fair value
(F%7T)
(US$°000)
% A& Equity -%-40% 31,525
[& 7 Uk &= Fixed income —%-100% 74,714
BEEDB Asset allocation 20%-40% 47,287
Hith Other -%-10% 4,098
5t Total 100% 157,624

EESEMNBENRASNEERD

The asset allocation targets are set with the expectation that the plan’s assets

HSEEERERBRAEEHEMEEMSE  will fund the plan’s expected liabilities with an appropriate level of risk. Expected
ESWEHEMRE BEEDE2BMTE  returns, risk and correlation among asset classes are based on historical data and
HE®R RAEREEEEERKRBERMM  input received from our investment advisors.

REBENBETEERBAER -

The funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet

ZrtElNHABEAREMENTS  minimum funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws.
HIINEERFRMEENRMEMZKE In 2012, the minimum requirement expected to be contributed is approximately
REFRIE c R20125  BHEEREREAK  US$13.8 million, US$0.4 million and US$0.6 million to the U.S. pension, U.S. post-
& ZERAKRBEFMRLEFEETBRM  retirement and Belgium plans, respectively.

WEREERRERIBANRI138EEET

04BEBETROGEEBET °

(i) BE&EH (i) Historical Information
M12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010 2009 2008
EREBANEREZRE Present value of the defined benefit
obligation $(242,453) (234,748) (234,485) (232,427)
FEEEZATE Fair value of plan assets 182,728 157,624 134,724 131,284
FEE Net liability (59,725) (77,124) (99,761) (101,143)
AEEBEMELEZKRBRE Experience adjustments arising on
plan liabilities (2,660) 9,897 1,332 5,337
AEEEMEEZKBAR Experience adjustments arising on
plan assets (1,089) 2,675 9,277 (59,161)

AAFE 25 B8 HER2008F181H

BEZEIFRSHELER -
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The Company has presented historical information since its January 1, 2008
transition date to IFRS.



17. BEEA =
(j) Samsonite LLCEIEXEIR A &5t 8%
= R0F
Samsonite LLC (7 A B #) — R B Ki B 2
AHEERSEANERATDALEERHEN
NG REZHE ERSBEANER
A T FSamsonite LLCR H#E T XE KB
AENE TEREE (B D 7 M EMR
fE RSamsonite LLCS EEEIK B D AH
EAFESRERRIEBRI)  URHFE
REBNABRERRFZSBEENRE TH
ENRRE = AN ENBEENSTA
FNEFERTI900EEEZTN TS AR
LEHIMEERE - ERSBAERRIAMN
BERBBETHFEELEECERERA
NWZEEENBERMEBYIRIRL
Bl o M HEMRAREAZEAEERE
BEBKBREIINERE - EZE2011F128
318 RRAAEFHERE °
ZHEERQADAREELEEE
REXESRERTIRE  b)ZTER
BERMBEGFEHFEERAMEREINEGZ
B OFXPARABEREXEERE
ERTIRNZHATN—BH28 > =K
(d)Zst BRI L2 BEm °

18. &1

(a) BEFREIE

2011512831 HKR20106F 128318 14
REITHERRERL ARFERABLER
WERGETERRERTERBEE
BEREBEWOT :

17. Employee Benefits continued

(j) Samsonite LLC’'s US Pension Plan Settlement Agreement

Samsonite LLC (a U.S. subsidiary of the Company) and the PBGC are party to a
Settlement Agreement, under which PBGC was granted an equal and ratable lien
in the amount of US$19.0 million on certain domestic assets of Samsonite LLC and
certain of its U.S. subsidiaries (excluding any equity interests in subsidiaries and any
inventory or accounts receivable of Samsonite LLC or its U.S. subsidiaries), together
with Samsonite’s intellectual property rights in the U.S. and Samsonite’s rights under
licenses of such intellectual property to affiliates or third parties. The PBGC's lien
is equal and ratable with the lien granted over such assets to Samsonite’s senior
secured lenders. Other provisions of the agreement restrict the transfer of U.S.
assets outside of the ordinary course of business. The Company is in compliance
with these requirements as of December 31, 2011.

The agreement will expire upon (a) the Company obtaining investment grade
status on its senior unsecured debt, (b) the date the plan has no unfunded benefit
liabilities for two consecutive plan years, (c) the date on which the Company
becomes part of a controlled company whose unsecured debt has investment grade
status, or (d) the date the plan is successfully terminated.

18. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010 not recognized as liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position,
as they do not meet the recognition criteria, include the following amounts:

M12A318
December 31,
KUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
[EEES Contracted for 2,460 3,159
CREEERTHN Authorized but not contracted for 40,523 36,841
42,983 40,000
(6}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

RE MR &

18. K 1E &

(b) BEHERE
ANFWEEAETEQERLAE A
EREEEENEHRRENO T TR
HE-R128318  FAUBHEASET
HRRENREZENT ¢

18. Commitments continued

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Company’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancelable leases of office,
warehouse and retail store space and equipment. Future minimum payments under
non-cancelable leases, as of December 31, were as follows:

A12A318

December 31,
HUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
—F£ R Within one year 53,074 41,573
1825 1-2 years 41,808 31,552
2E55 2-5 years 81,804 64,119
S5F B L More than 5 years 24,063 30,573
200,749 167,817

HZE2011FE 22010128318 L&
B G ofHEERTAREEEREETH
HER AP ATIOBRBEETRS6TEE
Exe

AARRBEEFETHN - BT
EHERHEENHEET S LEMNEMENS
HE - BZE20115F12831H8 K20105 12
B31BLLEE  BESHEIIELHEESS
B28HEXTRIIBEET  HBER
HERX - ZETHATEESHEEREY
WEEEEEMBSHEAS ERAGKER
HUBESARBEFER -

19. AR EE
NEREBBRET AQTEYSER
RWFAREREF - RIS E B RAAE
NEERBERARELSSREWLER
ARELIRR—CHE HABFKRD
MENBELTREHRTE AQAE
REBASRRRSKREADANSE
RIERTERE BEMINES WS
RPN -—RETBEEXTRER - EEH
REGABFURIGEE  BEES
FEHEREHRIEARDEE -
BZ2011MF12B831BLEE » XA
BB R AEAFD o
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Rental expense under cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases amounted
to US$74.0 million and US$56.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Certain of the leases are renewable at the Company’s option. Certain of the
retail leases provide for additional rent payments based on a percentage of sales.
These additional rent payments amounted to US$2.8 million and US$4.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, and are
included in rent expense. Certain of the leases also contain rent escalation clauses
that require additional rents in later years of the lease term, which are recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

19. Contingent Liabilities
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to various forms of
litigation and legal proceedings. The facts and circumstances relating to particular
cases are evaluated in determining whether it is more likely than not that there will
be a future outflow of funds and, once established, whether a provision relating
to specific litigation is sufficient. The Company records provisions based on its past
experience and on facts and circumstances known at each reporting date. The
provision charge is recognized within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement. When the date of the incurrence of an obligation
is not reliably measureable, the provisions are not discounted and are classified in
current liabilities.

The Company did not settle any significant litigation during the year ended
December 31, 2011.



20. FEfF AR R 3 fth FE 4 SR IE

20.Trade and Other Payables

R12A318

December 31,
HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
P& {3 FR IR Accounts payable 212,974 225,922
HittENRIERETER Other payables and accruals 65,447 77,131
BAEERIE Restructuring accruals 1,506 3,118
Hfh e Bl 18 Other tax payables 6,633 24,340

FE 1 AR R % HL A & {3 0 IR 48 58

HZE2011F12A31BILEE » EE@#0.9
BEEREAER  UWRME i BUTH#
BR2009F EAEKRMERENESN
BEMNRK - BE2010F 12831 L FE
W43EBEREAER  TZREEM
EENNSESHERMNBEEREAAR o

EAREBEESFEREMERR  HRHREA
ZEREBROMAOT :

Total trade and other payables

286,560 330,511

For the year ended December 31, 2011, US$0.9 million of restructuring charges
were reversed to reflect a refund from certain local governmental agencies for
upfront employee related payments made in connection with restructuring initiatives
in 2009. Restructuring charges of US$4.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2010 were primarily attributable to lease exit costs related to the closure of retail

stores in North America.

Included in accounts payable are trade payables with the following aging

analysis as of the reporting dates:

MW12A31H

December 31,
HUFETZ% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
BOHA Current 158,067 187,010
i 5 Past Due 10,163 15,651

MR201ME12B31HEEMNERAR T
RERZAHETWIOSHREE -

21. ®@ TR

(a) 711915 & b
TRMEENREEERAGEERR -1
HBEH BAGERBEENT :

168,230 202,661

Trade payables as of December 31, 2011 are on average due within 105 days

from the invoice date.

21. Financial Instruments
(@) Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

M12831H

December 31,
UFETZ2 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
ES R HMERIE Trade and other receivables 171,552 146,142
ReRkReEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 141,259 285,798
MERBEN Foreign currency forward contracts 6,448 2,363

319,259 434,303

Lo
FERBBARAE —
ZO——&%% 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FREMBRRMET &
2. €M TR = 21. Financial Instruments continued
(a) RIEMEERIE & (a) Exposure to Credit Risk continued
RIER @ R EEE B 5 09 ERER The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date
MHBEREERRER : by geographic region was:
12A31H
December 31,
HUFETZ% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
g2 M Asia 63,980 46,660
BUM Europe 47,068 51,711
4t 3 M North America 36,582 26,926
BT EM Latin America 17,370 15,102
165,000 140,399
(b) REMRSHE SRR (b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk
TERESTESHE B (BEGEENF  The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financial
BEABNAYTHEBE/MT liabilities, including estimated interest payments.
20115128318
December 31, 2011
Di1E
REE SHRSRE Less than SEE
Carrying  Contractual one 1E25 2FE55E More than
HUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
EfTEERERE ©  Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
BRMRR Trade and
H th P& {3 FR I8 other payables 286,560 286,560 286,560 - - -
HiEEREE Other lines of credit 15,008 15,008 15,008 - - -
EAREEE Minimum operating
HEME lease payments - 200,749 53,074 41,808 81,804 24,063
IMNERBEH Foreign currency
forward contracts:
EE Assets 6,448 82,246 82,246 - - -
=R Liabilities 776 9,353 9,353 - - -

S
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2. & TH &

(b) RIBEIRKENE S EBE &

21. Financial Instruments continued

(b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk continued

72010128318
December 31, 2010

REE SHNELRE DI S5FELE
Carrying Contractual Less than 1825 2B5F More than
LUTFETZ7 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
EfTHESmER . Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
AR R Trade and
H i JE 35X 18 other payables 303,815 303,815 303,815 - - -
KIEFT B % Amended senior
FERE credit facility 189,158 221,600 - - 221,600 -
EHERRE Term loan facility 57,451 69,490 = = 69,490 =
HihfzEEE Other lines of credit 11,735 11,735 11,735 = = =
ERNREEE Minimum operating
HEME lease payments - 167,817 41,573 31,552 64,119 30,573
INERBEE L Foreign currency
forward contracts:
EE Assets 2,363 56,223 56,223 - - -
=R Liabilities 1,484 22,650 19,403 3,247 - -

TRETERSREHPNITET

The following table indicates the periods in which

EEENRETEEHEEERNWEHRA - with derivatives that are cash flow hedges, are expected

the cash flows associated
to occur and impact profit

or loss.
REE EHRESRE DRE S5ELLE
Carrying Expected Less than 122 PELES More than
HUFETE2Z Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
20115128318 : December 31, 2011:
EE Assets 6,448 82,246 82,246 - - -
aE Liabilities 776 9,353 9,353 = = =
2010512H31H : December 31, 2010:
BE Assets 2,363 56,223 56,223 = = —
a& Liabilities 1,484 22,650 19,403 3,247 - -
L)
HEREBRARAR —

—O——%%# 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
GREMKBRRME &

2. €M TR = 21. Financial Instruments continued

() REMEEER (c) Exposure to Currency Risk

ERTERARKBNEEMNEREE >  The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk arising from the currencies that
HAEAARMBERBREBLEBREARFEMN  more significantly affect the Company’s financial performance was as follows based

EMWIERABRNOT on notional amounts of items with largest exposure:

20114128318
December 31, 2011

BT AR
Euro Renminbi

(FExT) (AR%ETXET)
(Euro '000) (RMB '000)

BHE Cash 19,255 54,215
AR » FEE Trade receivables, net 25,398 71,849
H fih fE I 5k 18 Other receivables 9,094 11,581
A B EW (EA) RIE Intercompany receivables (payables) (5,885) -
FE S BR X Trade payables 29,506 (72,965)
H {th FE {3 FR 18 Other payables (938) -
BF 75 AR O 3% [ B Statement of financial position exposure 76,430 64,680
M2010%F 1283180
December 31, 2010
BT AR
Euro Renminbi
(F&x) (AR¥Tx)
(Euro '000)  (RMB '000)
e Cash 33,985 37,016
AR  F5E Trade receivables, net 25,040 58,052
H fth pE W 5k 18 Other receivables 12,978 3,441
A7 B () FRIE Intercompany receivables (payables) (8,142) -
FE 1S BR X Trade payables (59,118) (57,838)
H{h e+ R 18 Other payables (2,267) (21,843)

B 3 AROR R A B

Statement of financial position exposure

2,476 18,828

RERERNEREZNT : The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
FHYER R & H BRI E X
Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2011 2011 2010
& T Euro 1.4000146 1.2957 1.33905
AR Renminbi 0.1547979 0.1477388 0.1588800 0.1517300

S
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2. € TR =
(d) SMEBRBRERH
BT RETHEI0%E DB S EE2011
F12H31BK2010F12A31BILEEW
mAB M3 2EBETRIC6EEETT
k2 R<2011F12H31H &2010F128
3THWESIEM22 1 BEBXTRI95EE
ERX oZANMBEMEHEMASEE(L
HEFR)EFFAE  -BTtRE10%FH
ZHENEFIRAKERSANERE
SESEERNEE -
WMARBEEZTHEIONS: BZE
20114512831 H %20105F 12831 H IL &
ERENEs M IBEETRIZA
BXt kRA2011F12831HKR20105F
AMENERESIEEZM2BEEE
TR20EEBET - ZoMBRAEHAM
AE#RZ(LERFR)EFIE - AR
MEEI0%GHZHABAERN R A LE
REANEZEEESECEHERNEE -

() BIEHMR
ARAHELMTANAERRMT :

21. Financial Instruments continued

(d) Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

A strengthening of the Euro by 10% against the US Dollar would have increased
profit for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 by US$3.2
million and US$16.6 million, respectively, and increased equity as of December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010 by US$22.1 million and US$19.5 million, respectively.
The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. A 10% weakening in the Euro would have an equal but opposite impact
to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting dates.

If the Renminbi had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would
have increased for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010
by US$1.1 million and US$1.2 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010 would have increased by US$2.2 million and US$2.0
million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Renminbi would have an
equal but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting
dates.

(e) Interest Rate Profile
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

IREE
M12A31H
Carrying amount
December 31,

HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
EEIA: Fixed rate instruments:
SREE Financial assets - -
EWmEas Financial liabilities - (189,418)
- (189,418)
FEIA Variable rate instruments:
EWMEE Financial assets 20,071 163,431
ERMERE Financial liabilities (15,008) (69,186)
5,063 94,245
FEBEBRERRE —

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

RE MR &

2. & TH &
(f) AFEHEREEZLEE

21. Financial Instruments continued
(f) Fair Value Versus Carrying Amounts

R128318
December 31,
2011 2010

AR E AFE IREE DNFE

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

HUFETZ2% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount value amount value
REBHERRNARNEE Liabilities carried at amortized cost:

BIETEBEEERME Amended senior credit facility - - 189,158 192,906

FEHMEREEREBENATE
HEREBEMSE °

(9) AFEZERERE
AFERRFTEAHTSEZHEERERFR
SHRHEEET RS EEEEAS
KB - IFRSEY —ERAFESHKER

ZRBHIRAUGEAFEZHERLZE

MABRCBEESR ZEREBET

REBTSHEDEEREBZALR

EREESSHR(E—RBFE) UK

BREAFIBRZBAAERNTER

RERE=ZFBTE) D FEERE

BH=ERINMOT :

e BE—RAMABIBEARQATAFTEIR
STERFENREEHERCEER AR
REBRHE ZRE CRAE) -

e F_MAMAHMEATBEEE AR
MWHRENEESEBEN T HEERBE
BRo8mABE -

e E=RFMABBEREEREBNT
EE-23 DN ¢

AFEHNEELAFESHEEBD
BHRAIBDHENREAFETEREMS
BEARZREKEBHE AEIE -

HREBESRESEEY  BUWERMR

ERARE - - RHEERESHEXNEH
BSEHEE Bt - 25 TAZEREE

EAFERE

NERAENNAFEBRBSER

TRMEN ™S REMET - R2010F12A8

318  HEBITBEACEEREZAFE

TRIEEBYIRB R o
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All other financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate
carrying amounts.

(g) Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date. IFRSs establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to

unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level

1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its
entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts
payable, short-term debt, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because of
the short maturity or duration of these instruments.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts are estimated by reference
to market quotations received from banks. As of December 31, 2010, the fair value
for its amended senior credit facility was estimated based on its discounted cash
flow.



2. € TR =

(9) AFEEREE &
TRE5MR2011F12831HK2010

FNRANBERBEEEUATENEN

EEREB(BREREUDTFETEN

21. Financial Instruments continued

(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (including items that are required to be measured at fair value)
as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

HE) :

REEAERATIEEAENAFE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using

E2HEE
BERER HipeT#z
HiBHRE EXBANEIR O
(E—#R51) (B8R A1) EXEABH
Quoted prices Significant (B=451)
20114 in active other Significant
12A31H markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
HUTFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BE Assets:
EEREBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 141,259 141,259 - -
INERBE R Foreign currency forward contracts 6,448 6,448 - -
HMERE Total assets 147,707 147,707 - -
8E: Liabilities:
SHEEREEHN Foreign currency forward contracts 776 776 - -
BEE Total liabilities 776 776 - -
RB|EBFEATIRETENAFE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using
T 2R
BENER H AR
M5 HRE ERBAHE T AR
(F—#37) (B=45) EDN PN ¢
Quoted prices Significant (BB=4351)
720105 in active other Significant
128318 markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
HUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BE Assets:
ReRkBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 285,798 285,798 = =
MERBEN Foreign currency forward contracts 2,363 2,363 = =
BREE Total assets 288,161 288,161 — =
=R Liabilities:
IR E X Foreign currency forward contracts 1,484 1,484 - =
weE Total liabilities 1,484 1,484 - =

AFEGEHATDTRE-—HRERBRE

EETSENRMBETANERED -
REMIAMEETBRIRTRERNZR
AEHERASH AL\ ZEREE -
BROEMEE  IEHEFBEREKR
s .

e

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point

in time, based on relevant

market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates

are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant

judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FREMBREME &
2. €M TR = 21. Financial Instruments continued
(9) AFEEFREE & (g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued
AARETHEENB AR EHRET Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Company periodically enter into forward

VHEREBEEUZFENFEBBN  contracts related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in USD which
REEHN  HWEEHABESRELH W ¥ are designated as cash flow hedges. The hedging effectiveness was tested in
SHAE MM TR IBIASE399E - £ T A accordance with IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
EFRE®RA - R2011F12A31HKR  fair value of these instruments was a liability of US$0.8 million and US$1.5 million
2010128318 » kETEMAF{ES and an asset of US$6.4 million and US$2.4 million, as of December 31, 2011 and
BlIRHBEOBEEBERTIRISEERT & December 31, 2010, respectively.

EECARBERR24BBET ©

22. FRE8H 22.Income Taxes
(a) RGEAWUBRPMBHERE : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statements includes:
R12A318
December 31,
UFETZ27 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
AHEBEBAST — BBFEH Current tax expense — Hong Kong Profits Tax:
7 HA HA 7 Current period (923) (1,595)
AR EER T — B Current tax expense — Foreign:
75 HA B ] Current period (44,203) (22,786)
BEHEAE Adjustment for prior periods (844) -
(45,047) (22,786)
EEFIE (BAR)EK R - Deferred tax (expense) benefit:
FRERBEEREZE Origination and reversal of temporary differences 8,733 (128,157)
BREH Change in tax rate 70 139
AERBRBEEED Change in unrecognized tax assets (9,115) (2,842)
BERBERERNBIEEIE Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 10,602 7,466
10,290 (123,394)
HWETERIRAX Total income tax expense (35,680) (147,775)

BE20115F12831HK2010%F 128318  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended December 31, 2011
LEENTBANESHEBERBEERNMST  and December 31, 2010 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits
ERBRANIZFE16.5%1E - BIHHE  for the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current
ARMBEZEBEBERBEANETHRE  rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

8 o
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(b) HEMTERR S RERRE
i E R R

22.Income Taxes continued

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

applicable tax rates:

profit before taxation at

M12A831H

December 31,
UFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
FREF Profit for the year 103,618 366,814
HWRBHHAX Total income tax expense (35,680) (147,775)
FT 15 %4 Al & R Profit before income tax 139,298 514,589

RAQARBABREFEDN Income tax expense using the Company’s applicable

FriEFEX tax rate (38,112) (157,709)
i UK =X B Tax incentives 9,582 5,307
MESH Change in tax rates 70 139
BIERFEZE Change in tax reserves (977) (2,090)
ENCIE SR Non-deductible differences (623) 2,952
AERAE — ERBERR Unrecognized benefit — Global Offering costs (6,099) =
BRBARERNBIEEIE Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 10,602 7,466
AERABRBEEEH Change in unrecognized tax assets (9,115) (2,842)
Hith Other (164) (998)
BEPEBETR Under provided in prior periods (844) -
(35,680) (147,775)

HZE20115F 128318 %2010%F12831H
LFEENBERED BZRAD B MNE R
BE27.4%KR304%5THE - BRABERIE
RADBHMEFGEZRBIEME ©

The provision for taxation for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December
31, 2010 is calculated using the Company’s applicable tax rate of 27.4% and
30.4%, respectively. The applicable rate is based on the Company’s weighted

average worldwide tax rate.

S
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RE MR &

22. Fhiig®i =
() BEBIEEERER :
FEELRESERERMOT

22.Income Taxes continued

(c) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

R12A8318
December 31,
UFETZ7 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
BEEHBEE : Deferred tax assets:
RIRREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,224 1,650
FE Inventory 1,342 1,487
B EREE Plant and equipment 1,273 1,478
RIKERRIKEZERER Pension and post-retirement benefits 6,821 10,986
HIEEE Tax losses 951 4,165
e Reserves 5,192 8,544
HAth Other 1,227 63
i 18 3K 85 Set off of tax (4,007) (7,582)
HIRELER B EE Total gross deferred tax assets 14,023 20,791
BEEFHEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities:
B E R EE Plant and equipment (15,024) (19,458)
BEEE Intangible assets (103,640) (108,899)
Hib Other (5,650) (15,004)
i IE K 8 Set off of tax 4,007 7,582
HIEERIBEE Total gross deferred tax liabilities (120,307)  (135,779)
FELEHIEEE(BE) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (106,284) (114,988)

S
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22. Fhiig®i =

() BEHEAERRS : &
BE20115F12831AK20105128
BNNALFENEREREE .

22.Income Taxes continued
(c) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities: continued

Movement in temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2011
and December 31, 2010:

A HE A
20105 2HE K@ 20114
124318 R8s ®’R 12A31H
iEER R Recognized E510
Balance Recognized in other Balance
December 31, in profit comprehensive December 31,
UFETZ2Z Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2010 or loss income 2011
RIRREEE Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,650 (426) - 1,224
=FE Inventory 1,487 (145) - 1,342
ME - BERRE Property, plant and equipment (17,980) 4,228 - (13,752)
B EE Intangible assets (108,899) 5,259 - (103,640)
BRAEREKREEF Pension and post-retirement benefits 10,986 (2,579) (1,586) 6,821
i1 BT 1A Tax losses 4,165 (3,214) - 951
®E Reserves 8,544 (3,352) - 5,192
Hh Other (14,941) 10,519 - (4,422)
BIEAKBEBESE(EE) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (114,988) 10,290 (1,586) (106,284)
20094 20104
12A31H REEEF 12H831H
Balance Recognized Balance
December 31, in profit December 31,
HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2009 or loss 2010
RIFREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,069 581 1,650
FE8 Inventory 1,489 (2) 1,487
ME S BMENEKE Property, plant and equipment 4,543 (22,523) (17,980)
B EE Intangible assets (13,478) (95,421)  (108,899)
BhREREBRIKNEEF Pension and post-retirement benefits 3,173 7,813 10,986
BIEET A Tax losses 6,499 (2,334) 4,165
& Reserves 15,435 (6,891) 8,544
Hib Other (10,324) (4,617) (14,941)
BIELERELE(8E) Net deferred tax asset (liability) 8,406  (123,394) (114,988)
)]
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RE MR &

22. Fiie8i &

() BEHRESTERMER &
KEDEEHRELE
EBTHEENELEREEEN KK
®R

22.Income Taxes continued

(c) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities: continued

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

R12A318
December 31,
LUFETZEZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
AIKNERER Deductible temporary differences 101,289 82,754
HIEEE Tax losses 78,780 64,246
FRERR Balance at end of year 180,069 147,000
RIERTHE > AIRNEREEES The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax

HA ELESBEEMARILEERE
BHRA  BAQATTAEERHREEZRH
BRAERAREZSEENKSR -

THHAREBERB(EERARR
®’R)

legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items
because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the Company can utilize the benefits from them.

Available tax losses (recognized and unrecognized):

R12A318

December 31,
UFETZ27 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
£ United States 16,997 28,108
&M Europe 43,142 19,104
=2 M Asia 3,946 7,122
RTEM Latin America 16,738 29,479
g Total 80,823 83,813

REEEREESHE RN IELRE
Hl o XEAIBH2029F W o BUME
B H2016FRER - mMEEMRB2012
FREM HTEMBEB2018F L E
W e

AERELEHIE & &
AEAQAAEZEF RSO EBBELRESRS
RARERISBEHER - KR20115F12
B31HX2010F 128318 > BB QT
REEHANELEHEEEI3EABERLR
QI HEETAWER o

EThRSECEEHHE > LA
KEEMERMORARE - - 252
BB EARANAEABRENGZERE
BX o

Tax losses expire in accordance with local country tax regulations. United
States losses will expire beginning in 2029. European losses will expire beginning in
2016. Asian losses will expire beginning in 2012. Latin American losses will expire
beginning in 2018.

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities
At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 a deferred tax liability of US$4.3
million and US$2.1 million, respectively, related to investments in subsidiaries is not
recognized because the Company controls whether the liability will be incurred and
it is satisfied that it will not be incurred in the foreseeable future.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation adopted in the current year. None of the changes impacts the
Company's previously reported consolidated tax expense.
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REaRBEXRRGFEEEWRERPRA

MEBEBARMBEERRE2I N TR ¢

23. Finance Income and Finance Costs

The following table presents a summary of finance income and finance costs

recognized in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of

comprehensive income:

BZ12A3MALFE
Year ended December 31,

HUTFETZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
RBAREBERER : Recognized in income or loss:
BATFERF 2 WA Interest income on bank deposits 1,247 1,647
B 7% U A Finance income 1,247 1,647
REBERNTENSREEN Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at
FERX amortized cost 37,285 16,104
ROLHENATFEED Change in fair value of put options 8,644 8,788
INEE 1B F AR Net foreign exchange loss 2,164 5,862
HE2RBEFEMNEX (H5E6) Expenses related to the Global Offering (note 6) 24,805 -
BEEEKIE (K &6) Stabilization Proceeds (note 6) (3,474) -
Hib ot i & F Other finance costs 2,455 (94)
B % & H Finance costs 71,879 30,660
REESEHEIANMEE R FHE Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss 70,632 29,013
REMEEBRZPER : Recognized in other comprehensive income:
BONEBNIEELER Foreign currency translation differences for
foreign operations (15,357) 1,383
ReREEHNAFLEEE Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 5,401 297
REMEZEKEFERN Income tax on finance income and finance costs
B B U A\ R B 75 B A Y P45 B recognized in other comprehensive income (1,586) -
B HL 2 T Uk 28 R R SR B A (M A) Net finance (income) costs recognized
BERFEE  MBRBiE in other comprehensive income, net of tax (11,542) 1,680
THALER : Attributable to:
KATEREFEA Equity holders of the Company (9,277) 1,306
R ESE Non-controlling interests (2,265) 374
REMmEZEKEPERN Finance (income) costs recognized in other
MM ER @ HIBRHIE comprehensive income, net of tax (11,542) 1,680
@
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
GREMKBRRME &

24. X 24. Expenses

BZE20115F12831HK20105612H831H  Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following for the
EEE BRASHAGFENMER (5  years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

AT &8

BZ12A3BALEE
Year ended December 31,

HUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
BEEEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 30,158 16,335
B EEHHE Amortization of intangible assets 8,333 4,409
1% 24 & 57 B Auditors’ remuneration 7.751 4,190
ERYMENEEHRNEER Operating lease charges in respect of properties 74,035 56,747
FE W BR SR YR B BT 1B Impairment losses on trade receivables 806 612
%[5 fE IR BR 5% B R B S 18 Impairment losses on trade receivables written back (1,982) (3,065)
EEENEFEEREBEBERE Provision for impairment losses on inventories made 6,577 3,398
BREGFEREBERE Provision for impairment losses on inventories (321) (1,731)

written back

BRAARQ B INERZE AT KPMG LLP A The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended
BZE201MF12A31BILFEEFIEMEMNE  December 31, 2011 provided by KPMG LLP, the external auditors of the Company,
BRREBERBNEROT : were as follows:

HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

FEERRPHEBRRS Annual audit and interim review services 3,091
EHRBEEELENER Fees incurred in connection with the Global Offering 4,164
EEZABE RS Non-audit related services 496
et Total 7,751

S
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(a) BXEEHAESHR S
BRUTESREMEIEERBASENR
EHEHN FRATERERUFERE
BRI - 3 A1 IR R R E #E AR AU E
3K o
FTEEEERELAQAESERER
EHE FEEBEABSHNHFMEE

25. Related Party Transactions
(a) Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to their cash compensation, the Company also provides non-
cash benefits to Executive Directors and other key management personnel, and
contributes to a post-employment defined benefit plan on their behalf.

Key management is comprised of the Company’s Directors and Senior
Management. Key management personnel compensation comprised:

12H31H

December 31,
HUFETZ% Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
EEWS Director’s fees 251 45
MR EMEYR S Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 4,666 4,456
AL Bonus 2,299 1,027
DU 5 = 4 Share-based payments 200 600
RIKE GBI AR Contributions to post-employment plans 152 33

7,568 6,161

b) EEB2
REFBLARAZ 61 EEHSR
BuT

(b) Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

20114128318
December 31, 2011

HEN R R
Htb BT BikE
Salaries, sTEIR
allowances Contributions
EE#E  and other VAR 3 X 44 to post-
Directors'  benefits in 1E4l Share-based employment st
HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars fees kind Bonus payments plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 1,094 154 200 - 1,448
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 462 481 - 27 970
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 853 532 - - 1,385
FHITESE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 71 - - - - 71
Nicholas Clarry Nicholas Clarry - - - - - -
Bruce Hardy Mclain  Bruce Hardy McLain - - - - - -
BYFHTESE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 60 - - - - 60
Miguel Ko Miguel Ko 60 - - - - 60
Ying Yeh Ying Yeh 60 - - - - 60
st Total 251 2,409 1,167 200 27 4,054
(6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FREMHRRHE &
25. AES XD o 25. Related Party Transactions continued
(b) EEME & (b) Directors’ Remuneration continued
201012 A31H
December 31, 2010
FH o OREHR
H B R % BIKE
Salaries, BE1G3N
allowances Contributions
EFEWD and other DR 245 to post-
Directors' benefits fEAL  Share-based employment Bt
HUFETE27 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars fees in kind Bonus payments plans Total
HITESE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 1,079 188 600 - 1,867
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 385 97 - 10 492
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 900 310 - - 1,210
FHITESE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 45 - - - - 45
Nicholas Clarry Nicholas Clarry - - - - - -
Bruce Hardy MclLain  Bruce Hardy McLain - - - - - -
BUHHBITEE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells - - - - - -
Miguel Ko Miguel Ko - - - - - -
Ying Yeh Ying Yeh - - - - - -
g Total 45 2,364 595 600 10 3,614
B ZE2011%F12831HK%2010%F128 No director received any emoluments from the Company as an inducement to

STAIEFE BEEZ=EARAFWEME  join or upon joining the Company during the years ended December 31, 2011 and
A SERMARIMARARE 2B o  December 31, 2010. No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
REBHE BEESRERRFDEEHSRE  the periods presented.

EEBE -

S
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(0 BEHFAL
BZ20114128318R2010%12831H
LEE ARAAAEHEHALTIHE
BZARMBES  RENHMESER £
YHEE - EXNFARAEBRSHA
THMEFBENOT -

25. Related Party Transactions continued

(c) Individuals with the Highest Emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Company include three and two directors
during the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively,
whose emoluments are disclosed above. Details of remuneration paid to the
remaining highest paid individuals of the Company are as follows:

128318
December 31,
HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
MR EMEYR S Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 944 1,107
A Bonus 672 873
RINEFTEIHER Contributions to post-employment plans 9 -
1,625 1,980

RELSWRFE  SBEALHHEHE
#250,000% T - BE2011F12A31HK
201056 12A3HILFE  HEXGZE
AL EAIFRIEAER BRI SR A
HIMARR B KRR -

The emoluments of each individual exceeded US$250 thousand for each of the
years presented. No amounts have been paid to these individuals as compensation
for loss of office or as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company during
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FEPBRRME &

25. AES XD o 25. Related Party Transactions continued

(d) HitEEH RS (d) Other Related Party Transactions

(i) 72007108248 » RAFECVC (i) On October 24, 2007, the Company entered into a monitoring agreement with
Capital Partners Advisory Companyz] CVC Capital Partners Advisory Company to provide ongoing consulting and
VEEERZE 0 UmAQ REERERE management advisory services to the Company for an annual fee of US$150
AREEEB R - F & %150,000 thousand. The monitoring agreement was terminated on June 16, 2011.
En o EEWMEEN2011F6816H
KUk o

(i) 72 &7 8 ED E Mf B 2 ASamsonite (i) The Company’s Indian subsidiary, Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd., purchases raw

South Asia Pvt. Ltd.@Abhishri materials and finished goods from, and sells certain raw materials and finished
Packaging Pvt. Ltd (BZALDQ B ME goods to, Abhishri Packaging Pvt. Ltd, which is managed and controlled by the
TEEURTARPRIBEAR family of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala, Executive Director and President, Asia-Pacific
Ramesh  Tainwala%t 4 ([Tainwala%t and Middle East of the Company (“Mr. Tainwala”).

ED)NREEERENFEBEREE Related amounts of purchases, sales, payables and receivables are the following:

BB R o
R HE - BAFTUAREWRFIRN

MHESRENT :
BZ12A3MBALEE
Year ended December 31,
HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
B BB Purchases 4,867 5,178
HE Sales 271 957
MW12A318
December 31,

HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
FE {3 FR 1B Payable 543 620
FE U R 1B Receivable 67 180

S
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(d) HMFAELRZS &

(iii) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd.7F [
Bagzone Lifestyle Private LimitedH
E B @ ° Bagzone Lifestyle Private
LimitedfATainwalaZt £ R & B B &
4 o TainwalaE E R EREBRES
Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. ]2 28 2
ARMAEESERENKEA A
MR ER o

25. Related Party Transactions continued

(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued

(iii) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. also sells finished goods to Bagzone Lifestyle
Private Limited. Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited is managed and controlled
by the family of Mr. Tainwala. Mr. Tainwala and his family also own a non-
controlling interest in Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. and the Company’s United
Arab Emirates subsidiary.

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

HUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
2 Purchases 117 36
HE Sales 7,347 5,092
e Rent 992 786
MW12A31H
December 31,
LUFETZZ Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010
ERE Payable - 24
FE W FR 1B Receivable 4,131 1,493

B ZE2011FE R2010F128318 L&
E E2REXNANIOBEEZTRI2
BEExTFHTainwalat R HERIK
BEEWER  UERQHMENES -
M2011512H31H & 2010512 831
B BMERIEEX STainwalae £ &
HXRHk - W2011F 128318 K2010
F12A318 ' 0SEBERTIKRIOEE
EnARREENERXNARBER

A o

Approximately US$1.9 million and US$1.2 million was paid to entities owned
by Mr. Tainwala and his family, for office space rent for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, no amounts were payable to Mr. Tainwala and his family.
As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, US$0.5 million and US$1.0
million, respectively, was recorded as a receivable in the form of a security
deposit.

S
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RE MR &

5. FERXS &

(d) HMFEAELRZS &

(iv) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd.H & &
A f& FPlanet Retail Holding Pvt. Ltd.
(TPlanet Retaill) ° Tainwala %4 &
Planet Retailfy EZ R R o B E£2011
128318 K20105F12831B 1L &
Eo mitERELHEENSED AR
0.1TEBETROIEEET ° R2011
F12831HK2010F12831H &
BIULER Planet Retail A9 5K 833,000
JTROETT °

(v) HEBMERRTAEALRQTEAM
BMBRAGTETEAMRNBITA
NEEARDXTR2011E12A318H
ZERN158% °

FERZEHRESERNAREESRN
THYBATEBEEME - BHRR
SRHMBANERRUREXN - AESE
BRI I A o

S
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25. Related Party Transactions continued

(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued

(iv) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. sells finished goods to Planet Retail Holding
Pvt. Ltd. (“Planet Retail”). Mr. Tainwala is the majority shareholder of Planet
Retail. Sales to this entity amounted to US$0.1 million and US$0.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.
As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, US$33 thousand and $0,
respectively, was receivable from Planet Retail.

(v) The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, which was the issuer of certain letters of credit
under a letter of credit facility with the Company during the year, also owned
15.8% of the ordinary shares of the Company as of December 31, 2011.

All outstanding balances with these related parties are priced at an arm’s length
basis and are to be settled in cash within six months of the reporting date. None of
the balances are secured.



26. ATIEEZHEHER

26. Particulars of Company Entities

Ownership% #H#%

A 7] & #Company name S Country 2011 2010
FEEBEBERAR ERE Luxembourg BAF
Parent
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.l. EXRE Luxembourg 100
Delilah Intermediate Holdings S.a.r.l. EHRE Luxembourg -
Delilah Holdings S.4.r.l. E#RE Luxembourg - (S ¥NC
Parent
Delilah Sub Holdings S.&.r.l. ERE Luxembourg - 100
Delilah S.&.r.l. ERE Luxembourg - 100
Delilah Europe Holdings S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Delilah US Investments S.4.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Astrum R.E. LLC E=| United States 100 100
Bypersonal S.A. de C.V. £75 5 Mexico 100 100
Direct Marketing Ventures, LLC ESET| United States 100 100
Global Licensing Company, LLC = United States 100 100
Jody Apparel II, LLC xE United States 100 100
Lonberg Express S.A. BHE Uruguay 100 100
Limited Liability Company Samsonite 5 28 B Bt 3B Russian Federation 60 60
McGregor II, LLC xE United States 100 100
PT Samsonite Indonesia ENE D Indonesia 60 60
Samsonite (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd BERFE Malaysia 100 100
Samsonite (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Z=E Thailand 60 60
Samsonite A/S 7% Denmark 100 100
Samsonite AB I # Sweden 100 100
Samsonite AG It Switzerland 929 99
Samsonite Argentina S.A. Fi AR 5E Argentina 95 95
Samsonite Asia Limited &8 Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited BN Australia 70 70
Samsonite Brasil Ltda. BA Brazil 100 100
Samsonite B.V. far e Netherlands 100 100
Samsonite Canada, Inc. mEX Canada 100 100
Samsonite CES Holding B.V. far B8 Netherlands 60 60
Samsonite Chile S.A. =il Chile 85 85
Samsonite China Holdings Limited 58 Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Columbia Limitada = fm kb 3 Columbia - 100
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC ESE| United States 100 100
Samsonite CZ spol. s r.o. ERHEME Czech Republic - 100
S
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FREMBRRMET &
26. AT ERZAHEN o 26. Particulars of Company Entities continued
EEE
Ownership%
A 7] B #Company name E1ER Country 2011 2010
Samsonite Espana S.A. 78 B oF Spain 100 100
Samsonite Europe N.V. Lt R B Belgium 100 100
Samsonite Finanziaria S.r.l. BERF Italy 100 100
Samsonite Finland Oy B2y ) Finland 100 100
Samsonite Ges.m.b.H. B2 i R Austria 100 100
Samsonite GmbH == Germany 100 100
Samsonite International Trading A China 100 100
(Ningbo) Co. Ltd.
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. H Z< Japan 100 100
Samsonite Korea Limited RERHE Korea, Republic 100 100
Samsonite Latinoamerica, S.A. de C.V. £ 78 5 Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Limited HE United Kingdom 100 100
Samsonite LLC xHE United States 100 100
Samsonite Macau Lda. B P Macau 100 100
Samsonite Mauritius Limited EEBRHE Mauritius 100 100
Samsonite Mercosur Limited BrRE Bahamas 100 100
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. £ 78 5 Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Middle East FZCO MAHEBESEER  United Arab Emirates 60 60
Samsonite Norway AS BB Norway 100 100
Samsonite Pacific LLC xHE United States 100 100
Samsonite Philippines, Inc. JFEEE Philippines 60 60
Samsonite S.A de C.V. =7 E Mexico - 100
Samsonite S.A.S. = E France 100 100
Samsonite S.p.A. BERA Italy 100 100
Samsonite Seyahat Urinleri TEH Turkey 60 60
Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi

Samsonite Singapore Pte Ltd 3 hn 3 Singapore 100 100
Samsonite Slovakia s.r.o. HT & 52 Slovakia - 100
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited ENE India 60 60
Samsonite Southern Africa Ltd. [FZE:3 South Africa 60 60
Samsonite Sp. z 0.0. VA ] Poland 100 100
Samsonite-Hungaria Borond KFT & 7F R Hungary 100 100
SC Chile Uno S.A. =R Chile 100 100
SC Inversiones Chile Limitada = F Chile 100 100

S
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R201ME1NABEHHFZERABRERA
AXERMBATRNKRENFEERI W

26. Particulars of Company Entities continued
The particulars of the investment in subsidiaries held by Samsonite International S.A.

at December 31, 2011 are set out below.

—F o
12A31H
December 31,
HUFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011
FEETRY @ TRK Unlisted shares, at cost 866,682
ZERMERE Accumulated impairment losses —
866,682

FEAS Bt B 2 B B Y BR R % EL b e
NRBSERR - EEREEEEN
FTEFEANBEE  BEEREEW

MEARNEREEIMT -

/qu o

Trade and others payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Company are set out below.

= BE S B A
NCIESE Bx Date of EN ETBEH HiEE
Company name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities ~ Note
Delilah Europe Investments S.4.r.. EXRE 2009 21,804,401% 7T =’k o
Luxembourg UsD21,804,401 Holding
Delilah US Investments S.a r.l. EHE 2009 78,160,399E It = 0% 3
Luxembourg USD78,160,399 Holding
Samsonite LLC ES= 1987 0%t 2R’ **
United States UsD nil Holding
Samsonite Asia Limited BB 1996 2078 7T 7 8 *x
Hong Kong HKD20 Distribution
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited B 1984 OET Vak ! o
Australia AUD nil Distribution
Samsonite Chile S.A. 27 2007 23,928,441,7108 Rtk = £E 9D H o
Chile CLP23,928,441,710 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC EJE| 1985 EpH bal | *x
United States UusD nil Distribution
Samsonite Espana S.A. 7 B 5F 1952 3,122,195@ T bal | o
Spain EUR3,122,195 Distribution
Samsonite Europe N.V. bt 7 BF 1966 OB T tE/ D *x
Belgium EUR nil Production/
Distribution
Samsonite GmbH =H 1966 25,5658 T 7 8 *x
Germany EUR25,565 Distribution
Samsonite International Trading el 2006 7,910,150 A R#E D4 S, S
(Ningbo) Co. Ltd. China CNY7,910,150 Distribution
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a .. EHRE 2009 114,115,900 7t 7B o
Luxembourg uUsD114,115,900 Licensing
S
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REMBERRM T &

26. AT ERZAHEN o 26. Particulars of Company Entities continued

=R B

DAEBE EES Date of B EEER BT
Company name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities ~ Note
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. =[N 2004 500,000,000 H 7 8 *x
Japan JPY500,000,000 Distribution
Samsonite Korea Limited RER 1997 1,060,000,000%2 & 7 8K *x
Korea, Republic of KRW1,060,000,000 Distribution
Samsonite Limited HE 1986 20,0005 £ Vo] o
United Kingdom GPB20,000 Distribution
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 275 1986 201,903,387 LL &R B/ D o
Mexico MXN201,903,387 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite S.A.S. SEE 1965 720,000& 7T Wil *x
France EUR720,000 Distribution
Samsonite S.p.A. BERA 1980 780,000 7T ok *x
[taly EUR780,000 Distribution
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited E} B 1995 345,520,200ENEE LE SE D S
India INR345,520,200 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a r.l. ERE 2011 55,417,991% ¢ 2 IR <3
Luxembourg USD55,417,991 Holding

* HARREERFE
Directly held by the Company

o HAAQAFRBERES
Indirectly held by the Company

o NABERYNEREEARAREENELE -
A limited liability company and wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

S
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26. AT ERZHHEH &
HEEERRHRA TR AR E
ANAT A0 E3ASHFEMRYE » B
B {7 I& 7~ £ 60,0003 7T © % £6,000,000
BEREESZIETHRMG - NAFH
SEE MR £1,000,000,000% 7T (BIEER
BRAR) o

2011468118 » F1235,361,459,582
REBRARNCBITRA  EBH
X A 7 £l ¥ A & 13 60,000 = JT()IE 0
% 2,396,207,216.83 £ t ; (iNE K &
ANATMNEMERILRANERNEE
# — % E 2 £2,353,674,595.82 % Tt ;
R (i)yB #& ® 4 = 2,353,614,595.82 %
To ARNRATEERANR UMK R &R
T # > A& 3,353,554,595.82 % jt ' H
335,355,459,582 R (B HEERBRAK) &
REEO0.01E TR B A X

R2011FE6H 148 > HEZREE
BEETRABA S AHDIKEEMRZE
12,860,369.99 3 jt & ¥ 1,286,036,999
BREBR ZERARUEER SIS
% A 1,012,800,369.99 % Jt @ H
101,280,036,999 % (B HE R B R A) &
REEO0.01E TR B 48 X

RERBEER XA 7 K211
F6HA16HEBEERKNZETEN
121,100,005 % B 17 R 2 3R 3 & T &K
% CRERZANE14,071,370.04% T -
B $51,407,137,004 R E B R - KA 7
= E R A B 1,012,800,369.99 % T M
101,280,036,999 R (BEEERBERKN) S
BREE0.01E T W B 13 A BR ©

27. BliEE1E
AATBFTER2011E128318 (B %
MRRFE B ) £201263 8278 (KRG E
REESERERTEREMBEENS
BoRETERETAEREHEEH
BERNETHARIREFELFEENE
KREIF o

26. Particulars of Company Entities continued

Changes in the Share Capital of Samsonite International S.A.

At its incorporation on March 8, 2011, the issued share capital of the Company
was US$60,000 divided into 6,000,000 shares having a nominal value of US$0.01
each. The Company had an authorized share capital of US$1,000,000,000 (including
the subscribed share capital).

On June 11, 2011, the issued share capital (i) was increased to
US$2,396,207,216.83, (ii) was further reduced to US$2,353,674,595.82 for the
purpose of offsetting the losses resulting from the incorporation costs of the
Company and (iii) was finally reduced to US$2,353,614,595.82, comprised of
235,361,459,582 ordinary shares, by way of reimbursement of the amount of
US$60,000 to the founder of the Company. The authorized share capital of the
Company remained unchanged at this stage and amounted to US$3,353,554,595.82
comprised of 335,355,459,582 shares (including the subscribed share capital) with a
nominal value of US$0.01 each.

On June 14, 2011, in connection with the Global Offering, the issued
share capital was decreased to US$12,860,369.99, comprised of 1,286,036,999
ordinary shares for the purpose of the creation of a distributable reserve. The
authorized share capital remained unchanged at this stage and amounted to
Us$1,012,800,369.99 comprised of 101,280,036,999 shares (including the
subscribed share capital) with a nominal value of US$0.01 each.

On June 16, 2011, upon the Global Offering, the Company issued an additional
121,100,005 shares by way of the authorised share capital. Upon completion of
the Global Offering, the subscribed share capital was US$14,071,370.04, comprised
of 1,407,137,004 ordinary shares. The authorized share capital of the Company
amounted to US$1,012,800,369.99 comprised of 101,280,036,999 shares (including
the subscribed share capital) with a nominal value of US$0.01 each.

27.Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2011,
the statement of financial position date, through March 27, 2012, the date this
financial information was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors, and
determined there have not been any material events that have occurred that would
require adjustments to or disclosure in the consolidated financial information.
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Financial Summary
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A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity and non-
controlling interests of the Company for the last five financials years is as follows:

128318
December 31,

UFETZ2Z Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HEF&E Net sales 1,565,147 1,215,307 1,029,374 1,249,565 1,203,913
EF Gross profit 856,948 689,679 515,550 624,186 601,731
E A= Gross profit margin 54.8% 56.7% 50.1% 50.0% 50.0%
KRR (BE) Operating profit / (loss) 209,930 543,602 (34,691) (1,397,464) 47,555
THALEEFE Profit / (loss) for the year

wmFL () ¢ attributable to:

BEER A Equity holders 86,748 355,022 1,202,433 (1,433,733) (105,726)

IE 5= IR FE = Non-controlling interests 16,870 11,792 6,902 9,717 14,134
HMEE Total assets 1,544,546 1,665,001 1,139,370 1,031,445 2,642,036
FER=RE Total liabilities 599,346 902,149 730,720 2,463,569 2,465,970
RERHE ABMLRE Equity (equity deficiency)

(BREEE) attributable to equity holders 918,131 740,208 391,537 (1,447,818) 150,197
FEIE R FE = Non-controlling interests 27,069 22,644 17,113 15,694 25,869

AAT RS SRR E B20085 1
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") since its
transition date of January 1, 2008. The financial results presented for the year
ended December 31, 2007 were prepared in accordance with United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“US GAAP”).
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